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Company Profile

China Southern Airlines Company Limited (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), is one of the
largest airlines in the People’s Republic of China (“China” or “the
PRC"). In 2011, the Group ranked first among all Chinese airlines in
terms of its fleet size, flight routes network and volume of passenger
traffic. The Group has a network of flight routes with Guangzhou as
the core hub and Beijing as a major hub, covering China and the rest
of Asia and connecting Europe, America, Australia and Africa. The
Company joined the SKYTEAM in November 2007. Up to the date
of this report, the Group has established a network connecting 926
destinations of 173 countries and regions and covering major cities
around the world.

Based in Guangzhou, the Group has 15 branches, including Xinjiang,
Beifang, Beijing, Shenzhen, Hainan, Heilongjiang, Jilin, Dalian,
Henan, Hubei, Hunan, Guangxi, Xi‘an, Taiwan, Zhuhai Helicopter,
and 5 major subsidiaries, including Xiamen Airlines Company Limited
(“Xiamen Airlines”), Shantou Airlines Company Limited (“Shantou
Airlines”), Zhuhai Airlines Company Limited (“Zhuhai Airlines”),
Guizhou Airlines Company Limited (“Guizhou Airlines”) and
Chongging Airlines Company Limited (“Chongging Airlines”). The
Group has set up three bases in places including Shanghai and 22
domestic offices in cities including Chengdu, Hangzhou and Nanjing.
It also maintains 56 overseas offices including Tokyo, Los Angeles,
Paris, Sydney, Auckland, Singapore, Moscow and Vancouver. Apart
from the above, the Company has equity interests in Sichuan Airlines
Corporation Limited.

As of 31 December 2011, the Group had a fleet of 444 aircraft,
consisting primarily of Boeing 737 series, 747, 757, 777, Airbus
320 series, 330, 380 etc. The average age of the Group’s registered
aircraft was 6.20 years as at the year end of 2011.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company hereby presents below the consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011, prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs"), together with the comparative figures for the
corresponding period in 2010. The following consolidated results
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the
Independent Auditor’s Report contained in this annual report (the

“Annual Report”).

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

ARBIZEEE
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Financial Highlights
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For the year ended 31 December

BE_Z——F+-A=1+—-HLEE

2011 vs 2010
Increase/
(decrease)

2011 2010 2011 2011 —E——Fff
2§ -2 ZB--§ ZB--f _T-%
RMB million  RMB million  HK$ million  US$ million BE/
AREEER AKBEET HBYMEERT XnEER (Rd)
Traffic revenue: el NS
Passenger LN 81,492 68,704 100,521 12,933 19%
Cargo and mail E1LON 5,760 5,436 7,105 914 6%
87,252 74,140 107,626 13,847 18%
Other operating revenue Hg g mA 3,143 2,355 3,877 499 33%
Total operating revenue N 90,395 76,495 111,503 14,346 18%
Operating expenses: HEBHY
Flight operations it eERx 48,344 38,593 59,632 7,673 25%
Maintenance HERZ 7,531 5,586 9,290 1,195 35%
Aircraft and traffic servicing Rk B8 RBES 12,337 10,968 15,218 1,958 12%
Promotion and sales EERHERX 6,568 5,555 8,102 1,042 18%
General and administrative TBRERHX 2,807 2,266 3,462 445 24%
Impairment on property,
plant and equipment 0% BERRENE 584 212 720 93 175%
Depreciation and amortisation HEREE 7,689 7,065 9,484 1,220 9%
Others Hith 1,203 444 1,484 191 171%
Total operating expenses EERY BT 87,063 70,689 107,392 13,817 23%
Other net income Hig 38 1,021 476 1,259 162 114%
Operating profit il 4,353 6,282 5,370 691 (31%)
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Financial Highlights

2011 vs 2010

For the year ended 31 December Increase/
BE-2-—-F+-A=t—-BLFE (decrease)
201 2010 201 2011 —T——F
2§ %% CZB--§f ZB--%f <—Z2-%f
RMB million  RMB million  HK$ million  US$ million R/
AR¥EBER AR¥EEL BY¥EER XEKBER (R)
Interest income VN 179 93 221 28 92%
Interest expense FEXH (1,067) (1,265) (1,316) (169) (16%)
Share of associates' results [EREEE A RIEER 456 56 562 72 714%
Share of jointly controlled
entities' results EIRRENRZRE 125 112 154 20 12%
Gain on sale of a jointly controlled PEREFELE
entity classified as held for sale, net RERENE - FE = 1,078 = = (100%)
Gain/(Loss) on derivatives financial TETA(EBE),/
instruments, net Wzt o 5 1 (30) 1 - (103%)
Exchange gain, net ey 2,755 1,746 3,398 437 58%
Interest income on wealth management
products BHEMHEMA 128 - 158 20 /
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary ~ #RFIHE TR Al U - 17 - - (100%)
Profit before taxation A 6,930 8,089 8,548 1,099 (14%)
Income tax expense HEER (840) (1,677) (1,036) (133) (50%)
Profit for the year AEFE 6,090 6,412 7,512 966 (5%)
Attributable to: AT -
Equity shareholders of the Company ADARE 5,110 5,792 6,303 810 (12%)
Non-controlling interests R ER 980 620 1,209 156 58%
Profit for the year AEFE 6,090 6,412 7,512 966 (5%)
Eamnings per share BRAE
Basic and diluted -V 3 RMB0.52  RMB0.70 = HK$0.64 US$0.08 (26%)
Note: TR

The above consolidated income statement has been prepared in Renminbi (“RMB"),
the national currency of the PRC. Translations of amounts from RMB into Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") and United States dollars (“US$") solely for the convenience of readers
have been made at the rates of HK$1.00 to RMB0.8107 and US$1.00 to RMB6.3009,
respectively, being the average of the buying and selling rates as quoted by the People’s
Bank of China at the close of business on 31 December 2011. No representation is made

N EMEHERSRUAFBET B ARB BTEEN - AHEE
EHR - RPUARBII RO 2B RTFEARRITR20116F12
A3 BEERBARRAGHNEABNELENFHE  187T
HARE0.8107 7M1 1 £ H AR 6.3009 7T BIFTE A& T
ETT o BEWTRAARE SR AR 2011412 A 31 AsiEA
B IR AR R HARRB T ETT

that the RMB amounts could have been or could be converted into HK$ or US$ at these
rates on 31 December 2011 or on any other date.
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Passenger Traffic (RPK)
million
FEE (WEELQE)
BE
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120,000 111,328

110,000
100,000
90,000
80,000
70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000
0

2010

2011

Total Revenue 2011
RMB million
BIANZE——F
ARKEBETT

¢ Domestic passenger revenue 68,222 (75.5%)
¢ Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan passenger
revenue 1,834 (2.0%)
International passenger revenue 11,436 (12.6%)
* Cargo and mail 5,760 (6.4%)
Other revenue 3,143 (3.5%)

o BERFIEWRA 68,222 (75.5%)

o BREMEFIEUA 1,834 (2.0%)
BB EERA 11,436 (12.6%)

o BB REEUA 5,760 (6.4%)
EAURA 3,143 3.5%)
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Passenger Capacity (ASK)
million

BEHEN (TAELAR)
Er-

160,000
140,000
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0

151,064

140,498

2010 2011

Passenger Traffic Capacity

Available Seat Kilometres
(“ASK") 2011

million

EEEH (THAERNRAE)
—=E——fF

AE

e Domestic 120,462 (79.8%)

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 2,753
(1.8%)

International 27,849 (18.4%)

) 120,462 (79.8%)
FSRENE 2,753 (1.8%)
BIBX 27,849 (18.4%)
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Yield (Yield per RPK)

RMB
W (BWETLAERS)
AR¥TT
08
07F 62 o
06
05
04
03}
02}
01}
0
2010 2011
Passenger Traffic
Revenue Passenger Kilometres
("RPK") 2011
million
FEE (WEERE)
—E——%
B8

e Domestic 99,674 (81.5%)

¢ Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 2,082
(1.7%)
International 20,588 (16.8%)

o BR 99,674 (81.5%)
ERZ MR 2,082 (1.7%)
B 20,588 (16.8%)
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Looking into 2012, we see challenges as well as opportunities,
but opportunities prevail. The Company will attach great
importance to study the changes in the market environment
in 2012, seize opportunities to develop, effectively cope with
the challenges in the operations, continue to make effort to
push forward the strategic transformation and accelerate
structural adjustment and optimization while ensuring
safety with full efforts.

RE20125F @ HhEERBI T > HBARLE - T FH
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Si Xian Min
Chairman

In 2011, due to the deepening sovereign debt crisis of the developed
economies and slowdown in economic growth of the emerging
economies, difficulties were encountered in the course of the
global economic recovery. China adhered to implement a proactive
fiscal policy and prudent monetary policy, continued to strengthen
and refine its macroeconomic control and ensured the steady and
relatively fast growth of the economy while allowing a gradual
fall in commodity prices. Benefitted from the steady and relatively
fast growth of the PRC economy and the growing household
consumption demand, the domestic aviation passenger demand
maintained growth. However, due to the slow recovery of the
developed economies, intense political situations in some regions
and unexpected events such as the earthquake in Japan, in 2011, the
growth of the international aviation market was slow, the aviation
cargo market was also affected and underwent a downturn, and
the domestic aviation demand grew at a slower pace compared to
2010. Facing the serious and complicated economic environment,
the Company effectively responded to the challenges brought by
the sluggish international aviation market and cargo market by
making full use of the advantage of the steady growth in domestic
civil aviation demand. Through strengthening safety management,
accelerating the strategic transformation and internationalization
process, reinforcing market expansion while continuing to improve
the operational quality and significantly raising its service standards,
the Company made progress in safety, operations, transformation,
services and other aspects, maintained the best safety record among
airlines in China, and once again achieved good results in production
and operation, thereby effectively enhancing our brand image and
the Company’s comprehensive competitiveness.

During the reporting period, the Company strictly performed
standardized management, strengthened the building of safety
management system, brought the alert functions of the safety
management system into full play, and averted safety risks effectively
on a timely basis, thus achieving the best safety performance ever in
its history and significantly improving our safety quality. In 2011, the
Group completed a total of 1,507,000 safe flight hours, including
8,777 general flight hours, representing an increase of 1,060
hours as compared with the previous year, and maintained 146
consecutive months of aviation safety and 210 consecutive months
of aviation security. The Group maintained the best safety record
among airlines in China and realized the excellent results of “Two
Zeros”, i.e. zero company responsibility incident and zero human
error incident.

#F R 2

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

During the reporting period, facing the adverse factors, such as the
slowdown in the civil aviation market and the sluggish cargo market,
the Company actively strengthened marketing and cooperation,
and continued to enhance the quality of the passenger operations
by seizing opportunities in the market, strengthening high-end
marketing, developing frequent-flyers and enhancing the control
of channels. During the reporting period, operating indicators of
the Company, including passenger load factor, revenue per seat/
kilometre and average fare continued to increase. Facing the serious
situation of the overall cargo transport, the Company actively
developed the cargo transport market and effectively reduced
cargo transport losses. In addition, during the reporting period, the
Company successfully introduced and operated aircraft A380 and
became the sole airline that operated aircraft A380 in the aviation
industry of China, thereby effectively enhancing the profile, social
influence and brand recognition of the Company. We sped up the
structural adjustment of the fleet and further optimized our fleet
structure by disposing of the older aircraft. In 2011, the Company’s
major production and operation indicators remained steady on the
rise with and created a new high.

During the reporting period, the Company continued to promote
the energy conservation and emission reduction programmes
and further optimized the structure of the fleet by disposing of
older aircraft. In 2011, the Company recorded a 3.3% decrease
in fuel consumption per tonne kilometre as compared with the
previous year with a reduction in carbon dioxide emission of
80,000 tonnes, and was ranked 21st at the “China Corporate
Social Responsibility List”, awarded the honour as “China 2011 Top
100 Green Companies”, “Green Company of the Year”, “Green
Action China 2011 Ten Leading Companies”, “The Most Socially
Responsible Listed Company”. Moreover, responding to the needs
of the State, we successfully accomplished the special transportation
tasks, including the evacuation of PRC citizens from Libya and
Japan following the earthquake as well as to ensure the safe air
transportation for the 26th Summer Universiade and the 1st Asia-
Europe Expo. In 2011, the Company’s Ten Cent Care Foundation
donated RMB 13.97 million and effectively fulfilled our social
responsibility.
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Looking into 2012, we see challenges as well as opportunities,
but opportunities prevail. Although the international economy is
still affected by the European debt crisis, the recovery of world
economy is still predictable. The PRC economy is still maintaining
a steady growth momentum over the medium and long term.
Although the current PRC economic growth is slowing down, the
government has adopted in advance the policy of micro-adjustment
to avoid rapid decline of the economy, and it is expected that the
PRC economy will maintain a steady growth in 2012. Increasing
income and consumption upgrade of residents make civil aviation
become popular which drives the steady growth of aviation
demand. Additionally, after the Company recorded profits for three
consecutive years and completed refinancing, the balance sheet and
capital strength of the Company have seen significant improvement.
Meantime, as the negative influence of the European debt crisis, it
is anticipated that the world economy will recover at a slow pace in
2012. Along with the sluggish economy in developed economies and
the domestic macro control measures, domestic economic activities
will be hampered and economic growth in the PRC is expected to
slow down. Affected by the overall economic condition, the 2012
international aviation market will be relatively weak with anemic
growth, and cargo transport market will also remain depressed.
Though the domestic passenger aviation market will continue to
grow due to the economic environment in China, the growth rate
is expected to slow down. Furthermore, the domestic aviation
industry is also facing challenges arising from the faster growing
transportation capacity and intensified market competition, so
further increase in the passenger revenue will be affected. Due to the
factors including the easing monetary policies in major economies
and geopolitical tensions, the international oil prices may remain
high, which will exert greater pressure on the profits of the aviation
industry in 2012. Compared with 2011, the pace of the appreciation
of RMB against the US$ will be less impressive in 2012, and the
exchange gain for the aviation industry will also decline. Therefore,
the Company will attach great importance to study the changes in
the market environment in 2012, seize opportunities to develop,
effectively cope with the challenges in the operations, continue
to make effort to push forward the strategic transformation and
accelerate structural adjustment and optimization while ensuring
safety with full efforts. Priorities will be given to the following works:

1. To strengthen safety management mechanism and team
construction to realize safe operation with full efforts

In 2012, the Company will further enhance the safety
management mechanism, raise the predictability in safety
management and strictly implement safety production and
safety management responsibility. We will accelerate the
application of new technologies, continue to perform well
in the application and promotion of safety management
system and proactively explore the new safety management
mechanism to construct an effective long-term mechanism of
continued safety. Meanwhile, we will enhance our flight crew,
stabilize the flight crew team and explore new ways in pilot
training.

#F R 2

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

In 2012, the Company must eliminate aviation transport
accident and major general aviation accident as well as major
aviation on-ground accident and major aircraft repair and
maintenance accident so as to realize our goal in the aviation
safety year.

To strengthen market development, increase revenue and
create good operating results

In 2012, the Company will continue to strengthen market
development, accelerate the development of the product
system, and make greater effort to conduct the sales for
first and business class cabins and international marketing.
Emphasis will be put on the operations of wide-body aircraft
and long routes. Through co-ordinated arrangement and in
line with strategic transformation and internationalization
strategy, we will leverage the scale effect of wide-body
aircrafts and the driving effect of long routes, with a view
to enhance the operational quality. We will optimize our
cargo transport business layout, widely conduct external
cooperation, strengthen cargo transport marketing and make
effort to increase bellyhold income and reduce cargo transport
loss.

To expand the transformation achievements, improve the
quality of transformation and firmly push forward the strategic
transformation and internationalization

The Company will continue to unswervingly push forward our
strategic transformation and internationalization on the back
of the existing achievements. In 2012, by further improving the
hub routes structure and strengthening the design, promotion
and sales of transit products, the Company will strengthen its
resources allocation, enhance the recognition and attraction
of Southern Airlines’ transit and further increase our hub
competitiveness and customer satisfaction; we will steadily
press ahead with our internationalization, secure the Australia
route and launch more international routes, including those to
London, further expand the Southeast Asia route and enhance
our operational capability of international long routes to
continue to expand the achievements of transformation and
improve the quality of transformation.
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To strengthen building up our brand and enhance service
standards

The Company will formally launch its “Year of International
Brand Service” activity in 2012, to drive the Company’s
ground and on-board services to fully achieve the SKYTRAX
Four-star level, thereby significantly improving customer
service experiences and the internationalization level of the
Company'’s service. The Company will make greater effort
to promote the “Southern Airlines” brand in the market,
thus further increasing the Company’s brand influence. We
will strengthen the planning, publicity and promotion of
our brand, refine our system of branding and enhance our
brand recognition targeting at the key customer groups.
We will continue to implement the SKYTRAX benchmarking
management and be stringent in the standardization and
consistence of our services; we will improve our in-flight
service, increase the investment in hardware, and improve
the services standards for international routes. Focus will
also be made on improving the level of high-end service,
the enhancement in the consistency, cohesiveness and
systematicness for service ends and the improvements on the
overall service image.

#F R 2

Chairman’s Statement
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During the reporting period, facing the complicated
economic situation, the Company firmly pushed forward its
strategic transformation and internationalization strategy,
continued to strengthen the hub construction, made great
effort to enhance transit capability, proactively enhanced its
service standards and brand image and accelerate the course
of internationalization , thus significantly improved the
Company’s competitiveness and risk management ability.

BEHRR HHEMNEELDZ  AQAFAREHEERR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the reporting period, benefitted from the steady and relatively
fast growth of the PRC economy, the domestic aviation demand
recorded a steady growth. However, due to the slow recovery in the
developed economies, intense political situations in some regions
and other unexpected events such as the earthquake in Japan, the
growth of the international aviation and aviation cargo transport
markets was slow and underwent a downturn. Facing the complicated
economic situation, the Company firmly pushed forward its strategic
transformation and internationalization strategy, continued to
strengthen the hub construction, made great effort to enhance transit
capability, proactively enhanced its service standards and brand image
and conducted effective structural adjustment, thus significantly
improved the Company’s competitiveness and risk management ability.

HEHA - RENF BB FIRRIRIER - PE
BARMBRLIBLIER - BR - BEMRZETISMM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the reporting period, the Company made greater efforts to
push forward the hub construction with increasing degree of hub
concentration and the hub effect was gradually demonstrated. In
particular, the popularity and competitiveness of the Guangzhou
hub was significantly enhanced. During the reporting period, the
transit assurance and sales capability were effectively enhanced with
fast growth in the number of transit passengers and transit sales
income. In 2011, the internationalization process of the Company
proceeded at an obviously faster pace. The international routes,
including those of direct flight from Guangzhou to Auckland,
Vancouver and Perth were successively launched, and those from
Guangzhou to Sydney, Melbourne and Los Angeles were intensified.
The number of our international and regional flights grew rapidly
and the proportion of the available seat kilometres in international
routes increased substantially. We are moving towards the goal as an
airline of international standard operating with an efficient network.

During the reporting period, the Company conducted the “Year
of Branded Service Innovation” activity and fully performed
benchmarking management and accelerated the standardization,
accuracy and internationalization of its services by leveraging the
opportunity of the SKYTRAX Four-star certification; we improved
our service flow, increased investment in services and put emphasis
on the improvement of the environment for the first class and
business class cabins; we strictly rectified the delays of flights and
effectively increased the Company’s flight on-schedule rate in close
collaboration with each of the related units. During the reporting
period, the Company was granted “SKYTRAX Four-Star Airline” and
the award of “World's Most-Improved Airline in 2011" by SKYTRAX.
In addition, the Company stepped up its brand promotion activities
through the platforms such as the Australian Tourism Exchange
and the Conference of the World Tourism, and was ranked sixth
in “China’s Top 100 Brands” of Asian brands ranking and granted
“Annual Asian Airline Brand Attracting Most Attention”.

OPERATING DATA SUMMARY

The following table sets forth certain financial information and
operating data by geographic regions:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2011
vs 2010
Increase/
For the year ended (decrease)
31 December 2011 &t
HZE12A31ALEE 2010 F
2011 2010 BE
2011 & 20104 OR2)
Traffic TEE
Revenue passenger kilometres (RPK) (million) W EE AR RPK) (BH)
— Domestic —BA 99,674 94,014 6.0%
- Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan —BREME 2,082 1,788 16.4%
— International —EIBR 20,588 15,526 32.6%
Total A 122,344 111,328 9.9%
Revenue tonne kilometres (RTK) (million) W EmE AR RTK) (B E)
— Domestic —BA 10,195 9,715 4.9%
- Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan —BREME 198 171 15.8%
— International —EIBR 4,068 3,218 26.4%
Total AFF 14,461 13,104 10.4%
Passengers carried (thousand) #HEAKXRT)
— Domestic —BA 72,926 69,727 4.6%
- Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan —BREME 1,767 1,573 12.3%
— International — BB 5,984 5,156 16.1%
Total A&t 80,677 76,456 5.5%
Cargo and mail carried (thousand tonnes) HERIES (TH)
— Domestic —BA 857 874 (1.9%)
- Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan —BRE M= 13 12 8.3%
— International — B 265 231 14.7%
Total &Gt 1,135 1,117 1.6%
Capacity HED
Available seat kilometres (ASK) (million) ATABERI AR (ASK) (B E)
— Domestic —ER 120,462 117,383 2.6%
— Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan —BREME 2,753 2,353 17.0%
— International — B 27,849 20,762 34.1%
Total a&t 151,064 140,498 7.5%
Available tonne kilometres (ATK) (million) A AME AN E (ATK) (&)
— Domestic —BA 14,145 13,890 1.8%
— Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan —BREM = 316 269 17.5%
— International —EIBR 6,334 4,981 27.2%
Total A 20,795 19,140 8.6%
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2011
vs 2010
Increase/
For the year ended (decrease)
31 December 2011 5tk
BZ12A31HLEE 2010 F
2011 2010 ®wE
20115 20104 OR2)
Load factor HER
Passenger load factor (RPK/ASK) (%) 2 E (RPK/ASK) (%)
— Domestic —BA 82.7 80.1 3.2%
- Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan — AR =R 75.7 76.0 (0.4%)
— International — BB 73.9 74.8 (1.2%)
Overall 15 81.0 79.2 2.3%
Overall load factor (RTK/ATK) (%) 1A R F R (RTK/ATK) (%)
— Domestic —BA 72.1 69.9 3.1%
- Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan — AR =R 62.6 63.6 (1.6%)
— International — B 64.2 64.6 (0.6%)
Overall 15 69.5 68.5 1.5%
Yield &=
Yield per RPK (RMB) BRERERBNHZ (ARE)
— Domestic —ER 0.68 0.62 9.7%
- Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan —BRENE 0.88 0.85 3.5%
— International —BBR 0.56 0.58 (3.4%)
Overall 15 0.67 0.62 8.1%
Yield per RTK (RMB) BN B (ARE)
— Domestic —E® 6.90 6.20 11.3%
- Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan —BREM = 9.69 9.29 4.3%
— International —BIBR 3.67 3.84 (4.4%)
Overall EH 6.03 5.66 6.5%
Fleet TR
Total number of aircraft at year end FRRMAEE
— Boeing —RE 223 208 7.2%
— Airbus —EREH 208 191 8.9%
— McDonnell Douglas — %558 - 12 (100.0%)
- Others —HAth 13 11 18.2%
Total a&t 444 422 5.2%
Overall utilisation rate (hours per day) BTN BRI R (N, H)
— Boeing —EE 10.02 9.78 2.5%
— Airbus —ZEHREE 9.74 9.47 2.9%
— McDonnell Douglas —%E 8.54 9.09 (6.1%)
Overall 15 9.80 9.55 2.6%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB5,110 million was recorded in 2011 as compared to the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB5,792
million in 2010. The Group’s operating revenue increased by
RMB 13,900 million or 18.2% from RMB76,495 million in 2010 to
RMB90,395 million in 2011. Passenger load factor increased by 1.8
percentage points from 79.2% in 2010 to 81.0% in 2011. Passenger
yield (in passenger revenue per RPK) increased by RMB0.05 or 8.1%
from RMBO0.62 in 2010 to RMB0.67 in 2011. Average yield (in
traffic revenue per RTK) increased by 6.5% from RMB5.66 in 2010
to RMB6.03 in 2011. Operating expenses increased by RMB16,374
million or 23.2% from RMB70,689 million in 2010 to RMB87,063
million in 2011. As a result of the increase in operating expenses,
operating profit of RMB4,353 million was recorded in 2011 as
compared to operating profit of RMB6,282 million in 2010, down by
RMB1,929 million.

MBRE

20N FARRNAIREEMBFIEAARESI10E
JT 0 M2010FE AR A R EEEFE A AR
5792187 - AEBEMLZEWARH2010FMNAR
k76495187 EFF AR 139.001B7518.2% &
2011 FRAREE903.9518 T » BEEH2010FH
792% A1 8B D E2011FH81.0% ° &
BRF(AGREBERNB 2 BEWRASE)H 2010
FHARE0627TT EFAAREE0.057T88.1% =
2011 FMARE 0.67 7T » FHWEE (LB REBHEA
BrEBWAGE) H2010FNWARMES.66 7T F
AHE2011 FARE6.037T » FHIEA6.5% ° ZiE
BB 2010 FHIAREE706.89 BT FFH AR
163.74BTE 2011 FHARE 870.63 87T © FHIE
B232% AREERIMEAR 2011 FHEE
AMEAARB 435318 M2010F 2&EFHA
AR#62.82187T + THRARK 1929187 -

OPERATING REVENUE RERA
2011 2010
Operating Operating Changes
revenue revenue in revenue
BERA BERA 28
RMB million Percentage RMB million Percentage
ARBEETR Balt  ARWEER BAlk
Traffic revenue BHUA 87,252 96.5% 74,140 96.9% 17.7%
Including: Passenger revenue o RERA 81,492 68,704 18.6%
- Dorestic —~BEREERA 68,222 58,155 17.3%
-Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan -BRERENA 1,834 1,521 20.6%
- International -EREERA 11,436 9,028 26.7%
Cargo and mail revenue SHERA 5,760 5,436 6.0%
Qther operating revenue At 3,143 3.5% 2,355 3.1% 33.5%
Mainly including: Commission income ~ FE&1E : FEUA 643 469 37.1%
Hotel and travel B B
services income FRBIA 614 477 28.7%
Ground services income HERBKA 368 390 (5.6%)
Expired sales in
advance of carriage DHRELE 309 249 24.1%
Aircraft wet lease income R#EERA 319 50 >100.0%
Total operating revenue BEWAEE 90,395 100.0% 76,495 100.0% 18.2%
Less: fuel surcharge income b LalE=L N (11,699) (5,583)
Total operating revenue excluding =N
fuel surcharge (REpmmmE) 78,696 70912




China Southern Airlines Company Limited
Annual Report 2011

 BL i 3 B 51K D % S A8 i B

Management Discussion and Analysis

Traffic revenue composition

B W AR

5,760 (6.6%) (RMB million AFREE B B L)

81,492(93.4%)

2011

Cargo and Mail Revenue

EMERA

5,436 (7.3%)

68,704 (92.7%)

2010

Passenger Revenue

FERA

Passenger revenue composition

e BEYAME

(14.0%) (RMB millon \RBEBEETT)  (131%)
1,834 1,521
(2.3%) (2.2%)

N

68,222(83.7%)

2011

Domestic

W axzenn BRATEUA

Substantially all of the Group’s operating revenue is attributable
to airline and airline-related operations. Traffic revenue accounted
for 96.5% and 96.9% of total operating revenue in 2011 and
2010 respectively. Passenger revenue and cargo and mail revenue
accounted for 93.4% and 6.6% respectively of the total traffic
revenue in 2011. The other operating revenue is mainly derived from
commission income, hotel and travel services income, fees charged
for ground services rendered to other Chinese airlines, income from
expired sales in advance of carriage and aircraft wet lease income.

The increase in operating revenue was primarily due to an 18.6%
increase in passenger revenue from RMB68,704 million in 2010
to RMB81,492 million in 2011. The total number of passengers
carried increased by 5.5% to 80.68 million passengers in 2011. RPKs
increased by 9.9% from 111,328 million in 2010 to 122,344 million
in 2011, primarily as a result of the increase in number of passengers
carried. Passenger yield per RPK increased from RMBO0.62 in 2010 to
RMBO0.67 in 2011.

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

2010

International
BB =B WA

AEBRKEEWABRIBD R A EEH &2 7
A ZETS - BB ATE 2011 F X 2010 F D BIMELR
BT AR 96.5% F2 96.9% ° F£2011 FHERH A
F193.4% BEIBIWA » 6.6%B|AEEEWA - &K
EENEMEEWRARE B WA « BIE RIKE
ARFSUA ~ A1 EAth B Ao 22 A A5 (i 3 I AR 5 9 Uk
B AR EAE NIRRT

KEWA AN ETZERELSZEWAR2010FH)
AR 687.04187T FF118.6% E 2011 FHAREE
814.921870 - EE L ANIXTE2011 FEIN5.5% =
8,068B AKX - WBEAEMH2010FH1,113.2818
BNB - 12119.9% E2011EH1,223.44BF R
B TEHAEBZAZEN - RFENBRERAE
WHH 2010 EMNARB0.62TTHE 2011 EHAR
#0.67 7T °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Domestic passenger revenue, which accounted for 83.7% of
the total passenger revenue in 2011, increased by 17.3% from
RMB58,155 million in 2010 to RMB68,222 million in 2011. Domestic
passenger traffic in RPKs increased by 6.0%, while passenger
capacity in ASKs increased by 2.6%, resulting in an increase in
passenger load factor by 2.6 percentage points from 80.1% in 2010
t0 82.7% in 2011. Domestic passenger yield per RPK increased from
RMB0.62 in 2010 to RMB0.68 in 2011, mainly resulted from the
increase of domestic passenger revenue and fuel surcharge income
during the year.

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan passenger revenue, which
accounted for 2.3% of total passenger revenue, increased by 20.6%
from RMB 1,521 million in 2010 to RMB 1,834 million in 2011. For
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan flights, passenger traffic in RPKs
increased by 16.4%, while passenger capacity in ASKs increased
by 17.0%, resulting in a decrease in passenger load factor by 0.3
percentage points from 76.0% in 2010 to 75.7% in 2011. Passenger
yield per RPK increased from RMB0.85 in 2010 to RMB0.88 in 2011,
mainly resulted from the increase of Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
passenger revenue.

International passenger revenue, which accounted for 14.0% of
total passenger revenue, increased by 26.7% from RMB9,028 million
in 2010 to RMB11,436 million in 2011. For international flights,
passenger traffic in RPKs increased by 32.6%, while passenger
capacity in ASKs increased by 34.1%, resulting in a 0.9 percentage
points decrease in passenger load factor from 74.8% in 2010 to
73.9% in 2011. Passenger yield per RPK decreased from RMB0.58 in
2010 to RMBO.56.

Cargo and mail revenue, which accounted for 6.6% of the Group's
total traffic revenue and 6.4% of total operating revenue, increased
by 6.0% from RMB5,436 million in 2010 to RMB5,760 million in
2011. The increase was attributable to the increase in cargo traffic
volume and fuel surcharge income.

Other operating revenue increased by 33.5% from RMB2,355
million in 2010 to RMB3,143 million in 2011. The increase was
primarily due to the general growth in income from various auxiliary
operations.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Total operating expenses in 2011 amounted to RMB87,063 million,
representing an increase of 23.2% or RMB 16,374 million over 2010,
primarily due to the total effect of increases in jet fuel costs, landing
and navigation fees, maintenance expenses and other operating
costs. Total operating expenses as a percentage of total operating
revenue increased from 92.4% in 2010 to 96.3% in 2011.

Bl EE R A 2011 FRARERARS37% ' M
2010FMAREE 581 55T E 2011 FMARE
682.22187T * £F17.3% - BIRNZErL 71 (LART A
PERLNBEE)EIN2.6% @ MNBREABRAENE
EERRIEN6.0%  BEEMH2010FA80.1% £
F2.6fEDBZE2011FH82.7% » RFEHFUWE
HNBWEAH2010FMARK0.62 THZE2011F
AR 0.687T °

BREMEBEZERAGATEKRAN23% @ B
2010F M AREIS21BILAZ 2011 ENARE
18.34187T > 1 AN20.6% - BREMWRMENE
BRE N (AR RABEAREFTE)EMN17.0% » LA
BENBAHENRIESRGIEINIGAY% @ BEXR
2010F A976.0% T [20.31E & o 2h 220114
#75.7% - W EBEABWZEH2010FMARE
0.85 L EAZE2011T FMARE 0887 TEHR
IR A I EFHPTER ©

BlR @R AMGBARERRAMN14.0% - H20104F
MARE90.28EBITLFAE201T FHARE114.36
Bt ' £EF26.7% - BIBRSMARIERERE 1 (VAR A
BERIANBEE) FF341%HNREE - UEBE L
BAENEES FF32.6% @ BEERME2010F8
74.8% T BEO9E A H B E2011FH73.9% °
WEZNBUFEHR2010FEMNARK058TT NRERE
2011 FH AR 0.56 7T °

EEERAEAEEEERINARNGE% @ (H1ALK
BUAR6.4%  H2010FH ARBES54.361BITF
E20NFENAREK 576018 - FHI8A6.0% - F
AT ERRRSEEMBREM MBI AR EFF -

H U A B 2010 F M A REE 23,55 B TiE 0
33.5% & 2011 FHARKE31.43ET  BINHEE
REZBRSIBEESHESRREMEN -

EEMX

2011 FMBEBERTAXARK-8706318 T ' It
20104 FF AR 163.74187T823.2% * = E
AR « HEREE BB - BIEBRHEM
EERAR AR ENEY - A2 ERTERELEI
ABE DL HE2010F 8992.4% EFHZ 2011 8
96.3% ©
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2011 2010
Operating expenses RMB million Percentage RMB million Percentage
EERX AREEER BAt ARKBER BAL
Flight operations fITEERS 48,344 55.5% 38,593 54.6%
Mainly including: Jet fuel costs FERE  BAA 32,675 23,492
Operating lease charges meRE 4,654 5,298
Flight personnel payroll fZEABLE
and welfare Ria# 4,412 3,420
Maintenance BERX 7,531 8.7% 5,586 7.9%
Aircraft and traffic servicing R g RBRX 12,337 14.2% 10,968 15.5%
Promotion and sales EEREERX 6,568 7.5% 5,555 7.9%
General and administrative THREERY 2,807 3.2% 2,266 3.2%
Impairment on property, ER
plant and equipment REBRE 584 0.7% 212 0.3%
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 7,689 8.8% 7,065 10.0%
Others it 1,203 1.4% 444 0.6%
Total operating expenses EERXATE 87,063 100.0% 70,689 100.0%

Composition of operation expenses in 2011
20MFEERIAIL

Fli%ht operations
ML EER 2
Maintenance
HIERX

M Aircraft and traffic servicing
TR K 388 8 AR A5 B S

B Promotion and sales
SERHEERX

B General and administrative
ITREEERX

B Impairment on property,
plant and quté'pment
W% - BB &RRERE

B Depreciation and
amortisation
PrEe R eH

7.5%

14.2%

B Others
Hity

Flight operations expenses, which accounted for 55.5% of total operating expenses,
increased by 25.3% from RMB38,593 million in 2010 to RMB48,344 million in 2011,
primarily as a result of increase in jet fuel costs because of greater consumption of jet
fuel and increase in average fuel prices. Jet fuel costs, which accounted for 67.6% of
flight operations expenses, increased by 39.1% from RMB23,492 million in 2010 to
RMB32,675 million in 2011.

Maintenance expenses, which accounted for 8.7% of total operating expenses,
increased by 34.8% from RMB5,586 million in 2010 to RMB7,531 million in 2011.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in number of engines repaired and
routine maintenance during the year.

Comparison of operating expenses
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Aircraft and traffic servicing expenses, which accounted for 14.2%
of total operating expenses, increased by 12.5% from RMB 10,968
million in 2010 to RMB12,337 million in 2011. The increase was
primarily due to an 8.1% rise in landing and navigation fees from
RMB7,792 million in 2010 to RMBS8,426 million in 2011, resulted
from the increase in number of flights.

Promotion and sales expenses, which accounted for 7.5% of total
operating expenses, increased by 18.2% from RMB5,555 million in
2010 to RMB6,568 million in 2011.

General and administrative expenses, which accounted for 3.2% of
the total operating expenses, increased by 23.9% from RMB2,266
million in 2010 to RMB2,807 million in 2011.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment increased by RMB372
million from RMB212 million in 2010 to RMB584 million in 2011.

Depreciation and amortisation, which accounted for 8.8% of total
operating expenses, increased by 8.8% from RMB7,065 million in
2010 to RMB7,689 million in 2011, mainly due to the additional
depreciation charges on aircraft delivered in 2011.

OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit of RMB4,353 million was recorded in 2011 (2010:
RMB6,282 million). The decrease in profit was mainly due to the
net effect of increase in operating revenue by RMB13,900 million or
18.2% in 2011 and increase in operating expenses by RMB 16,374
million or 23.2%.
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THREEBEAMS LB EERTMN3.2%  B2010
ﬁ%AE%nem T FF23.9% Z 2011 FMAR
#28.07 18T

Y WERREREHR2010FMHARE 21218
@LﬂAEMan%ﬁimni%AE%am%
TEO

P RE G AL ERYA8.8%  A2010FMA
R¥70.65127T1218.8% £ 2011 FR AR 76.89
B FERHEMN 2011 EFTIEMREITE S
g( o
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201 FHEEFEAEARBE43.53187C (20104 -
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TLEK18.2% + HEMYT FA AR 163.74E 5L
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OTHER NET INCOME

Other net income increased by RMB545 million from RMB476 million
in 2010 to RMB1,021 million in 2011, mainly due to the increase of
government grants and gain on disposal of aircraft.

Interest expense decreased by RMB198 million from RMB1,265
million in 2010 to RMB1,067 million in 2011 was mainly due to the
decrease in weighted average bank and other loans balances during
the year.

Net exchange gain of RMB2,755 million was recorded in 2011,
an increase of RMB 1,009 million from RMB1,746 million in 2010,
mainly due to Renminbi appreciated significantly against US dollar in
2011.

INCOME TAX

Income tax expense of RMB840 million was recorded in 2011,
the decrease by RMB837 million from RMB1,677 million in 2010,
mainly due to the utilisation of unrecognised deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses balance brought forward from
prior years and the recognition of deductible temporary differences
in 2011.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB24,928 million. For the year ended 31
December 2011, the Group recorded a net cash inflow from

HF s

HiFWEFH 2010 FNARE 476 BT MAR
#&5 ASEILE201 1 FMARKE10211ETL  TER
FA AR I 48 B % B B TR AU S5 38 DT ER o

FEX B 2010 F M AR 12.65BTITRMD AR
19882201 FMARE10.67187T ° TER A
#fb’ziHHWfEﬁ&HﬁﬁE KON I BRRE T PR PR

@@

AEEPR 2011 FERE AR 27 558 LA FE H UL
5 tt2010¢/$ERH&ﬁn}\Eﬁ517461 BT A
R¥10.09870  TERAA2011FAREHET
B FHEK -

BiIE

REBAFHEMRTHAARESA0E T &
2010 FEFiBRi T B AR 16,77 BT D AREE
8.37187T - EEEAMNME BRI FE AR ATIK
NERUERERAGFEARBERER2011 FERE
ZAMRINE M EE o

RBEERER MBRERRERER

R2011F 12 A31H  AEBRNFRBEENA
AR®E2492818 70 - EHE2011F 12 A31H1E
FE - AEBRENLSERSFRANAARE

operating activities of RMB12,557 million, a net cash outflow from 125.57 87T ?ﬁ{ﬁiﬁmiffﬁi/»luu”j HRARE
investing activities of RMB21,957 million and a net cash inflow from 219.57 87T MEEHNFEFRESRANEARE
financing activities of RMB8,859 million, which in total resulted in a 8§§917'§7E CREMREEEMORD ARES 41
net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of RMB541 million. BT °
2011 2010
20115 2010
RMB million RMB million
AREBERT AREBET
Net cash from operating activities K TREIRIR S MAEEE 12,557 11,442
Net cash used in investing activities it Lo R (21,957) (11,568)
Net cash from financing activities ME NI RAFEE 8,859 6,187
Net (decrease)/increase in cash Be MRESEEY
and cash equivalents FCRA), /1N (541) 6,061
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2012 and thereafter, the Group is primarily dependent on
its ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations to
meet its debt obligations as they fall due, and its ability to obtain
adequate external financing to meet its committed future capital
expenditures. As at 31 December 2011, the Group had banking
facilities with several PRC banks for providing loan finance up to
approximately RMB127,448 million (2010: RMB 146,702 million), of
which approximately RMB36,414 million (2010: RMB39,173 million)
was utilised. The Directors believe that sufficient financing will be
available to the Group when and where needed.

The Directors have carried out a detailed review of the cash flow
forecast of the Group for the twelve months ending 31 December
2012. Based on such forecast, the Directors have determined that
adequate liquidity exists to finance the working capital, capital
expenditure requirements and dividend payment of the Group
during that period. In preparing the cash flow forecast, the directors
have considered historical cash requirements of the Group as well as
other key factors, including the availability of the above-mentioned
loan finance which may impact the operations of the Group during
the next twelve-month period. The Board is of the opinion that
the assumptions and sensitivities which are included in the cash
flow forecast are reasonable. However, as with all assumptions in
regard to future events, these are subject to inherent limitations
and uncertainties and some or all of these assumptions may not be
realised.

The analysis of the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

MA0NERUEBREFE AEBNRBESIKRE
DECRAAREB 4 R L ERSFRANENE
HAETS 2 e N RAE B EVS N B E AT R 2R E,
AERE NIRRT 28 - 20114128318
AEFESZRPEBPITHERLH @ IRIESREY
ARBE1,274.48BT (20104 « AR#E1,467.0215
TC)RERTTREEERE - 2011512 A31H » A
K364 148 TEHEA(2010F « ARK391.73
BIt) - ARRIEBHEAEEETHNME -

AARIEEHAEEFHE2012F12A31H1E121E
ARRESRETRAETT THENER - BIEELE
B BERBAEEMRBE S B AERNZHAR/
EBEEE NENERAT REB I HENK - ERER
SRETEAE  BEEEALEE T AEENELIR
SHEFMEMETERE  HPBELingEggE
AEBAKI2EAPEEENERNTHIEE -
EFeR s BeRnEBimeEnBREsE
REER - BRENAE BRI THHEARZMER
HAEHNREESEUTETSEIRN -

AEBWEERBEANAT

Composition of borrowings BEEAED T
2011 2010

RMB million RMB million Change

ARBEERL ARKEBEET 2%
Total borrowings BE®E 63,663 55,630 14.4%
Fixed rate borrowings EHeoh o BEMERER 6,582 7,417 (11.3%)
Floating rate borrowings FEREEE 57,081 48,213 18.4%

6,582(10.3%) 7,417 (13.3%)

57,081(89.7%)

2011

Floating rate borrowings

TR REE

48,213(86.7%)

2010

Fixed rate borrowings

B MR EE

(RMB million A R ¥ H &)
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Analysis of borrowings by currency EEARIREEI N
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARMEET AREHET
usD eV 62,338 54,787
RMB AR 766 843
Others Hip 559 -
Total @5t 63,663 55,630
Maturity analysis of borrowings BEAREIBA SN
2011 2010

RMB million RMB million
ARBBEER AREBETT

Within 1 year 1FEARN 20,573 10,978
After 1 year but within 2 years T E - B2FUR 10,832 12,134
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F LA E - B5FHUR 16,559 16,475
After 5 years 5L 15,699 16,043
Total borrowings BERE 63,663 55,630
The Group's capital structure at the end of the year is as follows: REEBRFROEAEBRRET ¢

2011 2010 Change

2011 5 20104 &
Net debts (RMB million) AEB(AREAET) 75,790 64,051 18.3%
Total equity (RMB million) EmeE(AREBEET) 37,777 30,316 24.6%
Ratio of net debt to total equity FEGE S AT = 201% 211% (4.7%)
37,777

30,316

75,790
(66.7%)

2011 2010
Net debts Total equity
FE R iEE

(RMB million AFREE B B T)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Net debts (aggregate of bank and other loans, obligations under
finance leases, trade payables, sales in advance of carriage, amounts
due to related companies, accrued expenses and other liabilities less
cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits) increased by
18.3% to RMB75,790 million at 31 December 2011, compared to
RMB64,051 million at 31 December 2010.

As at 31 December 2011, total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB32,175 million,
representing an increase of RMB5,358 million from RMB26,817
million at 31 December 2010. Total equity at 31 December 2011
amounted to RMB37,777 million (2010: RMB30,316 million).

Ratio of net debt to total equity of the Group at 31 December 2011
was 201%, as compared to 211% at 31 December 2010.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Foreign currency risk

The Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take place
either through the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange or at a swap
centre.

The Group has significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
substantially all of the Group’s obligations under finance leases, bank
and other loans and operating lease commitments are denominated
in foreign currencies, principally US dollars and Singapore dollars.
Depreciation or appreciation of the Renminbi against foreign
currencies affects the Group’s results significantly because the
Group's foreign currency payments generally exceed its foreign
currency receipts. The Group is not able to hedge its foreign currency
exposure effectively other than by retaining its foreign currency
denominated earnings and receipts to the extent permitted by the
State Administration of Foreign Exchange, or subject to certain
restrictive conditions, entering into forward foreign exchange
contracts with authorised banks.

Jet fuel price risk

The Group is required to procure a majority of its jet fuel domestically
at PRC spot market prices. There are currently no effective means
available to manage the Group’s exposure to the fluctuations in
domestic jet fuel prices. However, according to a pricing mechanism
that was jointly introduced by the National Development and Reform
Commission and the Civil Aviation Administration of China in 2009,
which allows certain flexible levy of fuel surcharge linked to the jet
fuel price, airline companies may, within a prescribed scope, make
its own decision as to fuel surcharges for domestic routes and the
pricing structure. The pricing mechanism, to a certain extent, reduces
the Group's exposure to fluctuation in jet fuel price.

R2011EF 128318 - FEKERITREMER
EABmEEREAE  EBAERN  EEEE - BN
BB ARIZOE - BIRER M EM A ENAMFER
& MRS EEY NG IRIEITFR)E2010F12 A31
A AR 64051 ETHZE AREE 757 9018 7T
FFT183%

R20119F12 8318 ARAIMREEMEZRAA
R¥321.7518 7T ®2010F 12 A31 B AR
26817 TN T ARKES3.581E7T - FR2011412
A318 @ R s ARK377.77187T(20104F ¢
AR#303.16f87T) °

AREBMN2011F12 A31 BHFES RS A5
RAE201% @ FE20105F 12 A31BAIAE211% °

PR EERR

SVE LBz

AREAR] B AR ERKINE - B SR ARBSN
P22 5 /BB B A RIRTT R EAMEREEEI
PEE RS Bl SR R T T

AEBABLINRMELHEERE - |RITRHMER
R LT EATEI LAINE BB - TRRRTT I
AT o R AR E B INE N TR — AR E R R INE UL
A BUL AR LINENRZESRTHESN S HASH
MEEBKEATE - ARER T EDBEBIZRINE
EEBAFNEEANREENINE RSB BT N
YT - Sfe LR il At T BB R OO SRT TR E
SNEEARE A K51 » A A J5 0K R A R ER E SN
R

R B A% L B

RE BRI HIfUREFEZE L IR E IS ERE
BAEE - ANEE R EARERE - EIRER
B AfURERZB AT ER  EERIEERE
RENEZ B LPERMAMZE BN 2009 G %M
F22 37 (B PO A A T 2 5 7R e PR M B 2 R (B AR e
BRHINBRTE - MERRERELEA A B THEE
B A A TR A P N B LR ZE o S B Il T
E—ERRE LR EAREfUHERRBRE
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MAJOR CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, certain aircraft of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately RMB53,062 million
(2010: certain aircraft and advance payments for aircraft of
RMB49,063 million) were mortgaged under certain loans or certain
lease agreements..

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RMB65,040 million (2010: RMB76,615 million). Of
such amounts, RMB61,250 million related to the acquisition of
aircraft and related flight equipment and RMB3,790 million for other
projects.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had capital commitments as
follows:

EXREEEH

R2011F12A31 8 AEEEEREREAARE
530.62 BT ZMEE H I BER TER LA EH
ERIEIRR (2010F « BT REERETBENRES
AR 490.631BTT) °

BAmRBAAE

AR

KEBR2011FE12 A3 BNEREEOARE
650.4012 7L (2010F : AR ¥ 766.15187T)  H
FRANBEREERITREBELHAARE612.50F
JC MARAEEEMIBR L AAREK37.90ETT °

MR2011912 318 @ REBEBATEAREAE !

2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
AREBER ARBEET
Authorised and contracted for EREREHH
Capital contributions to a subsidiary HF QBRI E RIE 120 -
Capital contributions for acquisition
of interests in associates BEE S QR IRIENIREAE 119 -
Share of capital commitments
of a jointly controlled entity JEIGE &R R E A EE 27 14
266 14

Contingent Liabilities
Details of contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in note 53 to
the financial statements prepared under IFRSs.

HA A |
REE 2 A B EFIE TSP RBIR B RS 4R
ARBLE B IS R R MR 53 -
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The Board hereby presents this Annual Report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 of the
Group to the shareholders of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, OPERATING RESULTS AND
FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group is principally engaged in airline operations. The Group
also operates certain airline related businesses, including provision of
aircraft maintenance and air catering services. The Group is one of
the largest airlines in China. In 2011, the Group ranked first among
all Chinese airlines in terms of number of passengers carried, number
of scheduled flights per week, number of hours flown, number of
routes and size of aircraft fleet. The Group has prepared the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 in accordance
with IFRSs. Please refer to pages 58 to 173 of this Annual Report for
details.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
prepared under IFRSs for the five-year period ended 31 December
2011 are set out on pages 177 and 178 of this Annual Report.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid during the year ended 31 December
2011 (2010: nil).

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB2.00
(inclusive of applicable tax) per 10 shares for the year ended 31
December 2011, totalling approximately RMB1,963,513,400 based
on the Company’s 9,817,567,000 issued shares. A resolution for
the dividend payment will be submitted for consideration at the
2011 annual general meeting of the Company. The dividend will
be denominated and declared in RMB and payable in RMB to
shareholders of A share, and in HKD to shareholders of H share. The
profit distribution proposal is subject to shareholders’ approval at the
general meeting.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group are set out in note 35 to the financial statements prepared
under IFRSs.

INTEREST CAPITALISATION

For the year ended 31 December 2011, RMB205 million (2010:
RMB186 million) was capitalised as the cost of construction in
progress and property, plant and equipment in the financial
statements prepared under IFRSs.

HEFHNE
Report of the Directors

ARFEZGERNLBERREZAEEBRE_ZT
——HF T A=+ HILZHEEREEZOIB
W

FTRER KEXEERMBRR

REBBRCEMTEER XN - BEEE MRy
EHAMMET - RIEREREEE M TRER
o REBRPEZSANMEAAZ — - U _F
——FMREESHE FRETHEREE  RiT/N
B MARIGEUAR BB IRETE - AEBERBED
e N EREERE — - AEEIRBERI RS 2R
BEHEE T ——F+ A=+ HILFEMNIB
WK FER2EAFERESES8AE 1738 ©

AEMBREE

rEFRE-_Z—F+_A=1+—HBIWRAESE
EREE T EREEARRNESE EEREEDN
BEAENAFEEREFE177ARE 1788 °

Eﬁ z%s

ARREBE-ZT——F+-A=t—RHIFER
WEREFHRE (ZT—FF : &) -

EFEREABE_T —FH_A=FTHIEFE
IREBERT B A4 AR E1,963,513,400 7T © 2R A
223171 9,817,567,000 %51 » & 1 A% K A% =
BARE2ITL(ER) - BEREMEREFRBEER
FARB ZE——FERRAS FLAEZ - REH
NAREAERER » UAREEABRBES A
LUBEE R H B SR S » BitFE o BCTEZR A &
NEIREREHHE -

RITERRHMER

AR B R ANEE 2 RITER M EMERF B TR
REPR B R AR L O B TS R M 5L 35 ©

BEXR2FE

HE_Z——F+_A=+—HILFE  rEEK
BRI SR EEANEE MG AER TR YE
BEh&ENEER/ARE205E8T(ZF—
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China Southern Airlines Company Limited
Annual Report 2011

HREGF S
Report of the Directors

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group and
movements of property, plant and equipment during the year ended
31 December 2011 are set out in note 21 to the financial statements
prepared under IFRSs.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's purchases from the largest supplier for the year
represented approximately 25.5% of the Group'’s total purchases.
Purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for an aggregate
of approximately 37.7% of the Group’s total purchases in 2011.
At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in these five largest suppliers.

The Group’s aggregate turnover with its five largest customers did
not exceed 30% of the Group's total turnover in 2011.

TAXATION

Details of taxation of the Company and the Group are set out in
notes 16 and 28 to the financial statements prepared under IFRSs.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 46 to the financial statements prepared
under IFRSs.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had an aggregate of 71,696
employees (2010: 65,085).

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is principally
set up by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications,
competence and the Group’s operating results.

The emolument policy of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are recommended by the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee to the Board, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics in accordance with the “Administrative Measures on
Remuneration of Directors” and “Administrative Measures on
Remuneration of Senior Management”.

On 30 November 2011, the Company’s General Meeting approved
the “H Share Appreciation Rights Scheme of China Southern Airlines
Company Limited” with an aim to provide medium to long term
incentive to certain Directors, senior management, managerial
personnel and key technical of the Company and promote the
continuous development of the business of the Group, details of the
scheme is set out in note 48(c) to the financial statements prepared
under IFRSs.

M - BERRE

ARBRAEEHE T ——F+_A=+—H1It
FREZME - BE K& EREZEIEN T HNIRE
PRI TSI R R I IR R 21 -

EREFFNHER

AEBAFERAREERBROGAEERE
AEFEM25.5% - A RASRAHERRBEEATL
HAEE T ——FRBABN3TT7% - AFE
N ARRES EBBALHEARR(BES
PN BEBARTES% A ERRAE) EAEER
(Bl & A LR v P R A (T 4R

AEBRGAERATFHEEBATUNBBA
EE T ——FEEERTEN30% °

BiIE

AARRAEBRIE Z 5 TSN IEBR B 7SR
AR B I TSR R MIFE 16 228 ©
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Details of other employees’ retirement and housing benefits are set
out in notes 12 and 48 to the financial statements prepared under
IFRSs.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 59 to the financial statements prepared under IFRSs.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Change in Share Capital
There was no change in the share capital of the Company in 2011.

Share Capital Structure
As at 31 December 2011, the share capital of the Company
comprised the following:

HHEHEE
Report of the Directors

BREME TRARSF I MEERN ZHBTIER
R BIER B 7 o 5 A AR B A A TR M S 12 J248
o) PN

ARBRE Z M B QA E TSN IR BER M 5R
EER R BN B TS R ML 59

IRA G5B
IR B
R-T——F » ARBBRAY E(ERAED -
BAREE

R-F——E+ZA=+—0  ARANBREDE
BATRRAR -

Approximate

percentage
Type of Shares Number of Shares of total share capital
R 4% % 51 R BE HIERABHNE DL
1. A Shares with selling restrictions ARG AR 845,050,000 8.61%
2. HShares H A% 2,794,917,000 28.47%
3. A Shares without selling restrictions R & 1§ 14FH) AR 6,177,600,000 62.92%
Total issued Shares PR S 9,817,567,000 100.00%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, to the knowledge of the Directors,
chief executives and Supervisors of the Company, the following
persons (other than the Directors, chief executive or Supervisors
of the Company) had interests and short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"):

FERR

RZE——F+ZA=1T—H RARFES &
RITBABRESEHMM  BRARFES - BRTH
ABREE 7MY Tl A TR B2 IR0 A8
MG PR RE(EF RAEBRANE 336 KFEE
EHARRRRERECMAAS R ERSAE 1
T

% of the total
% of the % of the issued share
Name of Type of Number of total issued total issued capital of
shareholder Capacity Share Shares held A Shares HShares  the Company
NEB BT BIECRT HIERAT
AREH HR#EE BRIRA
RR®E 5% RER FrisRHEE MEDL iR E R
CSAHC (Note 1) Beneficial owner A Share 4,145,050,000 (L) 59.02% - 42.22%
AmER (1) Interest in controlled corporation AR
ERBAA H Share 1,064,770,000 (1) - 38.10% 10.85%
RS EEER HER
Total 5,209,820,000 (L) - - 53.07%
Pt
Nan Lung Holding Limited Beneficial Owner H Share 1,064,770,000 (L) - 38.10% 10.85%
('Nan Lung”) (Note 1) ERBAA Hi%
AR ERAE
(Mgl ()
FIL Limited (Note 2) Investment Manager H Share 139,840,000 (L) - 5.00% 1.42%
FIL Limited (5£2) REEE Hi
Note: i

(1) CSAHC was deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 1,064,770,000 H Shares
through its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries in Hong Kong, of which
31,120,000 H Shares were directly held by Yazhou Travel Investment Company
Limited (representing approximately 1.11% of its then total issued H Shares)
and 1,033,650,000 H Shares were directly held by Nan Lung (representing
approximately 36.98% of its then total issued H Shares). As Yazhou Travel
Investment Company Limited is also an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan
Lung, Nan Lung was also deemed to be interested in the 31,120,000 H Shares
held by Yazhou Travel Investment Company Limited.

2) According to the disclosure of interests form filed by FIL Limited, it was interested
in an aggregate of 165,544,000 H Shares in the capacity as an investment
manager since 16 March 2012, representing approximately 5.92% of the then
total issued H Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, so far as was
known to the Directors, chief executive and Supervisors of the
Company, no other person (other than the Directors, chief executive
or Supervisors of the Company) had an interest or a short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO.

(1) EMEEREASBEREEZEEKREZEWNEA
AN & #£1,064,770,000 RHERAR D R B 2w - E AR
31,120,000 RHAR YRR EEBR AR EEE (58
BEBEITHRASZ41.11%) + 1,033,650,000 f% H A TS
MEEEERHE FERCETHRAEZ436.98%) °
HRGREXARARNAMEREL MEE2ENHBAR -
It BETMEAR AN IR E AR A FIFTHFF A 2 31,120,000
A& H AR AR A7 R 5 e

(2)  IRIEFIL Limited RRMERHBERIE HAZT——F=
ATRBRARELRESHREF£165,544,000 % H IR
DREAER  EARRERE B THIRIRA 2 £95.92% ©

BEXBEESN  R-T——F+=A=+—A
BANTES - BETHASREEHM - HEL
WAL (BEAATESE  BETHABREEZH)
WA 7 2 B 15 AR o B SRR G
% I B S 1601 ) 25 336 16/B BT AR A AR SR A2
B AR -
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PARTICULAR OF SHAREHOLDERS RERER
The total number of shareholders of the Company as at 31 R-E——F+-_A=+—8 KRR EAE L
December 2011 was 281,790. 281,790 F »
Particulars of shareholdings of the Company’s 10 largest RZE—F+_A=+—H ARQRF10HEK
shareholders as at 31 December 2011 are as follows: RSB RIR I T
Shareholdings of 10 largest shareholders +EBEAREERER
Pledged or
Name of shareholders Nature of shareholders Total number frozen shares
of Shares  Percentage  EHHREH
BEEE BREME BRAY BREA BHEE
CSAHC Holder of State-owned shares 4,145,050,000 42.22% None
HmEE EELED i
HKSCC Nominees Limited H shareholder 1,750,064,398 17.83% Unknown
BEPRER (REN)ERRA HERAR R R
Nan Lung H shareholder 1,033,650,000 10.53% None
e HARAR & &
Anhui Conch Venture Investment Co., Ltd. A shareholder 176,600,000 1.8% Unknown
ZHERAEREABRELLA ARRARER RA
Zhong Hang Xin Gang Guarantee Co., Ltd. A shareholder 159,000,000 1.62% Unknown
PREEERERAR AR KA
Ping An Life Insurance Company A shareholder 159,000,000 1.62% Unknown
of China - Traditional AR PNl
— Ordinary insurance products
FEFZASRRBROERAF - EHR
- LRRBER
Wuhu RuiJian Investment A shareholder 144,200,000 1.47% Unknown
Consultation Company Limited ARRRRE R
HRREEAAER AR
Zhao Xiao Dong A shareholder 115,472,200 1.18% Unknown
sl ABRARE RA
National Social Security Fund 501 A shareholder 90,000,000 0.92% Unknown
2EMRESRT—HA ARRBRE KA
KFEAFRRBRDA - A shareholder 80,000,000 0.81% Unknown
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any shares during the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

None of the provisions of the articles of association of the Company
provides for any pre-emptive rights requiring the Company to offer
new shares to existing shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholdings.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed and confirmed
this Annual Report.

THE MODEL CODE

Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors, the Directors
have for the year ended 31 December 2011 complied with the
Model Code (the “Model Code”) for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).

The Company has adopted a code of conduct which is no less
stringent than the Model Code regarding securities transactions of
the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS OF THE
CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Board, the Group has complied with the code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 December 2011.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors during the year are set out as follows:

EERES

HPEE

ARANFANEZRESHT

et

Report of the Directors

Name Position Gender Age
i3] B 3] i
Si Xian Min Chairman of the Board,

Non-executive Director Male 55
Al BER FHTES 3
Li Wen Xin (Resigned on 8 August 2011) Non-executive Director Male 62
PN (R=—F—F/1H/\HFE) FRTES S
Wang Quan Hua Non-executive Director Male 58
T2E FRTES 3
Yuan Xin An (Appointed on 30 November 2011) Non-executive Director Male 55
RIR(R-F——F—A=1HEEZMH) FHITES 3
Tan Wan Geng Executive Director Male 48
BER HITEER g
Zhang Zi Fang Executive Director Male 54
i Swil HITEZR 3
Xu Jie Bo Executive Director Male 47
BAR HITESR g
Chen Zhen You Executive Director Male 60
BRiER HITEER S
Gong Hua Zhang Independent Non-executive Director Male 66
BEE BAUFHTES 3
Lam Kwong Yu (Resigned on 5 August 2011) Independent Non-executive Director Male 68
MRF (R=F——F/| L A HE) BUENTES 3
Wei Jin Cai Independent Non-executive Director Male 62
iR BUFHTES g
Ning Xiang Dong Independent Non-executive Director Male 47
EmR BAFHTES 3
Liu Chang Le (Appointed on 30 November 2011) Independent Non-executive Director Male 60
ARE (R _F—F—A=1THEEZMH) BUFNTES 3
Pan Fu Chairman of the Supervisory Committee Male 49
] BRI S
Li Jia Shi Supervisor Male 51
FRit EE 5
Zhang Wei Supervisor Female 46
RI% £z 7
Yang Yi Hua Supervisor Female 52
Bl £z 8
Liang Zhong Gao Supervisor Male 56
2BE £ g

Since 1 January 2012 and up to the date of this Annual Report, there
has been no change to the Directors and Supervisors.

AT —F—A—AREAFEHEA  FER
EEREEE -
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS IN THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors, chief executives or
Supervisors of the Company had interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case may be)
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of SFO (including interests or short positions which are
taken or deemed to have taken by such Directors and Supervisors
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered or proposed to
enter into any service contracts with the Company or its subsidiaries
which are not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information publicly available to the Company, and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this Annual Report, the Company had
maintained sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2011, none of the Directors or
Supervisors had a material interest in any contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its affiliates was a party.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company entered into certain connected transactions with
CSAHC and other connected persons from time to time. Details of
the connected transactions of the Company, as defined under the
Listing Rules, conducted in 2011 which are required to be disclosed
herein under the Listing Rules, are as follows:

(1) De-merger Agreement

The De-merger Agreement dated 25 March 1995 (such
agreement was amended by the Amendment Agreement No. 1
dated 22 May 1997) was entered into between CSAHC and
the Company for the purpose of defining and allocating the
assets and liabilities between CSAHC and the Company. Under
the De-merger Agreement, CSAHC and the Company have
agreed to indemnify the other party against claims, liabilities
and expenses incurred by such other party relating to the
businesses, assets and liabilities held or assumed by CSAHC or
the Company pursuant to the De-merger Agreement.

Neither the Company nor CSAHC has made any payments
in respect of such indemnification obligations from the date
of the De-merger Agreement up to the date of this Annual
Report.

(2) Continuing Connected Transactions between
the Company and CSAHC (or their respective
subsidiaries)

A Southern Airlines (Group) Import and Export Trading
Company Limited ( “SAIETC" ), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CSAHC

On 28 January 2011, the Company renewed the
Import and Export Agency Framework Agreement with
SAIETC. The scope of cooperation under the agreement
covers import and export services, custom clearing
services, customs declaration and inspection services,
and tendering and agency services etc. The agreement
is effective for a period from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2013, with the annual cap for the commission
not exceeding RMB97,200,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the agency fee
incurred by the Group in respect of the above import and
export services was RMB87,460,000.
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Southern Airlines Culture and Media Co., Ltd.
( "SACM™ ), which is 40% owned by the Company and
60% owned by CSAHC

On 11 May 2010, the Company renewed the Media
Services Framework Agreement with SACM, for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2010.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Company has appointed
SACM to provide advertising agency services, production
of in-flight TV and movie program agency services, public
relations services relating to recruitments of airhostess,
and services relating to the distribution of newspapers
and magazines. The parties have determined the various
rates for providing advertising services after negotiations
on an arm’s length basis, and SACM has promised
that the advertising fees for which they charged the
Company were all based on the prevailing market
prices for similar businesses which were accepted by
the Company. The annual cap under the agreement
for each year is RMB40,000,000, RMB48,000,000 and
RMB58,000,000, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the media fees
incurred by the Group for the media services amounted
to RMB28,621,000.

AR EJHEH40% IR1ER A EEHE
60% 1.2 71 B 7 i 5 [ X AL 1B AR K
DERR A ([ X AR A ALS)

RRRR—_ZT—TFAA+—BEXL
EHRNBER T(EEREERRR) -
BHENERR=F ¥ T —FTF
—A—BREEM - EHETREETH
BIFRERREERERY FAR
1F - EIAREF RS - A MR
RS - BT RIBL R FIRERHEE SR
BEERENER  CERABEGER
ARRRBNESER » BEUALF
RAINFREBTISEREEN - HE
BRHASFENRS ERDFIBAR
#40,000,0007C * A K # 48,000,000
7T+ AEK# 58,000,000 7T °

E—E——F+-_A=+—RA1t7F
E AEBREEREAEENTSE
%85 ANR¥ 28,621,000 7T ©



o [ Fi J5 A 22 e A BR 2 )
R AR AR

Southern Airlines Group Finance Company Limited
( “SA Finance” ), which is 66 % owned by CSAHC, 21%
owned by the Company and 13% owned in aggregate
by four subsidiaries of the Company

On 8 November 2010, the Company renewed the
Financial Services Framework Agreement with SA
Finance for a term of three years starting from 1 January
2011 to 31 December 2013.

Under such agreement, SA Finance agrees to provide
to the Company deposit and loan services. SA Finance
shall pay interests to the Company regularly at a rate not
lower than the current deposit rates set by the People’s
Bank of China. The Group’s deposits placed with SA
Finance were re-deposited in a number of banks. SA
Finance has agreed that the loans it provided to CSAHC
and its subsidiaries other than the Group should not
exceed the sum of SA Finance’s shareholders’ equity,
capital reserves and total deposits received from other
companies (excluding the Group). The rates should
be determined on an arm’s length basis and based on
fair market rate, and should not be higher than those
available from independent third parties. The parties
agreed that the balance of the Group’s deposits placed
with SA Finance (including accrued interests) should not
at any time exceed RMB4,000,000,000, nor should the
balance of loans borrowed from SA Finance at any time
exceed the above-mentioned level. The annual cap of
fees payable to SA Finance for the other financial services
should not exceed RMB5,000,000.

On 16 March 2012, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement to the Financial Services
Framework Agreement with SA Finance, for a term
effective from the date of passing of the resolution
at the general meeting to 31 December 2013. In line
with the Company’s business requirement, the parties
agreed that deposit balance placed with SA Finance
(including interest payable accrued thereon) in any day
may not exceed RMB6,000,000,000, and the balance for
provision of loan service to the Company by SA Finance
(including total interests paid) in any day may not exceed
the above level. The above issue is still subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the general meeting.

As of 31 December 2011, the Group’s deposits placed
with SA Finance amounted to RMB2,493,338,000.

q
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China Southern Airlines Group Passenger and Cargo
Agent Company Limited ( “PCACL" ), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CSAHC

The Company and PCACL have entered into a new
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement dated
28 January 2011, which is valid from 1 January 2011
to 31 December 2013. Pursuant to the agreement,
the cooperative scope of both parties thereto mainly
comprises extended businesses including air ticket sales
agency services, airfreight forwarding sales agency
services, chartered flight and pallets agency services,
internal operation services for the inside storage area,
and delivery services for the outside storage area and
chartered flight and pallets sales agency business. PCACL
charges commission with reference to the prevailing
market rate. Besides, the Company has other air ticket
sales agents in China who also charge commission
at the same rates. PCACL also acts as the ticket sales
agents of other airline companies in China, and charge
commission at the same rates offered to the Group. The
annual transaction cap of the sales value shall not exceed
RMB250,000,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the commission
expense and goods handling fee paid to PCACL were
RMB26,868,000 and RMB 16,794,000 respectively,
and the income relating to other services was
RMB61,355,000.
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Guangzhou China Southern Airlines Property
Management Company Limited ( “GCSAPMC" ), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CSAHC

The Company and GCSAPMC renewed the
Framework Agreement for the Engagement of
Property Management (the “Property Management
Framework Agreement”) on 29 December 2008 to
engage GCSAPMC to provide property management
and improvement service for a term of three years.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Company has appointed
GCSAPMC to provide management and maintenance
services for the Company’s headquarters in Guangzhou
and to provide maintenance and management services
for the 110KV transformer substation to ensure the ideal
working conditions of the Company’s production and
office facilities and physical environment, and the normal
operation of equipment. The fee charging schedule
(or charge standard) shall be determined on an arm’s
length basis between both parties, and shall not be
higher than the one charged by any independent third
parties in the similar industry. The annual cap for the
Property Management Framework Agreement is set at
RMB47,010,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the property
management and maintenance fee incurred by the
Group amounted to RMB34,202,000 pursuant to the
Property Management Framework Agreement.

MTU Maintenance Zhuhai Co., Ltd.( “Zhuhai MTU" ),
which is 50% owned by CSAHC

The Company entered into an agreement relating to
continuing connected transactions with CSAHC, MTU
Aero Engines GmbH (“MTU GmbH") and Zhuhai MTU
on 28 September 2009, by which Zhuhai MTU shall
continue to provide the Company with engine repair
and maintenance services subject to the international
competitiveness and at the net most favourable terms,
while the Company shall make relevant payment to
Zhuhai MTU according to related charging standard. The
agreement is effective from its date to 5 April 2031.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group's
engine repair and maintenance service fees incurred
under the agreement amounted to RMB752,415,000.
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(3) Trademark Licence Agreement

(4)

The Company and CSAHC entered into a ten year trademark
licence agreement dated 22 May 1997. Pursuant to which
CSAHC acknowledges that the Company has the right to use
the name “Southern Airlines” and “China Southern Airlines”
in both Chinese and English, and grants the Company a
renewable and royalty free licence to use the kapok logo on
a worldwide basis in connection with the Company’s airline
and airline-related businesses. Unless CSAHC gives a written
notice of termination three months before the expiration of
the agreement, the agreement will be automatically renewed
for another ten-year term. In May 2007, the trademark licence
agreement entered into by the Company and CSAHC was
automatically renewed for 10 years.

Leases
The Group (as lessee) and CSAHC (as lessor) entered into lease
agreements as follows:

A On 29 December 2008, the Company renewed a
master lease agreement with CSAHC with a term valid
from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2011 (“Lease
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, CSAHC
agrees to continue to lease to the Company certain
parcels of land, properties, and civil aviation structures
and facilities at existing locations in Guangzhou, Haikou,
Wuhan, Hengyang, Jingzhou (previously known as
“Shashi”) and Nanyang as well as some additional
locations in Beijing, Shanghai, Changsha, Shenyang,
Dalian, Harbin and Changchun, etc. The annual rents
payable to CSAHC under the Lease Agreement for 2009,
2010 and 2011 are RMB37,148,660, RMB39,006,093
and RMB40,956,397.65, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the rent incurred
by the Group amounted to RMB40,956,397.65 pursuant
to the Lease Agreement.

B The Company and CSAHC entered into an
indemnification agreement dated 22 May 1997 in
which CSAHC has agreed to indemnify the Company
against any loss or damage caused by or arising from any
challenge of, or interference with, the Company’s right
to use certain lands and buildings.
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C On 14 February 2011, in order to ensure normal
operation of the Company, the Company, based on
the actual leasing requirement, once again reviewed
the land and properties contemplated under the lease,
adjusted part of these projects, and engaged a real
estate appraisal company to assess the rent of land,
properties, structures and pipes under the lease. It then
determined the rent according to the assessment and
re-entered into the Land Lease Agreement and the
Property Lease Agreement. Pursuant to the Land Lease
Agreement, the parties agreed that the annual rent for
land from 2011 to 2013 would be RMB56,329,131 for
each year. Pursuant to the Property Lease Agreement,
the annual rent for properties, structures and pipes
leased by the Company from CSAHC from 2011 to 2013
would be RMB42,975,542.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the rents for
land lease and property lease incurred by the Group
amounted to RMB56,329,131 and RMB42,975,542,
respectively pursuant to the lease agreements.

(5) Connected Transaction-Sale of Aircraft to Hebei

Airlines Company Limited (“Hebei Airlines”) by
Xiamen Airlines

On 23 December 2011, the Board announced that Xiamen
Airlines, a subsidiary of the Company and Hebei Airlines
entered into the Aircraft Sale Agreement, pursuant to which
Xiamen Airlines agreed to sell and Hebei Airlines agreed to
purchase the aircraft at the consideration of approximately
RMB426 million.

Hebei Airlines is a controlled subsidiary of Hebei Airlines
Investment Group Company Limited, which is the substantial
shareholder of Xiamen Airlines, and Hebei Airlines is therefore
a connected person of the Company. Pursuant to the Listing
Rules, as each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) for the Aircraft Sale Agreement is more than
0.1%, but less than 5%, the sale of the aircraft constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company, which is subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements and is exempted
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have confirmed to the Board that they have reviewed the non-
exempt continuing connected transactions and are of the view
that:

(@  those transactions were conducted in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group;

(b) those transactions were entered into on ordinary
commercial terms, or if comparable transactions were
not sufficient to judge whether the terms of those
transactions were on ordinary commercial terms, then
in relation to the Group, those transactions were on
terms no less favorable than the terms obtained from
or provided (as the case may be) by independent third
party; and

(¢)  those transactions were conducted in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing them on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company was engaged to report on the
Company's continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing their
conclusions in respect of the above-mentioned continuing
connected transactions in accordance with the Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules, indicating that:

(@ nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board.

(b) for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe that the
transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

(¢ nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions.

(d)  with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the
maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in the
previous announcements made by the Company in
respect of each of the disclosed continuing connected
transactions.
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Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 47 of
the financial statements prepared under IFRSs also constituted
connected transactions under the Listing Rules required to be
disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
of Chapter 14A of Listing Rules in respect of the above
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group made donations
for charitable purposes amounting to RMB10.32 million.

DESIGNATED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE TIME
DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s deposits placed with financial
institutions or other parties did not include any designated deposits,
or overdue time deposits for which the Group failed to receive
repayments.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2011, the Group was not involved in any material
litigation.

AUDITORS

A resolution is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company for the reappointment of KPMG as the
international auditors of the Company and of KPMG Huazhen as the
PRC auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board
Si Xian Min
Chairman

Guangzhou, the PRC
29 March 2012
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

Dear Shareholders,

In 2011, the Supervisory Committee of the Company diligently
performed its duties in accordance with the Company Law, the
Securities Law and the Articles of Association of the Company
in an effort to safeguard the interests of the Company and
its shareholders. Abiding by the “Working Procedures for the
Supervisory Committee”, members of the Supervisory Committee
organised meetings of the Supervisory Committee, attended general
meetings and Board meetings of the Company, and efficiently
monitored major decision making process, issue of shares and
connected transactions of the Company as well as the conduct of
the Directors and senior management of the Company. In addition,
the Supervisory Committee also reviewed and issued its opinions on
regular reports of the Company.

I. PARTICULARS OF THE WORK OF THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee of the Company held six meetings
in 2011, details of which were as follows:

() The Sixth Session of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company held the second meeting on 17 March 2011,
details of which were as follows:

Report on preparation and auditing of the 2010 financial
report of the Company was heard; Report on 2010
internal assessment report of the Company was heard.

(I The Sixth Session of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company held the third meeting on 28 March 2011,
details of which were as follows:

(1) The 2010 annual report (full version and summary)
and results announcement (including the financial
statement prepared under the PRC GAAP and
IFRSs) were reviewed and approved;

(2)  Report of the Supervisory Committee for 2010 was
reviewed and passed for approval at the general
meeting;

(3) Report on 2010 internal assessment report of the
Company was reviewed and passed;

(4)  Report on deposit and actual use of fund raised in
2010 was reviewed and passed; and

(5)  Report of 2010 Social Responsibility Report of the
Company was reviewed and passed;

() The Sixth Session of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company held an extraordinary meeting on 27 April
2011, details of which were as follows: The first quarterly
report of the Company was reviewed,;
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

The Sixth Session of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company held the fourth meeting on 25 August 2011,
details of which were as follows:

(1) The 2011 interim report (full version and summary)
and results announcement (including A Shares and
H Shares) were reviewed; and

(2) The "Report on Deposit and Actual Use of Fund
Raised in the First-half of 2011 of China Southern
Airlines Company Limited” was reviewed;

The Sixth Session of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company held the fifth meeting on 29 September 2011,
details of which were as follows:

The “Report on H Share Appreciation Plan of China
Southern Airlines Company Limited” and “Opinion on
Assessment on Initial Grant of H Share Appreciation
Plan of China Southern Airlines Company Limited” were
reviewed,;

The Sixth Session of the Supervisory Committee of
the Company held an extraordinary meeting on 27
October 2011 to review the third quarterly report of the
Company.

THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE'S
INDEPENDENT OPINION:

U

(N

The Supervisory Committee of the Company considered
that, the Board implemented its work in 2011 in strict
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as
well as the requirements of the Articles of Association
of the Company, and carried out its operation in
accordance with laws to ensure that the Company
would grow in a healthy, steady and sustainable manner.
The Company’s senior management including Directors
and President have performed their duties diligently
in accordance with laws. The Supervisory Committee
is not aware of any behaviors in violation of laws,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association
or which will result in an impairment of the Company’s
benefits and shareholders’ interests in the course of their
work.

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is of the
opinion that the financial management system and
relevant internal control systems of the Company are
sound and complete and implemented effectively.
The preparation, review and reporting of the financial
reports of the Company as well as the audit of the
financial statements of the Company by its auditors
were conducted effectively in accordance with laws
and regulations and the various requirements of the
Company. The contents of the financial reports of the
Company completely and truly reflect the financial
position and operating results of the Company for 2011,
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and there is no material omission of information and
false statements. None of the personnel responsible for
the preparation and auditing of the Annual Report of
the Company was found to be in violation of relevant
provisions of laws and regulations. The unqualified
opinions on the financial report of the Company
for 2011 issued by KPMG Huazhen Certified Public
Accountants (the domestic auditor) and KPMG Certified
Public Accountants (the international auditor) are
objective and fair.

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is of the
opinion that the Company has been in compliance with
the relevant stipulations of the “Management System of
the Proceeds”. In accordance with the use of proceeds
as stated in the application document relating to the
non-public issue of A shares by the Company, the
deposit, use and management of proceeds were not
found to be in violation of the “Management System
of the Proceeds” and the “Administrative Measures for
Proceeds of Companies Listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange”.

The Supervisory Committee of the Company had
reviewed all the significant acquisition and disposal
of assets by the Company, and was in the opinion
that significant acquisition and disposal of assets by
the Company had undergone corresponding approval
procedures in strict compliance with the requirements
of the laws, regulations and the Articles of Association.
They were all disclosed strictly in accordance with the
listing rules of the jurisdictions in which the Company
are listed, and the pricing of those transactions was
based on appraised value conducted after an arm’s
length negotiation. There were no insider dealings
and the transactions were conducted in the interests
of the shareholders, especially the medium to minority
shareholders of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is of the
opinion that, all connected shareholders and connected
Directors of the Company had abstained from voting on
the related matters in general meetings and meetings of
the Board. The connected transactions were conducted
at fair market prices without prejudice to the interests of
the Company and its medium to minority shareholders.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee

Pan Fu

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Guangzhou, the PRC
29 March 2012
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It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid corporate
governance framework is essential to the sustained development
of the Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value. The
Company has always strived to strictly comply with the regulatory
requirements of the China Securities Regulatory Commission, the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, the Stock Exchange, the New York
Stock Exchange Inc. and the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission, and is committed to attaining and maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and adopts principles of
corporate governance emphasizing a quality board, accountability to
all stakeholders, open communication and fair disclosure.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company, and considers that the Company has applied the
principles of and complied with the Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2011, and adopted sound governance and disclosure
practices accordingly.

Below are the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company.

THE BOARD

The Board manages the Company'’s affairs on behalf of shareholders
with the objective of enhancing the shareholder value. The Board,
headed by the Chairman, is responsible for the formulation and
the approval of the Group’s development and business strategies
and policies, approval of annual budgets and business plans,
recommendation of dividend, ensuring a prudent and effective
internal control system and monitoring the performance of the
management in accordance with the articles of association, the rules
and procedures of shareholders’ general meeting and the rules and
procedures of board meeting.

The major issues which were brought before the Board for their
decisions included:

1. Direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. Setting the policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

3. Monitoring the performance of the management;

4. Approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments,
disposal of assets or any significant capital expenditure of the
Group;

5. Ensuring a prudent and effective internal control system; and

6. Review of the financial statements and results of the
Company.
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Under the leadership of the President, the management of the
Company is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group.
The roles of the Chairman are separated from that of the President.
Such division of responsibilities allows a balance of power between
the Board and the management of the Group, and ensures their
independence and accountability. The Chairman is the leader of the
Board and he oversees the Board so that it acts in the best interests
of the Group. The Chairman is responsible for deciding the agenda
for each Board meeting, taking into account, where appropriate,
matters proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
The Chairman has an overall responsibility for providing leadership,
vision and direction in the development of the business of the
Company. The President, assisted by the Executive Vice Presidents,
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the business of the
Group, attends to the formulation and successful implementation
of policies, and assumes full accountability to the Board for all
operations of the Group. Working with the Executive Vice Presidents
and the executive management team of each core business division,
the President ensures the effective operations and sustained
development of the Group. He maintains a continuing dialogue
with the Chairman and all Directors to keep them fully informed
of all major business development issues. He is also responsible for
building and maintaining an effective executive team to support
him in his role. The Chairman and the President are not connected
with each other. None of the other Directors is connected with one
another.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the members of the
Board comprise three non-executive Directors, four executive
Directors and four independent non-executive Directors. All of the
Directors shall hold their offices until the expiry of the terms of the
Sixth Session of the Board. The brief biographical details of the
Directors are set out on pages 179 to 187 of this Annual Report.
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The Board held 47 meetings in 2011, all of which were convened
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company, and
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the individual attendance of each Director, on a named basis, is as HEBRET -
follows:
(No. of meetings)

Name of Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
EENS HERE, T HERE
Non-Executive directors FHITES
Si Xian Min (Chairman) AR (FFLR) 47/47
Li Wen Xin (Resigned on 8 August 2011) BT (R=ZFE——F VA VHEHE) 33/33
Wang Quan Hua FaE 47/47
Yuan Xin An (Appointed on 30 November 2011) RNE(R_F——F+—HA=+HEZ(F) 7/7
Executive directors HITES
Tan Wan Geng (President) BB () 47/47
Zhang Zi Fang (Executive Vice President) oK (BIAEAEEE) 47/47
Xu Jie Bo (Executive Vice President BINR (BABATFEF B TS AR 2

and Chief Financial Officer) 47/47
Chen Zhen You BRIRA 47/47
Independent non-executive directors (“INED”) BN IFEHTESE
Gong Hua Zhang HEE 47/47
Lam Kwong Yu (Resigned on 5 August 2011) MHF(R=ZF——F/\ AR HFFHT) 33/33
Wei Jin Cai iR 47/47
Ning Xiang Dong ERR 47/47
Liu Chang Le (Appointed on 30 November 2011) BIRG (R _F——F—HA=1HEZF) 717

The experience and views of our INEDs are held in high regard
and serve as an effective guidance for the operation of the Group.
The INEDs provide the Group with a wide range of expertise and
experience and bring in independent judgment on issues relating
to the Group's strategy, performance and management process,
taking into account the interests of all shareholders. The INEDs
represent one-third of the Board. One INED, Gong Hua Zhang, has
the appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or related
financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. Pursuant to the guidelines on independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board has received an annual
independence confirmation from each INED and considers that all
the INEDs are independent. In addition, their extensive experience in
business and finance are very important to the Company’s successful
development. In 2011, the INEDs expressed their views and opinions
about certain matters relevant to the shareholders and the Company
as a whole at Board meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has put in place an Audit Committee, a Remuneration
and Assessment committee, a Nomination Committee and further
details of the roles and functions and the composition of each of
these committees are set out below:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, one of whom, Gong
Hua Zhang, possesses the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or financial management expertise to understand
financial statements. As at 31 December 2011, the Audit Committee
is chaired by Gong Hua Zhang with Wei Jin Cai and Ning Xiang Dong
as the members of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice if necessary.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in compliance
with the provision of C.3.3 of the Code, and applicable policies,
rules and regulations that the Company is subject to. Under its
terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required, amongst other
things, to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to
review the Group's interim results and annual financial statements,
to monitor compliance with statutory and listing requirements,
to review the scope, if necessary, to engage independent legal
or other advisers as it determines is necessary and to perform
investigations. In addition, the Audit Committee also examines the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls, which involves
regular reviews of the internal controls of various corporate
structures and business processes on a continuous basis, and takes
into account their respective potential risks and severity, in order to
ensure the effectiveness of the Company’s business operations and
the realization of its corporate objectives and strategies. The scope
of such examinations and reviews includes finance, operations,
regulatory compliance and risk management. The Audit Committee
also reviews the Company'’s internal audit plan, and submits relevant
reports and concrete recommendations to the Board on a regular
basis.

The Audit Committee held seven meetings in 2011. The Audit
Committee has performed all its obligations under their terms of
reference. The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee
is as follows:
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Members of the Audit Committee

(No. of meetings)
Attended/Eligible to attend

ZEEWB HEREPE R B
Gong Hua Zhang (Chairman) BEE(F/E) 77
Wei Jin Cai R A 717
Ning Xiang Dong EAR 717
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee reviewed the performance, independence
and objectivity of the Company’s auditors and was satisfied with the
results.

The Audit Committee concludes that the independence of the
auditors of the Company has not been compromised by non-audit
services provided for the Group.

The following table sets forth the type of, and fees for, the principal
audit services and non-audit services provided by the Company’s
external auditor, KPMG to the Group in 2010 and 2011:
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SN R BLEm

BB ERARARBEINRE - BIER
BB HERRE -

B R ERBHNEREAR BB A REEE
TTIRRA IR BB EB I -

TREJIARBINEZHMEFSEN _—T—FFR
— T —FRARERHRZ FREFRE RIEET
ARISHE R MR

2011 2010

RMB Million RMB Million

AR¥BEER AREBHET

Audit fees FiBA 10 12
Non-audit fees JEEER 3 2
Total A&t 13 14

REMUNERATION AND ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2011, the Remuneration and Assessment
Committee comprises three members and chaired by Ning Xiang
Dong (INED) together with Wang Quan Hua (non-executive Director)
and Gong Hua Zhang (INED) as members.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment
Committee are to make recommendations on the remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management of the
Company, to establish regular and transparent procedures on
remuneration policy development and improvement and submit
the Company’s “Administrative Measures on Remuneration of
Directors” and “Administrative Measures on Remuneration of Senior
Management”. In particular, the Remuneration and Assessment
Committee has the duty to ensure that the Directors or any of their
associates shall not be involved in the determination of their own
remuneration packages.

The Remuneration and Assessment Committee held two meetings
in 2011, which was held according to its rules and procedures. The
attendance of each member is as follows.

FMREZESS

R-ZE——F+-_A=1—0  ¥MREZZES
B=%KE  ABYIFMTEFTEARETER -
IR BRI RIFNTEST T2 E B IFTT
EFEREE -

FHMEEZZBENBARERARREHREES
E=EEEANSMFHIMERE RRBRMAER 3Ll
TE BREACE B M BOR RS IE AR R BB PR E AR FF © JA
KRR ASEBCESHME IZHIRIA RS RE R
ABHMEEFE) FHEZERZEGLHER
RERE - ARRITES R TABHALSE
EEHEB FHHH -

FHEEZZBEN _T——FETMAGHE T
BERORBETIFRARERR - AT &K
B2 HREREMR -

Members of Remuneration
and Assessment Committee

(No. of meetings)
Attended/Eligible to attend

FHEEREEERE HERE e ERE
Ning Xiang Dong (Chairman) EAR(EE) 2/2
Wang Quan Hua FaE 2/2
Gong Hua Zhang BES 22
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The Remuneration and Assessment Committee consulted, when
appropriate, the Chairman and/or the President about its proposals
relating to the remuneration of other executive Directors. The
Remuneration and Assessment Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and professional advice is available
if necessary. The Remuneration and Assessment Committee is also
responsible for assessing performance of executive Directors and
approving the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts. The
Remuneration and Assessment Committee has performed all its
responsibilities under its terms of reference in 2011.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2011, the Nomination Committee consists of
three members, including Si Xian Min as chairman and Gong Hua
Zhang (INED) and Wei Jin Cai (INED) as members. The responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to
the Board in respect of the size and composition of the Board based
on the operational activities, assets and shareholding structure
of the Company; study the selection criteria and procedures of
Directors and executives and give advice to the Board; identify
qualified candidates for Directors and executives; investigate and
propose candidates for Directors and managers and other senior
management members to the Board.

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations as well as the
provisions of the articles of association of the Company, the
Nomination Committee shall study and resolve on the selection
criteria, procedures and terms of office for Directors and managers
with reference to the Company’s actual situation. Any resolution
made in this regard shall be filed and proposed to the Board for
approval and shall be implemented accordingly. The Nomination
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and independently engage intermediate agencies to provide
professional advice on its proposals if necessary.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting in 2011. The
Nomination Committee has performed all its obligations under their
terms of reference in 2011. The attendance of each member of the
Nomination Committee is as follows:

YR EZEZ B A ERREMNITE RO T
BREDASERNE HBEE - WERHFMER
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BenNRERRREAREEEDEN BERE
M EEBHEFENRENBRNESTSRLE
& HIRER  LEASERRENERN - XA
EZERIES  BZRSABRNERNEEAR
AR BHESREATLBE A RETESLIRE
ERAREARFEFEEINEMCIAERAR
ETREWIRDES
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BAARREREBR  IERARNES  KIEAR

VERIGM  BERANEBER - WEORER
BEVIRREESRGB  WERER - REEES
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VEE - AIBVEFTFNMHESERFERERXE
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Members of the Nomination Committee

(No. of meetings)
Attended/Eligible to attend
HERE, LR

REEEERE
Si Xian Min (Chairman) RIBR (/)
Gong Hua Zhang HEE

Wei Jin Cai 2R

11
11
11
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

Directors’ interests in the securities of the Company as of 31
December 2011 are disclosed on pages 29 to 45 of the Report of
the Directors in this Annual Report. Having made specific enquiries
with all the Directors and Supervisors, they confirmed that the
Directors had for the year ended 31 December 2011 complied with
the Model Code. The code of conduct adopted by the Company
regarding securities transactions by Directors and Supervisors is no
less stringent than the Model Code.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities of the
Directors in relation to the financial statements, should be read in
conjunction with, but distinguished from, the reports prepared by
the auditors of the Company, which acknowledges the reporting
responsibilities of the Group'’s auditors.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of periodic
accounts for each financial year which should give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, results and cash flows of the Group
during that period.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
KPMG, are set out on pages 56 to 57. The Directors consider that
in preparing the financial statements, the Group uses appropriate
accounting policies that are consistently applied, and that all
applicable accounting standards are followed.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with PRC laws and regulations
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has an overall responsibility for the Group’s internal
control system and its effectiveness. The Board has existing process
to identify, assess and manage major risks to which Group is
exposed. It is part of the process to renew the internal control system
in case of changes in operating environment or regulation.

The Board has conducted a review of, and is satisfied with the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control system for the financial
year ended 31 December 2011.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of China
Southern Airlines Company Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Southern Airlines Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 173,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2011, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

The People’s Republic of China

29 March 2012
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(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(DL B Jy B4

(Expressed in Renminbi)
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Consolidated Income Statement
% 2011 4F 12 J1 31 H IL4FFE For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
MaE ARMEERLT ARKBEBET
Operating revenue AN
Traffic revenue EUA 4 87,252 74,140
Other operating revenue HAbg A 5 3,143 2,355
Total operating revenue A PN 90,395 76,495
Operating expenses ZiEMAX
Flight operations It ER S 6 48,344 38,593
Maintenance HE(EFISZ 7 7,531 5,586
Aircraft and traffic servicing TR K 38 o4 AR 75 St 8 12,337 10,968
Promotion and sales EEREERY 9 6,568 5,555
General and administrative THRERERMX 10 2,807 2,266
Impairment on property,
plant and equipment Y% - WE R ERE 21()) 584 212
Depreciation and amortisation 18 N 5 11 7,689 7,065
Others Hh 1,203 444
Total operating expenses ZiE M B 87,063 70,689
Other net income H AU A FEE 13 1,021 476
Operating profit IS 4,353 6,282
Interest income FILEWA 179 93
Interest expense FMEZH 14 (1,067) (1,265)
Share of associates’ results i3 NG E 24 456 56
Share of jointly controlled entities’ results FE(EE & R RIHE 25 125 112
Gain/(loss) on derivative TTESRT AWz
financial instruments, net (B18) - 58 1 (30)
Exchange gain, net B 5 Was R 2,755 1,746
Interest income on wealth
management products IRAEE A S 32 128 =
Gain on sale of a jointly controlled PEREFEESE AR
entity classified as held for sale, net TE W - P - 1,078
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary BREME TR a = - 17
Profit before taxation F AT A 6,930 8,089
Income tax FEtHER 16 (840) (1,677)
Profit for the year REF)H 6,090 6,412
Attributable to: AR AT FEAS -
Equity shareholders of the Company PN S 17 5,110 5,792
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R 980 620
Profit for the year AR 6,090 6,412
Earnings per share B 20
Basic and diluted ERR#E RMBO0.52 RMBO.70

The notes on pages 68 to 173 form part of these financial

statements.

F 68 B E 173 B TSI A4 757K A4 R B
6_7\ o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

% 2011 4F 12 J 31 H IL4FJ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2011

RMB million
ARBEERT ARBEET

2011 2010
RMB million

59

Profit for the year AR 6,090 6,412
Other comprehensive income REHEMERE

for the year (after tax and Wezs (FTiSii &

reclassification adjustments): BEHHERAERE) 18

Available-for-sale securities: net AL ESREE .

movement in the fair value reserve AREEREZD (12) (15)

Total comprehensive income for the year RELRE W BTE 6,078 6,397
Attributable to: LA AL FEAS -

Equity shareholders of the Company NN 5,100 5,786

Non-controlling interests IR = 978 611
Total comprehensive income for the year RELRE W BT 6,078 6,397

The notes on pages 68 to 173 form part of these financial
statements.

D

68 B £ 173 B FTE MM it AR B 5 3R R My AR A &P
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(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(DL B Jy B4

(Expressed in Renminbi)

g EAER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
J~20114F 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2011

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
i ARMEELT ARKBEBEET
Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment, net M - BB KRG - R 21 87,711 80,214
Construction in progress EETRR 22 15,940 10,069
Lease prepayments TERHEER 1,932 1,743
Interest in associates N ANl e 24 746 309
Interest in jointly controlled entities REE QAR 25 985 863
Other investments in equity securities HAb R ER & 26 166 166
Lease deposits HEHER 583 544
Available-for-sale equity securities AL ESREE 27 64 80
Deferred tax assets BEEFEREE 28 1,300 962
Other assets Hh &= 29 500 526
109,927 95,476

Current assets REBEE
Inventories " 30 1,618 1,355
Trade receivables FEUBR TR 31 2,147 1,992
Other receivables HAth e U kI8 32 4,988 1,394
Prepaid expenses and other current assets FENERREMRENEE 630 576
Amounts due from related companies e NG 39 167 138
Pledged bank deposits BRI 35(g) 72 -
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 33 9,863 10,404
19,485 15,859

Current liabilities mEBE
Financial liabilities TRBE 34 - 13
Bank and other loans RITREMER 35 18,789 9,324
Obligations under finance leases BmEHREARE 36 1,784 1,654
Trade payables FEATBRFR 37 2,847 1,806
Sales in advance of carriage ERGEE 5,299 3,604
Deferred revenue EIEWA 38 907 524
Current taxation S FTSHL 871 1,985
Amounts due to related companies e BAESE A B 5RIE 39 122 317
Accrued expenses TEIREM 40 9,480 9,330
Other liabilities Hitp &g 41 4,314 3,768
44,413 32,325
Net current liabilities FmEAE 51 (24,928) (16,466)
Total assets less current liabilities REERRDEE 84,999 79,010
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(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

PR E AR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
J*20114F 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2011

31 December 31 December

2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
MI5E AREEET AREBET
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
and deferred items RIEZEEB
Bank and other loans RITREMER 35 29,037 31,876
Obligations under finance leases MEUEHEARE 36 14,053 12,776
Deferred revenue FEIEU A 38 1,178 824
Provision for major overhauls NELE 42 1,178 1,173
Provision for early retirement benefits IRFRINE N L 43 89 118
Deferred benefits and gains RIEW =S 44 1,058 1,015
Deferred tax liabilities FEFTSIR AR 28 629 912
47,222 48,694
Net assets REE 37,777 30,316
Capital and reserves BAR®EE
Share capital %N 45 9,818 9,818
Reserves G 46 22,357 16,999
Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company AR B RRELERE 32,175 26,817
Non-controlling interests FERER 5,602 3,499
Total equity ERAE 37,777 30,316

KLHBESN 2012493 A 29 B &R IRET|EE o

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

March 2012.
Si Xian Min Tan Wan Geng Xu Jie Bo
ARKR BEER B
Director Director Director
EZE EZE EZE

The notes on pages 68 to 173 form part of these financial E 688 £ 173 EFFEAI M AN 5 TR R AR ZB
statements. 7 e
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(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(DL B Jy B4

(Expressed in Renminbi)

31 December 31 December

2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
MI5E AREEET AREBET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment, net M - BB KRG - R 21 72,048 66,064
Construction in progress EETRR 22 11,665 8,606
Lease prepayments TERHEER 1,494 1,527
Investments in subsidiaries BT RERERE 23 2,191 2,131
Interest in associates NIV E 24 329 146
Interest in jointly controlled entities RE &R RS 25 483 483
Other investments in equity securities H xR & 26 100 100
Lease deposits REHEET 2 518 476
Available-for-sale equity securities AL ESREE 27 21 33
Deferred tax assets BEFTSTRERE 28 1,251 911
Other assets Hth&E 29 447 471
90,547 80,948
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 30 1,272 1,063
Trade receivables FE U AR X 31 1,859 1,696
Other receivables H At fEUGRIR 1,120 1,260
Prepaid expenses and other current assets A& A REMREEE 433 425
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEMF A B R H Aty
and other related companies 2l NCIE Q] 39 280 172
Cash and cash equivalents BeMNREEEY 33 6,202 7,336
11,166 11,952
Current liabilities REBEE
Financial liabilities SRBE 34 - 13
Bank and other loans IRITRHEAMER 35 14,459 8,429
Obligations under finance leases FEMHEaE 36 1,739 1,608
Trade payables FETBRFR 37 2,194 1,188
Sales in advance of carriage SR 4,694 3,248
Deferred revenue PRIEIA 38 811 471
Current taxation FESFT S AL 298 1,713
Amounts due to subsidiaries B FRRI R EAM
and other related companies BN E R 39 1,379 1,453
Accrued expenses TEIREM 40 6,785 7,388
Other liabilities HithBE 41 3,599 3,259
35,958 28,770
Net current liabilities FREaE (24,792) (16,818)
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBEE 65,755 64,130
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7820114512 A 31 H At 31 December 2011

31 December

31 December
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2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
MI5E AREEET AREBET
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
and deferred items RIEZEEB
Bank and other loans RITREMER 35 22,483 26,251
Obligations under finance leases MEUEHEARE 36 13,242 11,877
Deferred revenue FEIEU A 38 1,074 752
Provision for major overhauls NELE 42 893 913
Provision for early retirement benefits IRFRINE N LM 43 86 115
Deferred benefits and gains IRIE W 5 44 986 968
38,764 40,876
Net assets FEE 26,991 23,254
Capital and reserves BARHE
Share capital [N 45 9,818 9,818
Reserves i 46 17,173 13,436
Total equity EREE 26,991 23,254

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 KAHEZSMN 20124 3 A 29 Atk RIFERE -

March 2012.
Si Xian Min Tan Wan Geng Xu Jie Bo
BIREER EER BAK
Director Director Director
EE EFE B

The notes on pages 68 to 173 form part of these financial statements. 2568 E £ 173 B ATs MO 5 A28 01 7% Rk M9 4B AR 2B
9 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

% 2011 4F 12 J1 31 H IL4FFE For the year ended 31 December 2011

(2 R B 5 o B U )
(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AARRREGES
(Accumulated
losses)/
Fair value retained Non-
Share Share  reserves Other profits controlling Total
capital  premium  DREE  reserves (RHEE)/ Total interests equity
Bx  RARE s HftRE  EFAE Rit FERER  ERA:
RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB milion ~ RMB million ~ RMB million  RMB million
AREBEL ARBEET AREBET AREEET AREBER AREAET AREEET AREEER
(Note (a))
(P @)
Balance at 1 January 2010 #201051A18
- as previously reported A2 H 8,003 4,676 37 754 (3,119) 10,351 2,911 13,262
~ adjustment for the changes  — &3 HIRE
in accounting policy (Note 3) % ([ff3+3) - 445 = = (339) 106 = 106
Balance at 1January 2010 R 20105
(as adjusted) 1B 10 (&E8) 8,003 5121 37 754 (3.458) 10,457 291 13,368
Changes in equity for2010: 20105 EE#F :
Profit for the year REFIE - - - - 5,792 5,792 620 6,412
Other comprehensive income ~ Eftirala - - 6) - - (6) 9 (15)
Total comprehensive income GElineER - - ) - 5,792 5,786 611 6,397
Issuance of shares (Note 45(a) TR % (i 45(a) 1,815 8757 - - - 10572 - 10,572
Decrease in non-controlling
interest as aresult of loss of A FARNLAE
control of a subsidiary A HFEE R ER - - - - - = 2 2)
Distributions to
non-controlling interests AT HERERDERE - - - = = = (6) (6)
Acquisition of equity interest ~ f{SFERARIERE
of a subsidiary from a ~FRRMFER
non-controlling interest e 2 - - - - - = (15 (15)
Government contributions HRERERA = - - 2 - 2 - 2
Balance at 31 December 2010 2010512 318K
and 1 January 2011 011E1818 9,818 13,878 31 756 2,334 26,817 3,499 30,316
Changes in equity for 2011: 2011 EEHEEF .
Profit for the year RERE - - - - 5,110 5,110 980 6,090
Other comprehensiveincome ~ EftAzAME - - (10) = - (10) @ (12)
Total comprehensive income GelizeEs - - (10) - 5,110 5,100 978 6,078
Appropriations 1o reserves RRERRBLE - - - 321 (321) - - -
Distributions to
non-controlling interests DEFHERERRS - - - - = = (122) (122)
Capital injection into a subsidiary = FR—F AR FEAZE
by a third party (Note (b)) (B3 (o)) - 253 - - - 253 1,207 1,460
Capital injection from a
non-controlling interest FRRERRER A
of a subsidiary (Note 23) (Pt (23)) - - - - - - 40 40
Share of an associate’s
reserves movement XY NS [ ) - - - 5 - 5 - 5
Balance at 31 December 2011 R20115128318 9,818 14,131 21 1,082 1123 32,175 5,602 37,177
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R EEERE
(i R 2 P 4 L A 4 ) I\ 3L 2
(Prepared in accordance with International = ﬁ % ﬁ i @ %
Fi ial R ting Standard: Q J e
s Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(Expressed in Renminbi) 2 2011412 A 31 H IE4EE For the year ended 31 December 2011
Note (a): Other reserves represent statutory surplus reserve, discretionary surplus reserve MizE () : B EREZEBBOATES TERHBROAES REAM -
and others. Details are set out in Note 46. R PTRE46
Note (b): On 20 December 2010, the Company, Xiamen Jianfa Group Co., Ltd., a fizEp)  R=ZZB—TE+-_A=-+H ' ARaEEMREZERA
non-controlling interest of Xiamen Airlines Company Limited (“Xiamen Al ([EPIMZE ) FSEERR R EFI R ESEAR AR
Airlines”), and Hebei Aviation Investment Group Corporation Limited (“Hebei AR RSB AR AR ([ ) EkipeE o =R
Investment”) entered into an agreement. Pursuant to the agreement, Hebei Bz bR RAEUNEEERA Y EFIMREHEA
Investment agreed to inject cash of RMB1,460 million into Xiamen Airlines for R#¥14.6187C - LESEPIMZE 15% Bz - R=F
15% equity interests in Xiamen Airlines. In March 2011, the capital injection — =1 EFMZEERITIMEEBRER &=
was received in full and the Company’s equity interest in Xiamen Airlines It - AR B EPIMZE O RR L FIHOEE RTEY 60% B ZE
was diluted from 60% to 51%. Xiamen Airlines remains a subsidiary of the 51% ° EFIMZENREA QR FAR ©
Company.

o

The notes on pages 68 to 173 form part of these financial F 688 £ 173 EFEAIMI s AN 15 TR 3R AR ZB
statements. o2
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

% 2011 4F 12 J1 31 H IL4FFE For the year ended 31 December 2011

(2 R B 5 o B U )
(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(ANRWE R B4

(Expressed in Renminbi)

2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
FtEE ARMEERLT ARKBEBET
Operating activities RETEE
Cash generated from operating activities KEEBFREMA 33(b) 16,187 13,024
Interest received BHFIE 176 84
Interest paid ERFLE (1,235) (1,473)
Income tax paid ETETIERT (2,571) (193)
Net cash from operating activities BETFHNRESRAFE 12,557 11,442
Investing activities REEE
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BERERER
and equipment and lease prepayments HERMNRFTSHIFRIE 1,531 364
Proceeds from sale of
a jointly controlled entity HE— & EREFTSHIRIE - 1,607
Net cash settlement of derivative PTESRIAR
financial instruments RSB FEE (12) 61)
Dividends received from associates L 2Bk N mIRR B 53 =
Dividends received from
a jointly controlled entity KEIEEREIRE 3 10
Dividends received from other investments U B E 3% ER% B 26/27 10 13
Loans repaid by an associate W EI5E & R IR E TR E 4 4
Payment for lease deposits REEETEHNK (78) (16)
Payment for purchase of
available-for-sale equity securities REAMEHESREE - (5)
Payment for wealth management products ~ REBIREIE R (28,650) =
Refund of lease deposits REHERT 2R 12 19
Refund of wealth management products FI UL [B]32 B = Sh R BB 5K 25,150 =
Capital expenditures BARMRS (20,038) (13,469)
Capital injection in an associate H A B E K 24 (37) =
Interest received on wealth
management products W B 2R B 2 e A SR 95 -
Acquisition of non-controlling M FEIE IR 2 U
interest in a subsidiary — FRAEIMFIRAR R - (15)
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RRIEETF AR - (19)
Net cash used in investing activities REFBNRESREFHR (21,957) (11,568)



o [ R J5 i 22 B A R 2 ) 67

SRR ERE
(e I A 22 U B ) P a2 EL
(Prepared in accordance with International = ﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁ%%
s Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
(Expressed in Renminbi) 2 2011412 A 31 H IE4EE For the year ended 31 December 2011
2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
FtEE ARMEERLT ARKBEBET
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from issue of shares A& R IE B FT1S Y FRIR 45(a) - 10,572
Proceeds from bank and other loans RITREMEFREASRIFIE 19,395 22,100
Repayment of bank and other loans BEERITNEMER (10,141) (24,976)
Repayment of principal under
finance lease obligations EEREUAEaENERS (1,702) (1,505)
Capital contribution received
from government B E AR AR I8 - 2
Capital injections by non-controlling
interests in subsidiaries FRAIFEERERE EETE 1,500 =
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests Sz IEEIAE RS EO AL B (121) (6)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI T S AL AN 35(g) (72) -
Net cash from financing activities RMEEENRESRNTHE 8,859 6,187
Net (decrease)/increase in RERBEEEEY
cash and cash equivalents FORD), g (541) 6,061
Cash and cash equivalents RM1A1BHNES
at 1 January RIRSEEWHELR 10,404 4,343
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31BHNERS
at 31 December RAESEYER 9,863 10,404

The notes on pages 68 to 173 form part of these financial F 688 £ 173 HFEiAIMi s R AN B H5 R a= A4 A0
statements. 5 ©

N
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of presentation

China Southern Airlines Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the provision of domestic, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan and
international passenger, cargo and mail airline services.

The Company was established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"” or “China”) on 25 March 1995 as a joint
stock limited company as part of the reorganisation of the
Company’s holding company, China Southern Air Holding
Company (“CSAHC"). CSAHC is a state-owned enterprise
under the supervision of the PRC central government.

The Company’s H Shares and American Depositary Receipts
(“ADR") (each ADR representing 50 H Shares) have been listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the New
York Stock Exchange, respectively since July 1997. In July 2003,
the Company issued 1,000,000,000 A Shares which are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

The 2007 bonus share issue of 2,187,089,000 shares, by
the conversion of share premium to share capital, was
implemented in August 2008.

On 20 August 2009 and 21 August 2009, the Company issued
721,150,000 A shares to CSAHC and 721,150,000 H shares
to Nan Lung Holdings Ltd. (“Nan Lung”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CSAHC, respectively.

On 29 October 2010, the Company issued 123,900,000 A
shares and 1,377,600,000 A shares to CSAHC and certain
third party investors, respectively. On 1 November 2010, the
Company issued 312,500,000 H shares to Nan Lung.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs"”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB"). These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

(2 R B 5 o B U )
(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(ANRWE R 547

(Expressed in Renminbi)
2HEE

REETMERNBRAR ([ARF]) kA
FREI(AKE D FTERERERRN - BB
Bl MEREE - 58 REER

EARRRMIERREFRBEE A MEEE A
A(EMEE]) EAN—BD AR
19954 3 A 25 HEARZEARLRMBI ([ E )
R AB—RRDAERAR - EMEERIH
B ABFEENEAE -

#1997 F 7 AR - ARBIMHRKERERTE
5t % ([ADR)) (BREETBEEE SR K 50 5%
HEL) D RIE R BB A R ZETER A AL
BERZ G HTHNE o ANARIR2003F 7 A LT
1,000,000,000 i A% » W EBEHR ST
B LT o

AT 2008 F 8 AEHE2007 FERAN RE
AR R T 28 - $£38972,187,089,000 fi% °

KA ER 200948 A 20 H & 200948 A 21
BoRlmEmERREmMERNE2E TR
REREEBRERAR([mE]) EARET
721,150,000 f% A B% K2 721,150,000 A& H % °

R A A 20105108298 2 5l A /& i
EENHEMETE=ZAREEIFAFRET
123,900,000 f% A f% K2 1,377,600,000 X A X °
ARAFF20105E11 A1 BAMEEIFARET
312,500,000 f% H % °

TEESHBE

(a) &#HEH

AP ERER ERBEE e ENLZES
B0 E T A B Y BB B 7S R s 2E Rl AR
2o BRI REERBIE T FTEEA
RERK RIS REER)  (BEERe
SHERDDNZRE o KMEHRRINMFTEES
CREUEBINNFK B BB E R ZFTER A A
FHH _EMRBDAEA RS -

BR @5t f A% B2 B %M SRR
BamEERNERT R —BH2E IR
AEERARBNASFHEERE
X e EESIIR T A&t R E A E R
RV AT MARIER] < BIRR I 5 3R o5 %
AR REMEEN S BOREE KA
HBBREROAFERAREAFENR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 FEEHEERE
(b) MBHMRERERE

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB24,928 million, which
includes bank and other loans repayable within one
year of RMB18,789 million. In preparing the financial
statements, the directors have considered the Group’s
sources of liquidity and believe that adequate funding
is available to fulfill the Group’s short-term obligations
and capital expenditure requirements. Accordingly, the
financial statements have been prepared on a basis that
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern.
Further details are set out in Note 51(a).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group's interest in associates and
jointly controlled entities.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

—  Derivative financial instruments (Note 2(g)); and
—  Available-for-sale equity securities (Note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 57.

K201 128318 AEBRFARH
BEAARK24928ETT HR B
—FREHANBETREMERARE
187.891E7T - FEMR B TEHRAKRMF » S
EERASEMRBESKIR  WRA
AEBERENESUAENEHEER
EARAMAYEE - Bt BEHER 2N
AREEB A AFELENERRR - 5
152 BIMIFES1@) ©

HE2011F12 831 B ILFENE HETE
RERBIEARAB RE TR RN ERER
MAREBRENE AT A AR HRER

BT UTESHERRPHRANZAAE
BIIRNEER BB AMBHRERR
RIBE L AR EMARE -

- PAESRMIAPHE29) &
-  AItHESREE (M)

EEERERENTE BRM RS LR
F) B 755 SR 5% By 1 L U (R RTANRER o
ELHE - EFTMBREFESEHER
MEAMEE BEMKRAERSHNE
WA - BIRENEIRREREN
RS ERNSBRBEARIBRAIEN
A= ERBEHEMERNERIRT -
ERHBEEMBENREEENE
o Fit - BRERATEER BINE LS
it

AEE R BB RAARRSETT
e @A RAZEES  NBEH
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SEHEFI 2B EE HMNEHR - Al
BT EEE HMARARER -

B IR [ 71 e FR B B B I o 45 2 BI R E S
HEISHRARBRERTENHE - AR
BB THEEEZN R - SR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 FEEHEERE
(0 FRAKFERER

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group measures non-
controlling interests at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in accordance with Notes 2(o) or (p) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.
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SEBREBECENTEREEBR -
WML AP RG M - AlELd
ERBAR SR B A RRES o EFHEAR
AR ERRBITHIREE b @EREBE
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K EBRE R 5 M E LN EARERF
B 2ERHEAFMBHRRE MK
o RENHRZAELNARERER
REIE DR EARBIRMERER - EHEH
BARNEEEBRBNEED LBRE

BB

S0 MR M A I 2 ) B SR R
tF AEEMS M EAEELLER
B EUELL 3 01 A ARTSERN i
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ERASRMABEANROERE - 3
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A FENAIE B R AR -
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9]

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in income statement. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note 2(f)) or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity (Note
2(d)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (Note 2(1)).

Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group or
the Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the Group or Company and
one or more of the other parties share joint control over
the economic activities of the entity.

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled
entity is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method and is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group's share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (Notes 2(e) and (I)). The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees,
adjusted for any acquisition-date excess over cost and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group's
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(0

(d)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities

(e)

(continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the jointly controlled
entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and jointly
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the
Group'’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately
in income statement.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a jointly controlled
entity, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in income statement. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (Note 2(f)) or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
(Note 2(d)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and jointly controlled entities are
stated at cost less impairment losses (Note 2(1)).

Goodwiill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

(2 R I A S s 4 R A )

(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Goodwill (continued)

()

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in income statement as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (Note 2(])).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair
value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

Available-for-sale equity securities are those non-
derivative financial assets that are designated as
available for sale. At the end of each financial year the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
Dividend income from these investments is recognised in
income statement in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 2(v)(iv). When these investments are derecognised
or impaired (Note 2(l)), the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

The Group’s other investments in equity securities
mainly represent unlisted equity securities of companies
established in the PRC, these securities do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and their fair
values cannot be reliably measured. Accordingly, they are
recognised in the statement of financial position at cost
less impairment losses (Note 2(1)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each financial year the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

(i) Investment property
Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(Note 2(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(Note 2(l)). Depreciation is calculated to write off
the cost of items of investment property, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in Note 2(v)(iii).

(i)  Other property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(Note 2(1)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labor, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (Note 2(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in income statement on the
date of retirement or disposal.

(2 R I B 5 o B 5 )

(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(DL B 2y B0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

2 FESFEEE)

(9) FTE€MI A
MESHMTEUARBEIGBER - A
A EBEEESFEREHRENTE - EEF

&t

BRnBEEENRENEERE

MBRER -
(h) 3% BERZRE

(i)

(ir)

RE s

BREMFHERERSRDESHEA
s,/ MEREER A E L AEET
I@ﬁ( B RE 2G)) F B Ay L3t ak, iR EE

BEERBEAKARALR » BER
HTE RREEE (KR 20) - 778
EREBREMEENTEEASF
R - BRI EHFRERAEGA
AR WHHENKA - REMF
ERNES AR EE 2(v)(iii) B0
RIERERZE -

Y% - BB KRR EBIEE ARKAR
ERFHTE RORER RSN (&
2()) -

BEWE - BB MR EE B B
BEMBAAR - AR - #FEHM
W IR B K1 %M 5 R R E AR A
ERER) AP hEtERE - A
NEELPINEEREERNEE
P (BRE 2(y)) ©

BELREVE - MERRIEEE
s EE  RABENREMN
SHRERESRE RN ERE
o WHERBEHEE AT ANE
%o



o [ R J5 i 22 B A R 2 ) 75
SRR

(0 8 [ A 5 o U 4 )

(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(DA R Jy ¥ 05r)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

S % e 35 P i

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 FEEHEERE
(h) "2 - BFERRE (&)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i)  Other property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as

(i) Bz - Bk Kk (&)
FEIREME - BEMRERE
MIEFHERFR - EHBRBEEE
®&(IE) - LEAAFTIRIL R HE
PRAS - RIS

follows:
Buildings 30 to 35 years BEEY) 30E354F
Owned and leased aircraft 15 to 20 years BENUNHEE
FrA AR 15E 204
Other flight equipment HhRITRME
— Jet engines 15 to 20 years — A EE B 15Z= 204
— Others, including —Efth
rotable spares 3 to 15 years (PERAEME) 3Z 154
Machinery and equipment 4 to 10 years SRR 4FE 104
Vehicles 6 to 8 years YIE 6E 8

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both

WRME - WS kR EE B RN
MOBTRANERER  EFES
BEKARAG RN EEB T H -
AEESFHEBREENERER

the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, NGB (908 ) 1718 Z ©
are reviewed annually.
(i) Construction in progress (i) EE&IRE
Construction in progress represents office buildings, EEIRRIERAKNE  ZIEEEAR
various infrastructure projects under construction and HEHAMNEEFLTRMORZRE AR
equipment pending for installation, and is stated at cost FomfERETE (FEE2() PR o BlfE R+
less impairment losses (Note 2(l)). Capitalisation of these BRSPS M EBERES M
costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred REBEEEEY LEITER I FERAMREE
to property, plant and equipment when the asset is B K AESEIEERL  MER
substantially ready for its intended use, notwithstanding Ti2RE®E AME « BE MRE -
any delay in the issue of the relevant commissioning
certificates by the relevant PRC authorities.
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in ERTIRETHRTE -
progress.
() Leased assets () HEEE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

IMRAEEE—BRE (B -AR SN
—RIRB)EERE—BRBEHRE
EHY LR EEENERE - AR
M—FHZEMR - AERLHEaM
§-mEEEAYBRALENELER
AHEEE MAEERRFEEE S EA
ErREmA -
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases,
except for land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the lease is
the time that the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset,
as set out in Note 2(h)(ii). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in Note 2(l). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to income
statement over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to income statement in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in income statement as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to income statement in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

(2 R B 5 o B U )

(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(DL B 2y B0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

2 FEEHEERE
() HEEEGEHE)

(i)

(ir)

(iir)

REFHEZER I
HRASEUHERENEE @ &0
REEFEREEMEEEANE
A ESE CEBEALE -
EHNEEFEQE R AURERE
BE MREETSFHEEEMS
EBBEOMARBRANRNES L2
BEREE  EIEAKEHE
BAKREHEREB AR tH - 1
REZEHERRRSEAREEB
HENE FNEEMYN AR EBESD
FTER - RREHEERAEARA
IR BRIEERNHE EREEY R
W A EHERE - BEM i
TEHACERE - pikmE - A
ENMRRHEEERNEEEHIREI L
HEXERAEAZREEEER
RS o

UBETHEBAREE
AEERERAEEREEEER
RBEESERENRARERE
TREEESEATRENARKRE
B YT AME - BEMKE-
mHERENE &AM EE A ERIS
AEMEMHEEARE - WEREIRH
MWHERREEEERERAER
(WARRHARERATERFE
EMMARE)AN AR R
AP A AKEGE : BRR
BERERFREIINHE2(h)
(ii) < WIER IR 2() A5 &
AERRARK - HENRASHERE
ERet A AHEHANES Wi
FESHHIENRE & RIGRIRE
NHEER LR ABARR - BH
SHEBENERFAMNBE -

BEHE R
AEBREMAEENHEERE
HEBAAZEAMBR - BIF
BEMEEERFEMRREEE
EMEENKRSER - KEHER
a8 T8 e 9 BB TS e P9 FE R B 2%
FER A EF N AR R A A KB
7 e REHESEZRENE AT
B o



o [ R 5 i 22 A 0 A R 2 )
SRR

S % e 35 P e

Notes to the Financial Statements

77

(52 B8 A 5 5 Y ) 4 )
(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

((YUN:L2 3 S0a)

(Expressed in Renminbi)
2 FESTBXRE)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Leased assets (continued)

(iir)

Operating lease charges (continued)

The cost of land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the respective
periods of lease terms which range from 30 to 70
years.

() HEEE(R)

(iir)

HEHEEH (&)

ST SR A TR ESRAZ
HEAREH(NMN30E705F) ABELR
EHETTHES -

(iv) Sale and leaseback transactions (iv) E#EIARS
Gains or losses on aircraft sale and leaseback HERUREHEHEELNRRSHEN
transactions which result in finance leases are EANWERER  SFELE AR

deferred and amortised over the terms of the related
leases.

Gains or losses on aircraft sale and leaseback
transactions which result in operating leases are
recognised immediately if the transactions are
established at fair value. If the sale price is at or
below fair value then the gain or loss is recognised
immediately. However, if a loss is compensated for
by future rentals at a below-market price, then the
loss is deferred and amortised over the period that
the aircraft is expected to be used. If the sale price
is above fair value, then any gain is deferred and
amortised over the useful life of the assets.

(k) Deferred expenditure

Lump sum housing benefits payable to employees of the
Group are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period of 10 years, which represents the benefit
vesting period of the employees.

Deferred expenditure is stated at cost less impairment

IR S R -

Hip R ER LR S SEE R
58 IREUARREBEZEK - B
HW A EIRARER - EXHE
RERFUEN R A BER I AFER
1Ban o BIRZIBR T R R
BERmBERNHESMME &8
KB SEEAR - WIRELEER
TRFHEAERETHE - MRS
EBRsNAAEE  ARENESE
SIEEARR - WiRE LB ERNTERT
ERFERETHE -

(k) EZERFA

AEERE THBRN—REEFMHREE
BEARR - WABSED T (ANETE
BHRAFR) #H o

EIEE F AR AR IR E R 18 (et 2(1)

losses (Note 2(1)). HI7R ©
() Impairment of assets () EERE
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and () RIEREREAMEN LT RE

other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale equity securities are reviewed at the end of
each financial year to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

Pk B I B A7 B M S B FE U
FRIARR AN S EERAK AT - R
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(I) Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

(i)

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged declined in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities (including
those recognised using the equity method
(Note 2(d))), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with Note 2(l)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with Note

2(1)(i).

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset'’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(I) Impairment of assets (continued)
()  Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair
value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in income statement is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that asset previously recognised in income
statement.

Impairment losses recognised in income
statement in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding asset directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade and other
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in income statement.
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2 FESFEEE)

() Impairment of assets (continued) () EERMEE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i) EAuEERRE

Internal and external sources of information are AREESEFEREPRL2E NI
reviewed at the end of each financial year to identify MINZBRIE R - AREE NHIBE R
indications that the following assets may be impaired BHIRREDR - s AERERRR
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss EEETHEEEXELSRD (AE
previously recognised no longer exists or may have BRoN) -

decreased:

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

—  Property, plant and equipment; -

- Construction in progress; - EREIR:

—  Lease deposits; - REHESEFT®
—  Lease prepayments; - TENEER:

—  Deferred expenditure; and - REER

—-  Goodwill. - e

IMREBRENR - EEM A WE
SRESFLAEN - BREE R
HENS  mENAKESEES

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of
goodwill is estimated annually whether or not there

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in income
statement if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

is any indication of impairment. FIEH G -
Calculation of recoverable amount - FTEREEEE
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(I) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to income
statement in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (Notes 2(I)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair value
of an available-for-sale equity security increases in
the remainder of the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

(m) Inventories
Inventories, which consist primarily of expendable spare
parts and supplies, are stated at cost less any applicable
provision for obsolescence, and are charged to income
statement when used in operations. Cost represents the
average unit cost.

Inventories held for disposal are carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Inventories (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (Note
2(1)), except where the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in income statement over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with Note 2(r)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been generally within three months of
maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in income statement
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with Note 2(r)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or
the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

(®

(u)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(i) Provision and contingent liabilities (continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Defeasance of long-term liabilities

Where long-term liabilities have been defeased by the
placement of security deposits, those liabilities and
deposits (and income and charge arising therefrom)
are netted off in order to reflect the overall commercial
effect of the arrangements. Such netting off has been
effected where a right is held by the Group to insist on
net settlement of the liability and deposit including in
all situations of default and where that right is assured
beyond doubt.

Deferred benefits and gains

In connection with the acquisitions or leases of certain
aircraft and engines, the Group receives various credits.
Such credits are deferred until the aircraft and engines
are delivered, at which time they are either applied as
a reduction of the cost of acquiring the aircraft and
engines, resulting in a reduction of future depreciation, or
amortised as a reduction of rental expense for aircraft and
engines under operating leases.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in income statement except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the financial year, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exception to the recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
financial year. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u)

(v)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each financial year and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in income statement as follows:

(i)  Passenger, cargo and mail revenues
Passenger revenue is recognised at the fair value of
the consideration received when the transportation
is provided or when an unused ticket expires rather
than a ticket is sold. Ticket sales for transportation
not yet provided are included in current liabilities as
sales in advance of carriage.
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2 FEEHEERE
(v) WARER ()

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)  Passenger, cargo and mail revenues (continued) () JREEE BEMEEREHIHA
(&)

Cargo and mail revenues are recognised when the BB R ER AR R E & AR
transportation is provided. TR o
Revenues from airline-related business are K EMmZE ﬁ%ﬁlﬁ‘%ﬁ’ﬂﬂz)\ﬁ/‘k@lﬁ&
recognised when services are rendered. TSR HER
Revenue is stated net of sales tax. WA B R & R o

(i)~ Frequent flyer revenue (i) JRE EikEEIEZEFEITA
The Group maintains two frequent flyer award $'§l %8 M E S k= 22 A E) AT
programmes, namely, the China Southern Airlines gl HRlER [FEMBAKELE ] &
Sky Pearl Club and the Egrets Mileage Plus, which FEI%E&H*HJ Ak EEESE
provide travel and other awards to members based 2B MR RITESRBERITRE
on accumulated mileages. R E A 22 o
Revenue received in relation to mileage earning REEBMEEORITRAREBEAR
flights is allocated, based on fair value, between BEERTERRAETIRE 212
the flight and mileages earned by members of the HEET AR TE N REER M
Group's frequent flyer award programmes. The value EITHED - ERE)BEREENER
attributed to the awarded mileages is deferred as a 1’E7%ET:’?7‘#M%EL fEAER B2
liability, within deferred revenue, until the mileages NN EEW ARG R o
are redeemed or expired.
Revenue received from third parties for the issue ERREEREZEIETRE=S
of mileages under the frequent flyer award BEENRBERBARKERRR
programmes is also deferred as a liability, within FLGBRE © BIRPNEIEW A o
deferred revenue.
As members of the frequent flyer award programmes BIREBIREREIND B F i
redeem mileages for an award, revenue is recorded BERR - WASHEREFBER
in income statement. Revenue in relation to flight @ ER%E’J%??,&E}J@ETE
awards is recognised when the transportation is HEGBRGRERRBMA 88
provided. Revenue is recognised at the point of B EM IR 8Ng ,\R#ﬁﬁﬁb
redemption where non-flight rewards are selected. BRERTTAREER -

(iii) Rental income receivable under operating leases is (i) # = Er EWE S WA E

recognised in income statement in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in income statement as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivables.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(iv) Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

(v) Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
income statement on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
income statement over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.

(vi) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(w) Traffic commissions

(x)

Traffic commissions are expensed in income statement
when the transportation is provided and the related
revenue is recognised. Traffic commissions for
transportation not yet provided are recorded on the
statement of financial position as prepaid expense.

Maintenance and overhaul costs
Routine maintenance, repairs and overhauls are charged
to income statement as and when incurred.

In respect of owned and finance leased aircraft,
components within the aircraft subject to replacement
during major overhauls are depreciated over the average
expected life between major overhauls. When each
major overhaul is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
is depreciated over the estimated period between major
overhauls. Any remaining carrying amount of cost of
previous major overhaul is derecognised and charged to
income statement.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Maintenance and overhaul costs (continued)

In respect of aircraft held under operating leases, the
Group has responsibility to fulfill certain return conditions
under relevant lease agreements. In order to fulfill these
return conditions, major overhauls are required to be
conducted on a regular basis. Accordingly, estimated costs
of major overhauls are accrued and charged to income
statement over the estimated period between overhauls.
After the aircraft has completed its last overhaul cycle
prior to being returned, expected cost of overhaul to be
incurred at the end of the lease is estimated and accrued
over the remaining period of the lease. Differences
between the estimated costs and the actual costs of
overhauls are charged to income statement in the period
when the overhaul is performed.

RERBEHERZ  AXEFETHR
A2 B8 70 AR B R RMETT RIS -
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(y) Borrowing costs (y) BERAK
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the BEERANREEHREEESRNEREE
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which B EBRENESAEEESERERA
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready AR AR TE B EEREENEER K
for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of Alg Bt - EMEERAREEFE
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the 5|7 o
period in which they are incurred.
The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of BRREEUHEER AN —HoHEEKX
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the AEEEEERY BERAEERE
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred BER RTS8 E P4 B R
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its TEETHARIR B E R - EEFEIE
intended use are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing R EERARTEBREETNER
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the BRI DEFBTER IEHTEHT - BE
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its KA EEE EHEIEERL -
intended use are interrupted or complete.

(z) Employee benefits (z) EEETA

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement schemes
Salaries, annual bonuses and contributions to
defined contribution retirement schemes are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESFBER(E)
(z) Employee benefits (continued) (2) EEER (&)
(iii) ~ Share-based payment (i) BREE(E i Z
The fair value of the amount payable to employee in R e X MHENEBREIZERE
respect of share appreciation rights (“SARs”), which AR EEFREFHAEREEL
are settled in cash, is recognised as an expense with a KALEEZENEE - ZBENS
corresponding increase in liabilities, over the vesting BEMRREERASEHAE - AR
period. The liability is remeasured at each reporting L EENEAESNFEE SR
date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair R o

value of the liability are recognised as staff cost in the
consolidated income statement.

(aa) Translation of foreign currencies (aa) INEEITE
Foreign currencies transactions during the year are FANIINER ZIERPBEIARRITAA
translated into Renminbi at the applicable rates of THERXRSBAMRIINEMETRE AA
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") Rt - SIHEBEIINEEERBEEA
prevailing at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and E#&:‘:H;ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁl\[ﬁi‘?fﬁ?ﬁ/\ﬁ)\
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated E’% o [ i AW as IR TE N E &R A
into Renminbi at the PBOC exchange rates prevailing at e

the end of the financial year. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in VARE S2 iR AN EL A IE SN B B I
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated BERATER S HRHOINEREST
into Renminbi at the PBOC exchange rates prevailing at ER/RARE - UARBEIRHIIEER
the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities HINEEERBBREATEBREAAE
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair BEBAMHINEREBITE RARE -

value are translated into Renminbi at the PBOC exchange
rates prevailing at the dates the fair value was determined.

(bb)Related parties (bb) EBH
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, (@) fEASKELZZ{E AR ?ﬁ IO EN DY
is related to the Group if that person: BHEMEFEABAE  WRZE
A
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () HWEEBEHEIZEG S ERIE
il 5
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HMEETREHEEAZI 5 3K
&
(iii)y is a member of the key management personnel (i) AmEFENESARIABERE
of the Group or the Group's parent. BIEABHIKE
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2 EEEHHREE
(bb) EAE 75 ()

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(bb)Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(b)

AR ERIA NMERIMEF

CRIRERE

AR5 S AR ARRER

(i)

(ii)

ZEBMBEIRER—KH
MEE CEBRE ZMR T
WERTE - FREAMERFA
AR E RERE) -

et PR Lo
¥ABLE(RRA—TH
P8 5 1 ) — (B B8 PO 2
EHABLE) -

MR BBRIAAE= A
B -

F-IBRESTHAELE
B B —FER%E= N
BREo

ZETBRAME T ENERE
TREBNTBHESRMM
IRHOBRBR R AR AT B - LRI
SERASPEMNETE - 1R
HEBREEBEZRE LR
AR

% £ RBX (a) TP AL AR A HO P2 51
L RIFERH] o

(@) AR EASZERE
MEEARZ M EZ i (HHE
SREDHNAREEZABNOL

B o

—BEAMIHRIEBMbFIEEDR
MR ZH - AlRE @R EZREALTE
TENKE -
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(cc) Segmental reporting

Operating segments, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

3 Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs and
one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group's
financial statements:

IAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

Improvements to IFRSs (2010)

The impacts of these developments are as follows:

IAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a related
party. As a result, the Group has re-assessed the
identification of related parties and restated certain
comparative amounts due to/from related companies
balances. As the effect of changes in accounting policy
was not material to financial statements, no comparative
statement of financial position as at 1 January is
presented. IAS 24 (revised 2009) also introduces modified
disclosure requirements for government-related entities.
As a result, the Group has re-assessed the modified
disclosure requirements for government-related entities
and revised the disclosures accordingly.

(2 B I B 5 o B U )

(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(DL B Jy B4

(Expressed in Renminbi)

2 FESFEEE)

(cc) 7 EBRE
Ra DR M SRR N2 WA K 0 #RIA
BB EHMRH TARERSTHR
EEABNMBEER B BRLK - AR
BRD B EANR BB IR R KR
B WA RS BN SRR KR
BEMRE -

S BmEMS BRI B EBELUN
RERBMEERMRGEE - £ET
FIEE - RPRAESER - AEIEKRE
mEEHREN AR EERENEE
FEAMN BRAIEESEAKESHIE
HEITAHE - WIEBERIEXNMEE
DRI E LA B RLE - RIRTHETT
BOtETE -

BT BEREERHR A

BR &5t ERIR B & 2 98 M 2R R 5 &
SREANERT R —BNRE - YR AEEAR
SETEIRE BIRAERR o B - AT RERT EA
SENPBEHREERE -

o B EEEHIFE 2458 (2009 F&E]) © £
Bz

o ERUHERSEANME (20105)
HEBHTELT

o B EE RIS 245 (2000 E(& 5] ) &
AITHEBINER . At AEEY
BB H T T BRI EM T BUARE
W TERTREE T LB B c MR ZEE
SPERMZ SRR ETEXN
201141 B 1 HALEEBGERER I AN FAIR o
W@ =+ YERI S5 2457 (2009 & 5T )[R
ISR T HERB/FEBNCENEEE
Koo R - A E S BT ARRE A I =
BRENETE L IFEELHAESE
2 o
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3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

In the Improvements to IFRSs (2010) omnibus standard,
the IASB extended the scope of paragraph D8 of IFRS 1,
First time adoption of IFRSs, for the use of the deemed
cost exemption for an event-driven fair value. Under
the amended standard, an entity is permitted to take
as deemed cost the fair value of some or all of its assets
and liabilities, when these fair values were determined
under previous GAAP at one particular date because of a
specific event which occurred during the period covered
by its first financial statements prepared under IFRSs.
Previously, IFRS 1 only permitted such valuations to be
used as deemed cost if the event occurred before the date
of the entity’s transition to IFRSs (being the start of the
earliest comparative period included in the first set of IFRS
financial statements).

The Group's first financial statements prepared under
IFRSs were for the three years ended 31 December 1996,
with the start of the earliest comparative period being
on 1 January 1994. During that period and pursuant to
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group's
financial statements prepared under the PRC accounting
standards for business enterprises(”“ASBE”) and other
relevant rules and regulations included property, plant
and equipment and leasehold land use rights at deemed
cost based on the valuation performed by independent
valuers as at 31 December 1996. As these valuations
were performed as of a date later than the date of
transition to IFRSs, the Group was not permitted to adopt
these valuations as deemed cost for the purposes of
its IFRSs financial statements. Before 2009, the Group
adopted the revaluation model for its property, plant and
equipment in accordance with IAS 16, Property, Plant
and Equipment and the leasehold land use rights were
measured at historical cost. In 2009, the Group changed
its IFRS accounting policy in respect of property, plant and
equipment from the revaluation model to the historical
cost model to increase the relevance of financial data to
the users of the financial statements.

During the year, the Group has chosen to adopt
the amendments to IFRS 1 by making retrospective
adjustments in order to eliminate the aforementioned
differences between the Group’s financial statements
under IFRSs and those under the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises — Basic Standard and 38 Specific
Standards, application guidance, bulletins and other
relevant accounting regulations (collectively “PRC
GAAP"). Specifically, the Group has retrospectively
adjusted the amounts reported for previous periods in
its IFRS financial statements to reflect the recognition of
the property, plant and equipment and leasehold land
use rights at their deemed cost based on the valuation
performed by the independent valuers as at 31 December
1996, with consequential adjustments for amortisation
charged in subsequent periods.

o [ R 5 i 22 A A R 2 )
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SITEREREEMNGA (F)

Bt E£AZ 8 eRh T RZRE
I R & 1) 5 B B Y 755 48 & 2 A 1Y 2
(2010 ) N E Hr - 17T 7 BB B 15 3R
SERNE N —[ BRAITRIER I 53R E
R | FDSBRMAR « FER THRAKH
FHEANEERIERREXRARNELE -
AZAE R 15 H B R B 765 R R B ) B R
REFRARBREEBEENAABE
ERESDREFEELABNREMNK
Ao piiRRAERAELEERIRER Y
75 3 5 25 R s 1) 0 B 95 R 5 PO 25 AT
A e L2 AT - BRI REERE 155
HER 0 A FE R R AL A EE SR E K
A BREEMEEEERFERDE
BREA TSR 2E R & B A (B BRI BB B
753 5 2E Rl A 6 0 B S SRR O S B AT L
HARIAY AT 2 Al

INER B B X 4R BB B 75 R 2 A2 B /R ) 9
BRI EHE1996F 12 31 B =18
FENTHHRE @ RF AL ERANE
=1994F 1 A1H - AEBEZBERE
FEMERER R EEEIDK
HE AR R ERFINPSRET - BB
S AEEREIR 19964 12 A 31 H M RHE &
RIEBWE - BELRER T HEBE
RIRERAN - ARFHEEERBENAE
BRI E BRI sk S R B E - A
& E IR BIRR B 75 R 5 22 Bl 4R ) /9 B 75 3
REETEERRA LT EEREAR
TERRAR o A 2009 F LART - ANEEWE -
R K R A BB 2 s RS 16557
2 BELRRENEGRE - LR
BRI S A AT E o 20094 © 7K
EEREFEERBHEREELTERY
¥ BEAXENSZERE  KE
(AR A B 2 B B 5P p AR AL - AT B 7S
SRE(E R B INISE R -

RAE - REBRTE A a5 B 5
BEMEERE 1FER] - WEITES
FE - LUBBRAEBRRBRE T ERE
ERFIIR( R B Ee st R — EAE
BI) - 38T AR ER| - RESEIER|
FEFRTER - ETTERREE N E M
BRE ([FPEESER ) &5 H 8
BHRERZEM LM =R - AEEME © A
& (B 49 9% B B B 765 3 45 22 B 4R 1 A9 B 75
REAF AR L BB FHEIT T B
TR ME - BERRER AR
BB L HEM R 1996 FF 12 A 31 HEYET
HEREENRERA T AR WL
LAT% BRRS RS SEHE T T T AR R o
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3 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 3 BtBUREEMNEGSR (&)
The results of operation and financial condition previously REERABFEEEHRH TR 2010512
reported by the Group as at and for the year ended H31 BB IR R & 22010512 A
31 December 2010 have been restated to include the 31 BIEFEMNKERE - AR
adoption of Improvements to IFRSs (2010) as set out TEIREER 20 (2010 F) B FTM A

below. B RMEWQT
Adoption of

The Group, Improvements
as previously  to IFRSs (2010) The Group,

reported R A ¥TEYER AT 7% as restated
REE (QNPA R BRI B2 REE
EFTE2%R) (2010F) K% (FhA=)
RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREBET ARBEET ARKBEET
Results of operation: R
Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 7N/ &) A% 5 & £l 5,795 (3) 5,792
Financial condition: B AR,
Lease prepayments TENHEER 1,605 138 1,743
Deferred tax assets BIEFTSTHEE 997 (35) 962
Total non-current assets IERENE EAAT 95,373 103 95,476
Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company A2 BIAR R FE (G a 26,714 103 26,817
There is no material impact on the Group’s financial gt 5 22 B B 5F 3 R ) AN £R B Y B S
position as a result of the change in accounting policy as MREREAZE AW ARREHE
mentioned above, accordingly additional consolidated and EBEXR BEABXRNBENM TS
company statement of financial position and related notes BER AR F RS F] Lt BRI 0 BRI B -

are not presented as at the beginning of the comparative
period of these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation AEBRERBEMARASETHIEREBH
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period. FrERE R o
4 Traffic revenue 4 EHRKA
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARMEERT ARKBEBEET
Passenger KiE 81,492 68,704
Cargo and mail 518 R pE 5,760 5,436
87,252 74,140
Pursuant to various sales tax rules and regulations, the Group BIERREEE BEHER 2 48 RIEH - A
is required to pay sales tax (mainly including business tax) to S B /A B K B 5 TR IS B AT SHE R (£
national and local tax authorities at the rate of approximately TEREFBEEN) - BELKRBEA - BIR RS
3% of the traffic revenue in respect of domestic flights and SR % A VB BB 3% B o

international, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan flights.
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4

Traffic revenue (continued)

Pursuant to the “Notice of exemption of business tax on
international traffic revenue” issued jointly by the PRC Ministry
of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation in 2010,
the Group is exempted from business tax on international
(including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) traffic revenue from
1 January 2010.

Pursuant to the “Notice of exemption of business tax on fuel
surcharge for airline companies” issued jointly by the PRC
Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation,
the Group is exempted from business tax on fuel surcharge
income received during the period from 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2010.

Sales tax incurred by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2011, netted off against revenue, amounted to
RMB2,434 million (2010: RMB 1,851 million). Traffic revenue is
stated net of sales tax.

Other operating revenue

o [ R 5 i 22 A A R 2 )
SRR
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4 EHWA(E)

BIE2010F B EHBERFFRE T 2R
CRAMMZER R BB EH WA R L EHAB
Yy NEBBH2010F1 A1 BENBEER
WA (BIEBRBAHE) RBEET -

RIE BB RIS R T ARz
NEPRRMIINE eBEERABAN)  AEE
H200841 A1 BH#£ZE 201012 A31 HHER
B e BT N2 o 1 R o

HE0MF12A3MBILFERBEEZHE
ThAasE A ARE 2434870 (2010F : AR
18.5118 L) » W B MW A RFIER » FEH A
AR EEREZATEZWA o

5 HtEEWA

2011 2010

RMB million RMB million

AREBERT AREBET

Commission income BElA 643 469
Hotel and travel services income B R B b2 AR S UL 614 477
Ground services income b E ARSI A 368 390
General aviation income BAMZE RIFUA 322 283
Expired sales in advance of carriage R B EE 309 249
Air catering income =R mIEA 166 132
Rental income HEWA 121 122
Aircraft wet lease income Sl NN 319 50
Others Eih 281 183

3,143 2,355
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6 Flight operations expenses 6 MIIEEMX
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
AREBEET AREBEET
Jet fuel costs BRB KR 32,675 23,492
Operating lease charges MEMHES 4,654 5,298
Air catering expenses fzEEER 2,073 1,808
Aircraft insurance TRIE(RBR B 201 206
Flight personnel payroll and welfare HHEANETLE REF 4,412 3,420
Training expenses b= = 681 628
Civil Aviation Administration of
China ("CAAC") Infrastructure
Development Fund contributions EMmERZmELES 1,655 1,622
Inventory provision (Note 30) FEBE (FizE30) 141 8
Others HAtb 1,852 2,111
48,344 38,593
7 Maintenance expenses 7 #EEX
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
AREBERT AREBET
Repair and maintenance charges HEREEER 6,885 4,985
Maintenance materials HEASFERT 646 601
7,531 5,586
8 Aircraft and traffic servicing expenses M & E i AR A B
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
AREBHET AREBET
Landing and navigation fees NN ETE= 8,426 7,792
Ground service and other charges HoTE RS B K HAth 3,911 3,176

12,337

10,968
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9 Promotion and sales expenses 9 EERHEEMRX
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT ARBEET
Sales commissions RIBEBFEE 3,521 3,232
Ticket office expenses EZNEREH 1,894 1,373
Computer reservation services BT E 471 446
Advertising and promotion BEEEEHE 292 147
Others EAth 390 357
6,568 5,555
10 General and administrative expenses 10 THREERX
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARMEERLT ARKBEBEET
General corporate expenses BEEmEE 2,713 2,158
Auditors’ remuneration IZE RN & 13 14
Other taxes and levies Hfth & R bt 81 94
2,807 2,266
11 Depreciation and amortisation 11 FEREE
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT ARBEET
Depreciation heEs
— Owned assets —-BEEBE 5,723 5,724
— Assets acquired under finance leases —MEHEFECEE 1,917 1,301
Amortisation of deferred benefits and gains & ZE U5 £ (73) (71)
Other amortisation L fth 38 122 111
7,689 7,065
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12 Staff costs 12 EITHA
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
AREBEET AREBEET
Salaries, wages and welfare e kEf 10,345 7,713
Retirement scheme contributions RORET B R 960 808
Early retirement benefits (Note 43) R RINERNER (H:E43) 37 29
11,342 8,550

EMITEE - #E REIESHRE 56
MHERTHREEEAXHERNE TRAS
BMENRIE S LHME6E 10088 -
A R R E AT 8 A A 7 B T R AN

Staff costs relating to flight operations, maintenance, aircraft
and traffic servicing, promotion and sales and general and
administrative expenses are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately in Notes 6 to 10 above. Details

of staff costs arising from cash-settled share appreciation rights

are disclosed in Note 48(c).

AE48(c) M EE -

13 Other net income 13 HMW AR
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARMEERT ARKBEBEET
Government grants RS # BN 828 553
Gain/(loss) on sale of property, plant and HEME - KEREE
equipment, net and lease prepayments RIEAHEETF R (EBER)
— Aircraft and spare engines — ROt K% 1 AR 25 Eh i 180 (8)
— Other property, plant and —HiE - BE R
equipment and lease prepayments B RFEANHER (35) (1)
Others HAtb 48 (68)
1,021 476
14 Interest expense 14 REXH
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT ARBEETL
Interest on bank and other loans ARAFRNEHEE ZRIT
wholly repayable within five years REMEFRAF B 543 777
Interest on other loans HaBEROFH S 333 263
Finance charges on obligations REMHEEENYEER
under finance leases 388 403
Other interest expense (Note 43) HAbF S (FiEE43) 8 8
Less: interest expense capitalised B BAMERYESRAAR (205) (186)
1,067 1,265

R20MNFEREANEMEFFNEE1.79%
%£2.99%(20104F : FFIFE1.13%E1.87%) °

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates ranging
from 1.79% to 2.99% per annum in 2011 (2010: 1.13% to
1.87% per annum).
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15 EX - ESNEREBRARZHMH

15 Remuneration of directors, supervisors and
senior management

(a) ESMNEEZHM
BEENEEHEZ201MF 128318 145

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration
Details of directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the

year ended 31 December 2011 are set out below: ERFHMoTmT
Salaries,
allowances
and Share
benefits Retirement appreciation
Directors' inkind Discretionary scheme rights
Name fes %% 2B bonuses contributions  Subtotal RELEE Total
% EZhe REMAE  BERL  BHEA gt g | &t
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR
Non-executive directors FHnES
Si Xian Min (Note (i) and (vi) ARt (HEEG) R vi) - - - - - 6 6
Wang Quan Hua (Note () and (vii)) 2 (HizE () & vii) = = = = = 5 5
Yuan Xin An (Note (), (i) and (viil) 5% (P& ()Gl R (viil) - - - - - 5 5
Executive directors #iiEs
Tan Wan Geng (Note (i) and (vii) SR (FHE i) & vi) - 517 300 29 846 - 846
Zhang Zi Fang (Note (i) &7 (Wit qii) - 687 300 n 1,058 - 1,058
Xu Jie Bo (Note vi) R (PE i) - 601 250 n 7)) 3 925
Chen Zhen You (Note (vi) FRi R (3 i) - 601 250 10 921 5 926
Supervisors Bz
Pan Fu (Note () ER () - - = - - - -
LiJia Shi Kt - 601 250 69 920 - 920
Zhang Wei (Note (i) KE () - - - - - - -
Yang Yi Hua hE - EEY) 30 68 80 - 80
Liang Zhong Gao 285 = 37 30 69 436 - 436
Independent BukynEs
non-executive directors
Gong Hua Zhang BEE 104 - - - 104 - 104
Wei Jin Cai Bz 104 - - - 104 - 104
Ning Xiang Dong ZmR 104 - - - 104 - 104
Liu Chang Le (Note (i) 254 Wk i) 13 - - - 13 - 13
Lam Kwong Yu (Note () T (3 () 56 - - - 56 - 56
381 3,676 1410 447 5914 28 5938
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(@) Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration
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15 EX - ESERaREBABZHM

(&)

(a) ESHESZHM (&)

(continued)
Details of directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the EENEEHZE2010F12 831 HIEFE
year ended 31 December 2010 are set out below: ERFHMOTmT ¢
Salaries,
allowances
and
benefits Retirement
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary scheme
Name fees H& o 2E bonuses  contributions Total
2 EERe REVNE HIBTEAL RINER Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETT ARETRT
Non-executive directors FBTES
Si Xian Min (Note (i)) AlRAER (FEE () = = = - -
Li Wen Xin (Note () and (iv)) 230 (T G) B2 (iv)) = - - - =
Wang Quan Hua (Note (i)) F2E () = - - - -
Executive directors HITESR
Liu Bao Heng (Note () and (vi) BN (T () & (vi)) - - - - -
Tan Wan Geng EER - 817 150 61 1,028
Zhang Zi Fang RFH - 778 150 60 988
Xu Jie Bo BAE = 706 100 60 866
Chen Zhen You FRiRR - 706 100 59 865
Supervisors Ex
Pan Fu (Note (i)) iz AGEI0) - - - - -
Sun Xiao Yi (Note (i) and (vii)) TR (P () R (vil) - = = - -
Li Jia Shi TR - 708 100 58 866
Zhang Wei (Note (i)) SRAR (HIEE () = = = = =
Yang Yi Hua HinE - 368 20 56 444
Liang Zhong Gao 2ER = 373 20 57 450
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive directors
Wang Zhi (Note (vii)) 20 (B & (vii)) - - - - -
Sui Guang Jun (Note (vii)) BB (PffsE (vil) 100 = = = 100
Gong Hua Zhang REE 100 - - - 100
Lam Kwong Yu MAF 87 - - - 87
Wei Jin Cai iR - - - - -
Ning Xiang Dong ERE - - - - -
287 4,456 640 411 5,794
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15 EX - ESERaREBABZHM

15 Remuneration of directors, supervisors and

senior management (continued) (%)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration (a) ESNEEZHM(E)
(continued)
Notes: PR -

(b)

@i

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

These directors or supervisors did not receive any remuneration for
their services in the capacity of the directors or supervisors of the
Company. They also held management positions in CSAHC and
their salaries were borne by CSAHC.

This director did not receive remuneration for the service in the
capacity of the director of the Company since June 2011, when he
started to hold management position in CSAHC and his salary was
borne by CSAHC.

Appointed on 30 November 2011.

Resigned on 8 August 2011.

Resigned on 5 August 2011.

Resigned on 24 November 2010.

Resigned on 29 December 2010.

These directors have been granted SARs in 2011. The amount
represented the estimated value of SARs granted to the directors
under the Group's share appreciation scheme. The value of these
SARs of RMB24,000 as at 31 December 2011 is measured according
to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment

transactions as set out in note 2(z)(iii). The details of the principal
terms and SARs granted, are disclosed in Note 48(c).

Individuals with highest emoluments

None of the directors (2010: one), whose emoluments are
reflected in the above analysis, was among the five highest
paid individuals in the Group for 2011. The aggregate
emoluments in respect of the five (2010: four) individuals
during the year are as follows:

(b)

() ZEEFHAEERNARARESHEERNE
ERMAERZF S ERBREMEEEE
BB - WHIESH S o

(i)  HBRZBEZN2011F6 AN mEMEEER
Witrafp s ERSH S - FIEB2011468
EABRARAREHS -

(i)  F2011F 11 F30H FE -

(iv) 7201148 A8 HEHTE -

(v) 201148 A5HEHTE -

(vi) 2010511 A24 BHHT »

(vi) 72010412 A29 BEHT »

ZEEEN 201 FHEETRELERE - Ze
BEBRBAEENRELERTSFELN
AR =L EREREETEE - ZLRBHERER
2011412 A31 BREEAAR 24,0007
ZIE(E R ER BRI EE2(2)i) B = B A AR =
HERT SN ST ERGESLMN - BTH
AR SR IE (A M S A R B PR L P B 3 48(c) ©

BEaFMAL

R20114F » REBSNZEHFMAL
EHRRAEARNE FaiE S (20104 : 1
2) BEENNEESBIEE LMD -
HE2011F12A831HIEFE - K&EE
5% (2010 : 4R ) = H A THAET
B FFIBNT ¢

(viii)

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT

Salaries, allowances
and benefits in kind e FAREYN &= 6,151 4,478
Retirement scheme contributions RIRREF 360 243
Share appreciation rights IR RIL(E 2 -
6,513 4,721
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15 Remuneration of directors, supervisors and
senior management (continued)

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments
(continued)
The emoluments of the five (2010: four) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

(2 B I B 5 o B U )
(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(AN RWE R B4

(Expressed in Renminbi)

15 (Eﬁgi CEEREREEABZEHM

(b) BREHMAL ()

AEBZFFZ5Bx=E M AL (2010
F A7) ZHNSBE DT

2011 2010
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AE A

HK$1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000
(RMB827,900 to
RMB1,241,850 equivalent)
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000
(RMB1,241,850 to
RMB1,655,800 equivalent)

75 1,000,000 7.2 1,500,000 7T
(HEARY 827,900 LE
AR#1,241,8507T) 2 2
751,500,000 ST E/8# 2,000,000 7T
(ZEARY1,241,850 T
AR 1,655,800 7T) 3 2

16 Income tax

(@) Income tax expense in the consolidated
income statement

16 FISHER
(a) EOLFRBRNFIBHRER

2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
AREBERT ARBEET
PRC income tax H B TS AL
Provision for the year RE ISR ATHE 1,516 2,134
Over-provision in prior year FFZEHRMFTIS R (59) =
1,457 2,134
Deferred tax (Note 28) EIEFTISH (FiaE28)
Origination and reversal
of temporary differences T = R A E AT (369) (457)
Recognition of deductible
temporary differences AR [E AR MERAY
unrecognised in prior years AT R ER (248) =
617) (457)
Actual tax expense ERTSHE R 840 1,677

In respect of majority of the Group’s overseas airline
activities, the Group has either obtained exemptions
from overseas taxation pursuant to the bilateral aviation
agreements between the overseas governments and the
PRC government, or has sustained tax losses in these
overseas jurisdictions. Accordingly, no provision for
overseas tax has been made for overseas airline activities in
the current year and prior years.

AREZ BRZHHIRIMIE RIS M
5 AKECREEINRAT T BB
] LAY EEIE i ZE 1 T SE R R R ML 2
BRI KR EBE-—ERIBREE
1B MERNFERNRFRERA Y it
BN ZE R IR



o [ R 5 i 22 A A R 2 ) 1 03

SR EEERE
(i R 2 P 4 L A 4 ) Ea
(Prepared in accordance with International E ‘j‘ % wﬁ Mﬂ‘ FIEE
Financial Reporting Standards) : 1
e Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Renminbi)
16 Income tax (continued) 16 FiEHER (&)
(a) Income tax expense in the consolidated (a) EHABROFAEHER (&)
income statement (continued)
Effective from 1 January 2008, under the Corporate (REARBEMBESEREHE) (AT
Income Tax Law of the PRC (“new tax law"), the Company BB [#F:04 1) 8200841 A1 H#EM
and its subsidiaries are subject to income tax at the 17 o INEE MR AARIREFAF
statutory rate of 25% unless otherwise specified. 1R 25% B EFTSTUERE TR HIT
Pursuant to the new tax law, the income tax rates of RIBFTURIATE - REZEBHIE 15% M
entities that previously enjoyed preferential tax rates of 18% K12 72 20104F ~ 2011 4F ~ 2012 4F
15% and 18% have been revised to 22%, 24% and 25% MABFEEDRIE22% * 24% & 25%F
for 2010, 2011 and 2012 onwards, respectively. KT o
(b) Reconciliation between actual tax expense (b) ERFFEHERANESRAEIZER
and calculated tax based on accounting profit BMEGTENATUOT

at applicable tax rates

2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARBHER ARBEET
Profit before taxation ot A 6,930 8,089
Notional tax on profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable R ABRAT I E B R 15
to profits in the tax jurisdictions MR E BB R EBR T
concerned (Note) RIAE R ETS R (T aE) 1,706 1,974
Adjustments for tax effect of: MR EE
Non-deductible expenses NAMEHI 36 111
Non-taxable income RHUA 9) )
Share of results of associates
and jointly controlled entities R E R R RE ERAIFHEE (145) (42)
Recognition of deductible temporary FRUARTE S ARTER
differences unrecognised in prior years ~ HJ R IKFIE B IE = R (248) =
Unused tax losses and deductible RERHARF AHBEE
temporary differences not recognised RABHERTEZE 16 -
Utilisation of unused tax losses and P AR SF 2 AR HERR Y
deductible temporary differences ARG EE KA
not recognised in prior years TR ER (440) (364)
Over-provision in prior year EFEZEHEREE (59) =
Tax rates differential FIEREENER (17) =
Actual tax expense ERFSHER 840 1,677
Note: FitsE -
The headquarters of the Company and its branches are taxed at rates KRR BB RED R AR PIISBER24% £ 25%
ranging from 24% to 25% (2010: 22% to 25%). The subsidiaries of the (2010%F : 22% E25%) * NEEK) TR AIMFIEH

Group are taxed at rates ranging from 15% to 25% (2010: 15% to 25%). TEA15% £25% (20104F : 15% £ 25%) °
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17

18

19

20

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 includes a
profit of RMB3,519 million (2010: a profit of RMB4,892 million)

17

(2 B I B 5 o B U )
(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(AN RWE R B4

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AN ) BRI IS R

HZE2011F12 A31 BHIEFE © NRARIMERE
HAERBE—FEEINARRB T B BTN
FHARE 35191870 (20104 : FFARKE

which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the 48.92187T) °
Company.
Other comprehensive income 18 Hfttime W
(@) Tax effects relating to other comprehensive income (a) Efbiraslammiias e
2011 2010
Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax  Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount
RatsE MEbikE HEE  HacE MShkE TkeE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
million million million million million million
AR% ARE AR¥ ARE ARE ARE
BEER BET BER BET BET BETL
Available-for-sale securities: HEHNESREE
net movement in fair value reserve M EEGENFEY (16) 4 (12) (18) 3 (15)
(b) There was no reclassification adjustment relating to (b) 2011F&2010FEFEABEHESHE
available-for-sale securities in other comprehensive ERBANEMEERRSHEBEETES
income in 2011 and 2010. MR o
Dividends 19 BRE

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 of
RMBO.2 per share, amounting to a total dividend of RMB1,964
million was proposed by the directors on 29 March 2012. The
final dividend proposed after the end of the financial year has
not been recognised as a liability at the end of the financial year
(Note 54(b)).

No dividend was proposed or paid in 2010.

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2011 is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB5,110 million (2010:
RMB5,792 million) and the weighted average of 9,817,567,000
shares in issue during the year (2010: 8,314,100,000 shares),
calculated as follows:

20

EE22N201253 A29 BESIZFRARE
0.27T ' HARK19.64BTHBEZ 20114
12 A 31 Eutir“aﬁﬁx,% RekE A& IR
IRENRAKREWRAREHRERBARE
(Fft3E 54(b)) °

2010 FEARAPRATIRNIKERE, °

FRAE

HE2011%F12 A31 B IEFEFREARFE
BB R B EREAFEARE51.10ET
(20104 : AR¥ES7.921E870) MERND TR
189 hnkE % 289,817,567,000A% (2010 4F
8,314,100,000 %) » s+& M :
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(02 5 5 A 5 5 Y ) 4 )

(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(DA R M Jy B 0r)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

20 ZRFE (&)

20 Earnings per share (continued)

2011 2010

Million shares Million shares

BER BER

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R®1 A1 HE BT EARARE 9,818 8,003

Effect of issuance of A shares (Note 45) BITARMEE (MI5E45) - 259

Effect of issuance of H shares (Note 45) BITHRRARZE (5E45) - 52
Weighted average number of M12 A31 BB %17

ordinary shares at 31 December &4 #9 hntEe T 5 AR 9,818 8,314

HRARREAFER EFEAYLEALEE
MEREEEER  TASREENEEER
EAXMBEEERA

The amounts of diluted earnings per share are the same as basic
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares in existence for both the current and prior year.

21 Property, plant and equipment, net 21 Y% BERRE  FE
(a) The Group (a) =~&5H
Aircraft
it

Other flight
Acquired equipment, Machinery,

under including equipment
Investment finance  rotables and
properties leases Hft  vehicles
RE&M Buildings  Owned HEEM RORE: He Total
EitE BEN BE fERE GEFEH RERAE o
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
million million million million million million million
ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE
BETL BET BE&TL BET BET BE&TL BET
Cost/revalued amounts: R /3EE{E
At 1 January 2010 2010118 583 6,974 54,837 21,927 11,933 4,126 100,380
Additions i1 - 18 4,921 3,552 1,368 405 10,264
Transfer from construction
in progress (Note 22) FRIREA (f22) - 700 12,665 - 359 41 13,765
Disposals RE = (81) (1,273) (11) (202) (246) (1813)
Other reclassifications HinEH%E 28 (28) (41) = 4 = =
At 31 December 2010 12010612 A31H 611 71,583 71,109 25,468 13,499 4,326 122,596
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1A18 611 7,583 71,109 25,468 13,499 4,326 122,596
Additions pid - 4 2,050 2,959 1,643 452 7,108
Transfer from construction
in progress (Note 22) FRIBEA(f22) - 524 6,975 2,409 7 99 10,079
Reclassification on exercise
of purchase options IfREER
(Note(g)) ENE (M) - - 768 (768) = = =
Disposals RE = (80) (5,380) (136) (124) (241) (5,961)
At 31 December 2011 M2011E12A318 611 8,031 75,522 29,932 15,090 4,636 133,822
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21 Property, plant and equipment, net (continued) 21 Y% - MERRE B8 (&)

(a) The Group (continued) (a) A~&£E(5F)
Aircraft
i
Other flight

Acquired equipment, Machinery,

under including equipment

Investment finance  rotables and

properties leases Hftt  vehicles
REM Buildings  Owned HEEM RORE: He Total
BibE BEN HE HERE BREEEH RERSE @t
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
million million million million million million million

ARE ARE  ARE  ARE ARE  ARE  ARE

=

BET BET RET BET BET AET BET

Accumulated depreciation  RHFEREE
and impairment losses: HEER

At 1 January 2010 201061418 122 1,670 20,844 3,938 7428 2,705 36,707
Depreciation charge

for the year TEENE 18 248 4,226 1,301 872 360 7,025
Disposals RESH - (28) (946) (1) (186) (233) (1,404)
Other reclassifications HiEH%E 2 2 (35) = 35 = =
Impairment losses for the year A& EER(EER - - 189 - 2 1 212
Impairment losses written

off on disposal BENBEREH - - (156) = 2) = (158)
At 31 December 2010 R2010612 4317 138 1,892 24,122 5,228 8,169 2,833 42,382
At 1 January 2011 R201151 718 138 1,892 24,122 5,228 8,169 2,833 42,382
Depreciation charge

for the year REEHE 19 281 4,274 1,917 753 396 7,640
Reclassification on exercise

of purchase options IREERS

(Note(q)) AR (HE () - - 324 (324) = - =
Disposals REEH - 25  @31IN) (136) (53) @7 (3602
Impairment losses for REEEERE

the year (Note (j) EE () - - 526 = 58 — 584
Impairment losses written

off on disposal EEREEREY - - (846) - (46) (1) (893)
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12A318 157 2,148 25,229 6,685 8,881 3,011 46,111
Net book value: SRERE :
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12A31H 454 5,883 50,293 23,247 6,209 1,625 87,711

At 31 December 2010 R2010612 4317 473 5,691 46,987 20,240 5330 1493 80,214
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(02 5 5 A 5 5 Y ) 4 )
(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(YN 23 S0a)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

21 9% - BERRE - FHE (&)
(b) E2F

21 Property, plant and equipment, net (continued)

(b) The Company

Aircraft
45

Other flight
Acquired equipment, Machinery,

under including equipment
Investment finance  rotables and
properties leases Hftt  vehicles
REM Buildings  Owned HEEM RORE: He Total
EiE BEY HE HERE aEFEH RERAE @5t
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
million million million million million million million
ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE
BETL BET BET BET BET BE&TL BET
Cost/revalued amounts:  F{7A& /3H{hfA :
At 1 January 2010 1201041 A1H 218 4,535 43,756 20,690 10,820 2,958 82,977
Additions i3 - 1 4,866 3,552 1,212 297 9,938
Transfer from construction AR IREA
in progress (Note 22) (MizE22) - 621 9,231 - 297 35 10,184
Disposals RE - (18) (1,219) (1) (87) (176) (1,511)
Other reclassifications HiEH%E 27 @7 (41) = 4 = =
At 31 December 2010 12010612 A31H 245 5,122 56,593 24,231 12,283 3,114 101,588
At 1 January 2011 2011451718 245 5122 56,593 24,231 12,283 3,114 101,588
Additions 1 - 2 1,988 2,959 1,443 336 6,728
Transfer from construction AR IREA
in progress (Note 22) (MizE22) - 167 4,231 2,409 72 2% 6,903
Reclassification on exercise 7B EE
of purchase options (Note(g)  E2%8 (Hizt(g)) - - 768 (768) = > =
Disposals RE - (1) (4,027) (136) (87) (171) (4,432)
At 31 December 2011 R20114E12A318 245 5,280 59,553 28,695 13,711 3,303 110,787
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21 Property, plant and equipment, net (continued) 21 Y% - MERRE B8 (&)

(b) The Company (continued) (b) &ATF (&)
Aircraft
it
Other flight

Acquired equipment, Machinery,

under including equipment

Investment finance  rotables and

properties leases Hftt  vehicles
REM Buildings  Owned HEEM RORE: He Total
BibE BEN HE HERE BREEEH RERSE @t
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
million million million million million million million

ARE ARE  ARE  ARE ARE  ARE  ARE

= — =

BET BET RET BETL BET AET BET

Accumulated depreciation  RHFEREE
and impairment losses: HEER

At 1 January 2010 R201061 718 74 1,051 17,250 3,730 6,869 1,991 30,965
Depreciation charge

for the year TEENE 8 173 3352 1216 767 259 5,775
Disposals RESH - ® (892) (1) (76) (173) (1,160)
Other reclassifications HiEH%E 2 2 (35) = 35 = =
Impairment losses

for the year TEEAEREER - - 80 - 2 - 102
Impairment losses written

off on disposal EEREEREY - - (156) - 2) = (158)
At 31 December 2010 R2010E12 A31H 80 1,218 19,599 4,935 7,615 2,077 35,524
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1818 80 1,218 19,599 4,935 7,615 2,077 35,524
Depreciation charge

for the year TEERE 7 203 3212 1,831 634 297 6,244
Reclassification on exercise of ~ 7R E1E

purchase options (Note(g)) ~ EAE (FifiE(g) - = 324 (324) = = =
Disposals REEL - n  (@3%) (136) (25) (160)  (2722)
Impairment losses REEEERE

for the year (Note (}) EfE (1) - - 521 = 58 > 579
Impairment losses written

off on disposal BERNEERSY - - (840) = (46) = (886)
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12A318 87 1,414 20,482 6,306 8,236 2,214 38,739
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12A318 158 3,866 39,071 22,389 5,475 1,089 72,048

At 31 December 2010 R2010612 A31R 165 3,904 36,994 19,2% 4,668 1,037 66,064
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21 Property, plant and equipment, net (continued)

(o)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Most of the Group’s buildings are located in the PRC.
The Group was formally granted the rights to use
certain parcels of land in Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Zhuhai,
Beihai, Changsha, Shantou, Haikou, Zhengzhou, Jilin,
Guiyang, Wuhan and other PRC cities by the relevant PRC
authorities for periods of 30 to 70 years, which expire
between 2020 and 2073. For other land in the PRC on
which the Group’s buildings are erected, the Group was
formally granted the rights to use such land for periods of
three years pursuant to various lease agreements between
the Company and CSAHC. In this connection, rental
payments in respect of land use rights totaling RMB56
million were paid to CSAHC during 2011 (2010: RMB22
million) in respect of these leases.

As at 31 December 2011, certain aircraft of the Group
and the Company with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately RMB53,062 million and RMB43,932
million, respectively (2010: RMB46,194 million and
RMB38,096 million, respectively) were mortgaged under
certain loans or certain lease agreements (Notes 35 and
36).

As at 31 December 2011, certain buildings of the Group
with an aggregate carrying value of approximately RMB17
million were mortgaged for certain banking facilities
granted by a PRC commercial bank (2010: RMB18
million).

The Group leased out investment properties and certain
flight training facilities under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to fourteen years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at
which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals. In this connection, rental
income totalling RMB82 million (2010: RMB74 million)
was received by the Group during the year in respect of
the leases.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property are
classified as investment property.
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21 ¥I%¥ > BEKRE  FHE (&)

(o)

(d)

(e)

()

REEBEREMBREEYHICLLAFEA o
$%Eaﬁ¢ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%

BTRAREM x| - 27HE - b8 -

£ oLz EZ0 - BN Hk &5
&%Eﬁﬁm¢lﬁmmimﬁ%%
THAFEE A3 ETOFE » WHR2020FFE
2073 FHEHR o tEMANEEEEY AT
EREMEZ T - AEBREARR A
HEMERI Y zA THERRELER
BRYHEERE  FHAIF - itE i
HE W - NEER 2011 FARREME
B THS AR 0.56187T(20104F ¢
AEB0.22187T) °

R2011%F12A31H  REEKRAR A
BEREBED R AAR530.62 & 71&
ANE# 43932 (BT ZM%EH%T’E%&#?

TERFHEERHQ010E : DRIAAR
¥ 461.94 {870 A R % 380.96 12T ) (Bt
FE35M36) °

MN2011E12 8318 "EEARSE—
RPREERTNREEE BB TE
EFEAREAAREI7TRITHESEY
(20104 : AR¥0.18187T) °

AEFUELHEERABHEEESH
ERETRITIREE - ELBEEENR
FHH—RE1E14F  WEEREEERE
FIHAE B - BT A G ER
BE - SEHEEHTIESHEGEE - &
SERAFEARELHEERSHS K
AEHEARK0.82(2TT(Q0104F : ARK
0.74187T) °

PRAKEEHEEARNE
MEEDA

REUFETEE
BRAREURHE
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21 Property, plant and equipment, net (continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

0}

(continued)
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

(2 B I B 5 o B U )
(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(AN RWE R B4

(Expressed in Renminbi)

21 ¥I%¥ > BEKRE  FHE (&)

" &
AEEF AN EEEHEARE
W RERENFENT -

2011 2010

RMB million RMB million

ARBEERT ARBBEET

Within 1 year 1R 36 76
After 1 year but within 5 years 1A E - B5FNAR 62 97
After 5 years SEME - 1
98 174

As at 31 December 2011, the net book value of the
aircraft and flight training facilities leased out by the
Group and the Company under operating leases
amounted to RMB33 million and RMB114 million,
respectively (2010: RMB43 million and RMB735 million,
respectively).

During the year, the Company exercised the purchase
options stipulated in the aircraft finance lease agreements
and two A320-200 aircraft were reclassified as owned
aircraft from finance leased aircraft.

The investment properties are located in the PRC, where
comparable market transactions are infrequent. In the
absence of the current or recent prices in an active
market and alternative reliable estimates of fair value
(for example, discounted cash flow projection) are not
available, the Group could not reliably determine the fair
value of the investment properties.

The Company entered into two separate arrangements
(the "Arrangements”) with certain independent third
parties during each of 2002 and 2003. Under each of
the Arrangements, the Company sold an aircraft and
then immediately leased back the aircraft for an agreed
period. The Company has an option to purchase the
aircraft at a pre-determined date. In the event that the
lease agreement is early terminated by the Company,
the Company is liable to pay a pre-determined penalty
to the lessor. Provided that the Company complies with
the lease agreements, the Company is entitled to the
continued possession and operation of the aircraft.
Since the Company retains substantially all risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the aircraft and enjoys
substantially the same rights to their use as before the
Arrangements, no adjustment has been made to the
property, plant and equipment.

N2011E128318  XEBRAR T
DA AR S 35 T R R RT3 4R
& EEREFES I AARKO033E
TTRARE1 1418780104 : DRIAA
R¥043BITRAREE 7 35(8T) ©

(9) RAFE  ARAITHETREHERE
BB B R0 R R 2R A320-200 R i R & 1
EREERE BRI -

(h) REUEMWEMRER  MmEMELER
U EHEMHKREKD - FERZ T
HRREREEMAIENAABEGE
AT (BN IRBEAIRER) - AKE
TR M EREEFHENDAE
8o

(i) 7RI AR FTE2002 F K 2003 4 5 Bl €2
ETBYFE =AU MEBLZHE(Z
D) RRBDBIHE T —RRIKEEE
BIEsZ R D - KA RIERES T4
BEEZSEREARERE - RAQF]
RAGERBERZ - AR2RAREEA
YR —EEEFER - ARRIRBHEE
SHERENBRT  EaESFERZ
EMEARISELE R EEZ SRR
T o AR AR B HEER AR
MED EFARKRERTR - M= 80
HERMA LIRS TR - B
REWE - BB K EREEH TR -
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21 Property, plant and equipment, net (continued)

()

(k)

During the year, in view of the age of the Group’s fleet
of Boeing 737-300 aircraft, the Group planned to dispose
of these aircraft and commenced the process of seeking
buyers. The Group assessed the recoverable amounts
of these aircraft and related fleet assets. Based on the
assessment, the carrying amounts of these aircraft and the
related fleet assets were written down by RMB544 million
as at 31 December 2011.

In prior years, the Group planned to dispose of its fleet
of MD90, Airbus 300-600 aircraft and Boeing 757-
200 aircraft. These aircraft and related assets’ carrying
amounts were written down to their recoverable amounts
and impairment losses of RMB 1,056 million were made
as at 31 December 2010. During the year, the MD90
and Airbus 300-600 aircraft fleet and two Boeing 757-
200 aircraft were disposed of and a net gain of RMB123
million was recognised in the consolidated income
statement. As at 31 December 2011, the Group reviewed
the recoverable amounts of the remaining aircraft related
assets and a further RMB40 million impairment provision
was made.

The estimates of recoverable amounts were based on the
greater of the assets’ fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. The fair value was determined by reference to
the recent observable market prices for the aircraft fleet.

As at 31 December 2011 and up to the date of approval
of these financial statements, the Group is in the process
of applying for the land use right certificates and property
title certificates in respect of the properties located in
Guangzhou (including Guangzhou Baiyun International
Airport), Xiamen, Heilongjiang, Jilin, Dalian, Hunan,
Xinjiang, Henan, Shenzhen, Beijing, Shanghai, Sanya,
Zhuhai and Shenyang, in which the Group has interests
and for which such certificates have not been granted. As
at 31 December 2011, carrying value of such properties
of the Group and the Company amounted to RMB3,303
million and RMB2,341 million, respectively (2010:
RMB3,271 million and RMB2,284 million, respectively).
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the use of and the conduct of operating activities at the
properties referred to above are not affected by the fact
that the Group has not yet obtained the relevant land use
right certificates and property title certificates.
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21 ¥I%¥ > BEKRE  FHE (&)

()

(k)

RAE - ZEIANEBIR GRS 737-
300 R TR B EREZE - AEBFHEIR
B LRSI ARSIHREES - K2011
F12A318  AEEFHL T ELERER
HEEEMA KRB SR o RIEFE @ &
LEFR M N AR R & EE O BRTESHE R 2011 48
12 A 31 BUR AR 5.44187T °

RURTEE  AEEFEEEAREEDN
MD90 * Z=% 300-600 A & 757-200 54
T - BRI KA E EREEED
Wom = E U el ¢ EEI A 2010412 A 31
AERS R EE R LT AR 10.56187T °
AREE » MD90 + 22 300-600 F12 28
B757-200 f 4 B 5E & W 15 F WM am AR
W1 231870 ° ANEE R 2011412 A 31
A B HFENRIEEREEN T KES
REITALA I E — P H R E E ERUR
AR 0.40 87T -

BRAIWE SR AREEEN A AEE
MEREERERNFRNREREET D
KeE  AREERSEZRILIHA
FATI5 Z BB INAETE °

MN20115E12 A31 B REBE AT ERE
RHLER - AEE B pTIEE AR EIMN
(BIEEMNEZRHE#S) - B - 28
ST~ BAR - K& - HE - BeE A -
bR - B =88 BB RILEE
RV ERE L A EE N EREE
E - ANEBBEEZREYWENERBERE
RRLTHEREZENYDEREE - 1
201112 A31H @ ZEMEEAEEN
AARRERAEED B A AR 33.0387T
RARY23.41BC (0104 : DFIAA
R¥32. 7T1BTR AR 22.84187T) © A
NAEERAAEEFEARR LlimE
ETSEEEEHIEEREANEA
Pt FEREESENYEREZTEZMTE
EREZ-X
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22 Construction in progress 22 EEIR
The Group The Company
iy 3 | NS
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

ARBEBRT AR%AET ARWEHER AREEER

At 1 January R1A1E 10,069 18,059 8,606 15,460
Additions 20 16,449 6,068 9,995 3,568
Transferred to property, plant BHEYE  HE

and equipment (Note 21) PECIGEYAY (10,079) (13,765) (6,903) (10,184)
Transferred to lease prepayments 5t L& H =8

and other assets upon MERREAM

completion of development, BE - M

or other receivables JREUs R (499) (293) (33) (238)
At 31 December MW12A318 15,940 10,069 11,665 8,606

The construction in progress as at 31 December 2011 mainly
related to advance payments for acquisition of aircraft and
progress payments for other construction projects at the
Shantou New Airport, Sydney Office Building and Shenyang
aircraft maintenance warehouse.

The construction of Yuanquan Pilot Apartment Building
Project was commenced in 2008 and the progress payments
for the construction paid by Xiamen Airlines was recorded
in construction in progress in previous years according to
the signed agreement with a third party. Pursuant to a
supplementary contract entered in 2011, construction progress
payments of RMB242 million paid by Xiamen Airlines for certain
buildings of the project will be transferred to the third party and
accordingly such payments will be reimbursed to the Group.
Therefore, the amount was reclassified from construction in
progress to other receivables during the year.

As at 31 December 2011, no advance payments for acquisition
of aircraft of the Group (2010: RMB2,869 million) were
mortgaged under loan agreements (Note 35).

R201MF12A3MENERTIREEFEZABEER
HIE R R E A OB S - BEHIEE
PWAERILIG RS E AN TREEEMNT
TEEEK -

EFIfZE B 2008 FRAZRRIUFARITE R
BEXNNIRERREREBER-F=77%
IR RN AR FERIIINAERZTES - R
BER201M FRATMARE - LdiERTRE
PHETEEMEZE=TME  BZFE=
THREREEFIMEZAIC NN TRER
RWAREE2.42187T - Atk - ZTIREER
RAFERERIREEDAE MBI -

R2011EF12 A31H » AEBE(20104F © A
R ¥ 28.69 18T ) & B R A T8 5 A DA
AT &M (FizE35) o
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Investments in subsidiaries
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23 RFAAER

The Company
PN
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
AR¥BERT AREBET
Unlisted capital contributions, at cost FELETRARIHE @ HERATIR 2,234 2,174
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (43) (43)
2,191 2,131

During the year, the management assessed the recoverable
amounts of the loss-making subsidiaries and determined that
the carrying amounts exceeded their recoverable amounts
by approximately RMB43 million (2010: RMB43 million).
Accordingly, a provision for impairment loss of RMB43 million
was recorded as of 31 December 2011 in the Company’s
statement of financial position (2010: RMB43 million).

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the equity holders
of Guizhou Airlines Company Limited (“Guizhou Airlines”) (a
60% subsidiary of the Company) in 2011, the share holders
agreed to make a total capital injection of RMB300 million into
Guizhou Airlines according to their equity holding percentages
by 2013. The Company and the non-controlling interest holder
injected RMB60 million and RMB40 million into Guizhou
Airlines in 2011, respectively.

Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
59.

RAFEE @ EREHREBENTARAR]
W Bl £ EEITEE - WRAHELE T AR
EMEEcEBLENROSEHARE
0431870 (20104 : AR¥043187T) - ALtk
RATIE2011F12 A31 B F R A&
BHRRMEEE AR 0.43187T(20104F © A
R#0.43187T) °

BESMNMEERAE ([EMMzE]) (RAF]
A% 60% M F AR ARERFRT AR e © 3%
A TIRXEE 45 201 3 5 BT H AR Bb 51 0 5 M A
=TEAREIETT - ARFKREIMNMERIE
AR R 2011 FHRIAEFEARE0.618
TTRAREE041ETT °

AEB 2 T EFREZFIEHERMES
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24 Interest in associates 24 REE QTR
The Group
AEM
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million

ARBEEBRT ARBOET

Share of net assets JEIEFEE 746 309
The Company
AT
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARMEELT ARBEET
Unlisted shares/capital HIEETRERSD,
contributions, at cost & RERATR 468 435
Less: impairment losses B OREEE (139) (289)
329 146
In the Company’s statement of financial position, a provision M2011F 128318  RARMEEBFERF
for impairment losses of RMB 139 million (2010: RMB289 HE TR A E L2 UL BR £ 58/ B
million) was recorded as of 31 December 2011 in respect of SRR ERIR T REEBARE 1398
investments in certain associate in which their carrying amounts (20104 : AR¥2.89187T) °
were determined to be not fully recoverable.
During the year, the Company injected capital of RMB37 million RRAFIP 2011 FHEEFFAR Ll m) —EHE & A

to an associate according to its existing share percentages. AEEARK0.37ET ©
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24 Interest in associates (continued)

The details of the Group's principal associates are set out in

Note 60, all of which are unlisted corporate entities.

Summary financial information on associates
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24 A& LN TR (F)

BHEAEEEZEME QR ZFBHNM T
60 BRI LEMEE -

BEARNMBERSE

100 Percent Group'’s effective interest

100% REEEZ R
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEET ARBEETL AR¥EERT AREKEBEERL
Non-current assets IEMENEE 15,244 13,026 5,741 4,909
Current assets MENEEE 6,331 4,802 1,733 1,275
Non-current liabilities ERBAG (9,977) (6,975) (3,888) (2,718)
Current liabilities mEEE (9,319) (9,993) (2,840) (3,286)
Net assets FEE 2,279 860 746 180
Net liabilities not REERAER
shared by the Group FAFEIEE - 129
746 309
Revenue WA 13,534 9,924 5,217 3,843
Expenses Sz (11,985) (9,706) (4,632) (3,765)
Profit for the year RNEEFE 1,549 218 585 78
Net profit not BRI
shared by the Group SE&FERE (129) (22)
The Group's share BRI
of associates’ results SBEHFE 456 56
25 Interest in jointly controlled entities 25 REEARIER
The Group
REH
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARBBERT ARE®BET
Share of net assets G FEE 985 863
The Company
RAF
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
AREBEET AREBBET
Unlisted capital contributions, at cost HIEEMEHELE @ KRS 483 483
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25 Interest in jointly controlled entities (continued) 25 R&& N FHEZ (&)

BHEAEEIZEQLERRIZFBEHNMTE
60 BRI LEMEE -

The details of the Group’s principal jointly controlled entities are
set out in Note 60, all of which are unlisted corporate entities.

BERRNMBEMSE

Summary financial information on jointly controlled entities

Group’s effective interest

AEEEZ R
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million

ARBEEBRT ARBAET

Non-current assets IERBNEE 931 806
Current assets MENEE 811 691
Non-current liabilities EREAE (282) (207)
Current liabilities mEIEE (475) (427)
Net assets FEE 985 863
Revenue WA 1,107 943
Expenses X (982) (831)
Profit for the year IR EHE 125 112
26 Other investments in equity securities 26 HftRERE
The Group The Company
REE P /NC |
2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREFET ARBEET AR¥EERT AREEHEET

Unlisted equity ¥IE LR
securities, at cost fRiERE -
LR ARTI TR 166 166 100 100

NEBNRARFENIE EHEHFREIIE
AR#0.10127T (20104 : AREO0.1187T) °

Dividend income from unlisted securities of the Group
amounted to RMB10 million during the year ended 31
December 2011 (2010: RMB11 million).
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27 Available-for-sale equity securities 27 AL EEREE
The Group The Company
rEE KA
2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBBEERL ARBEETL AR¥BEERT AREKBEET

Available-for-sale AEHESREE
equity securities
— Listed in the PRC — BN 64 80 21 33
Market value of listed securities _HEEEHIAL BE 64 80 21 33
Dividend income from listed securities of the Group amounted AEERAFEN ETESREBARBAR
to RMB318,000 during the year ended 31 December 2011 #318,0007c (2010 : AR¥0.02187T) °
(2010: RMB2 million).
28 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 28 EEFEBHEE (AR)
(@) Movements of net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as () BEMBHEE(BF)FENESHN
follows: T~
The Group The Company
REE ¥
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT AREAET ARBEERT ARERSL
At 1 January W1A1H 50 (410) 9211 466
Credited to income #AFEE
statement (Note 16(a)) (Kt7E 16(a)) 617 457 337 447
Credited/(charged) to
other comprehensive 8 A B Ab4R A Uz
income (Note 18(a)) (KH7E 18(a)) 4 3 3 ()

At 31 December

M12HA318 671 50 1,251 911
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28 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued) 28 EELEFBHEE (&FE)(F)
(b) The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (b) BEEFTEHEE,(BE)HNATEEA

recognised are analysed as follows: B
The Group The Company
REE AAHE
2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREFET ARBEET AR¥EERT AREBHET

Deferred tax assets: ELEFTEHEE :

Accrued expenses TEIREM 1,045 802 806 654
Deferred revenue EIEUA 127 334 77 305
Provision for

impairment losses BB 443 127 412 93
Others Hith 29 26 8 17
Total deferred tax assets  IEILFTISHE & EEEE 1,644 1,289 1,303 1,069
Deferred tax liabilities: EZEFTEHARE :
Accrued expenses TEIRE A (270) (390) = =
Depreciation allowances

in excess of the RIS ER S

related depreciation 2ETE (591) (781) - (109)
Change in fair value AHHE SR

of available-for-sale BEMNRND

equity securities BEZH (10) (14) (3) (6)
Others Hith (102) (54) (49) (43)
Total deferred tax liabilities ¥EILFTIS & {E4EEE (973) (1,239) (52) (158)

Net deferred tax assets RS B E T3 671 50 1,251 911
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(b) The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (b) BEEFTEHEE,(BE)HNATEEA
recognised are analysed as follows (continued): B (&)
The Group The Company
rEE RAF]
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million  RMB million RMB million
ARMEERL ARKEET ARBEERT AREEET
Net deferred tax assets BEAB/RT
recognised in the WERRIRE
statement of FriSti&E
financial position R 1,300 962 1,251 911
Net deferred tax BEBERT
liabilities recognised TERAIEIE
in the statement of Fisfia’
financial position FEE (629) 912) = -
671 50 1,251 911
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (0 ARTUAERRBELEMSHEE
At 31 December 2011, deferred tax assets were not M2011F 12 A31H » REBEIW ARLEL
recognised in relation to certain unused tax losses and ARG EERE S AT E TR = 2R
other deductible temporary differences. The unrecognised RIBILEFTISHEE - RERNWBEE
unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences AR E R ZERN T
are analysed as follows:
The Group The Company
AEH AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million  RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT ARKBEET AR¥EBEER ARBEET
Tax losses HIEEE 365 574 - -
Other deductible HAmENE
temporary RHEEE:
differences:
— Accrued expenses —TEIREMN 87 689 — 671
— Provision for
impairment losses —BERBEZLEE - 1,861 - 1,861
87 2,550 - 2,532
452 3,124 - 2,532
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28 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued)

(0

Deferred tax assets not recognised (continued)

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s and the Company’s
deductible temporary differences amounting to
RMB87 million (2010: RMB2,550 million) and nil
(2010: RMB2,532 million) respectively have not been
recognised as deferred tax assets as it was determined by
management that it is not probable that future taxable
profits will be available for these deductible temporary
differences to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Tax losses in the PRC are available for carrying forward
to set off future assessable income for a maximum
period of five years. The Group’s unused tax losses of
RMB365 million (2010: RMB574 million) have not been
recognised as deferred tax assets, as it was determined
by management that it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available before they expire. The expiry dates of
unrecognised unused tax losses are analysed as follows:

(2 B I B 5 o B U )
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28 EEFEHEE (AR (&)

(0

AT UERNELEMSHEE ()

A2011F12 8318 » NREB RARA G
RERBIELEFSHEERN A KN T
MERSRAARE0.8715T (20104 ¢
AR®255ETL) M ARBEZI0(2010
F: AR¥253287T) - BEHEEEE
A] T8 R A SRS K A] RE EE A @ S A FE B 7
LA A 5 L r R R M = B AVEE (] o

RS HERIEEIR R NIRNRZ R
SEREMTLATSEE - R2011%F12 A
318 NREBAERBELREHREE
MF IS kR AR D Bl A AR 3.65 T
(20104 : ARMS74BT) c EEHRN
IR ETEEE LR E BB R - A
£ [F A 7] REEE A B S0 A SR B 4N B BT
SRR A ELERISEE - RFERIELT
FIEMEENAFERHGERISEE S
HranT

The Group
AEE
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARBBEER AREBETT
Expiring in: FIERFRR -

2011 20114 - 23
2012 20124 - 13
2013 20134 223 370
2014 20144 131 168
2015 20154 - -
2016 20164 11 -

365 574
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29 Other assets 29 HihEE
The Group
REE
Prepayment
for exclusive
use right of
Lump sum an airport
housing terminal
benefits IS Mg
—RE BREREN Others Total
FE®#E S=ENE Hith At
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARERET AREBELT AREBERT AREBRER
Note (48(b)(i))
BiE (48(b)(i))
At 1 January 2010 7201061 A 18 66 300 192 558
Additions REEZHEM - - 44 44
Transferred from construction MIEETEE
in progress (Note 22) A (fE22) = = 39 39
Amortisation for the year NEFHH (26) (10) (79) (115)
At 31 December 2010 72010612 A31H 40 290 196 526
At 1 January 2011 7201141818 40 290 196 526
Additions REFEH - - 46 46
Transferred from construction mERTRE
in progress (Note 22) A (fE22) - = 33 33
Amortisation for the year REEHH (26) (10) (69) (105)
At 31 December 2011 M2011%F12A31H 14 280 206 500
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29 Other assets (continued) 29 Hi&EE (&)
The Company
b /NG|
Prepayment
for exclusive
use right of
Lump sum an airport
housing terminal
benefits IS Mg
—RE BREREN Others Total
FE®#E S=ENE Hith At
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARERET AREBELT AREBERT AREBRER
Note (48(b)(i))
BiE (48(b)(i))
At 1 January 2010 7201061 A 18 66 300 146 512
Additions REEZHEM - - 18 18
Transferred from construction MIEETEE
in progress (Note 22) A (fE22) = = 39 39
Amortisation for the year NEFHH (26) (10) (62) (98)
At 31 December 2010 7201012 A31H 40 290 141 471
At 1 January 2011 720111818 40 290 141 471
Additions REFIEH - - 26 26
Transferred from construction mERTRZ
in progress (Note 22) A (fE22) - = 33 33
Amortisation for the year REEHH (26) (10) (47) (83)
At 31 December 2011 M2011%F12A31H 14 280 153 447
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30 Inventories 30 &
(@) Inventories in the statement of financial position comprise: (@) =FEBHE:
The Group The Company
EE b /NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEERT ARBBEET AR¥EERT AREBETL

Expendable spare parts
and maintenance materials SHFEA R4S YR} 1,430 1,219 1,163 989
Other supplies Hih )& 188 136 109 74
1,618 1,355 1,272 1,063
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an (b) MABRAERNTEKAH DT
expense and included in income statement is as follows: i
The Group
AEH
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
AREBERT ARBEET
Consumption JEFE 1,134 1,040
Write-down of inventories FEKELEE 141 8
1,275 1,048
Certain expendable spare parts and maintenance RAE RABIFEFIRNTERELEEEH
materials have been written down as a result of fleet PR HEFT TR P B (15 6) ©
adjustments during the current and prior year (Note 6).
31 Trade receivables 31 AR
The Group The Company
rEHE RATF
2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT ARBEET AR¥EERT ARBEERL

Trade receivables FEUBR TR 2,176 2,022 1,884 1,723
Less: allowance for RERZE(R
doubtful debts (29) (30) (25) (27)

2,147 1,992 1,859 1,696
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31 Trade receivables (continued) 31 FEWBRFK (48)

(a) ERERDHT
AEFEREEREREMEFIRENE
EHE—RE1EEZR3I@MATE - AR
R EUERFOREREEENERR DT

(a) Ageing analysis
Credit terms granted by the Group to sales agents and
other customers generally range from one to three
months. An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful debts, is set out below:

The Group The Company
REH KA E

2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

ARBEERT AREFET AR®EERT ARERSET

Within 1 month @A R 1,977 1,829 1,729 1,614
More than 1 month but #2838 1{& 5 {8

less than 3 months DLR3EA 164 134 125 78
More than 3 months but ~ #8:&31E H1E

less than 12 months L1218 A 6 29 5 4

2,147 1,992 1,859 1,696

P FEWCRIERT R 1 F R -

All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year.

(b) FEWARFRIE
B FE AR S B 2R 8 & B8 A W [l 7T BE 1 4R
1K - &R EUER AR BB R B R ER
RGP RLER o HR A UKD A] BE M RK Y
TR 0 %2R B OPRE B R RO
L 2(1) -

RIREFERAFENESIFTRMT

(b) Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment loss in respect of trade receivables is recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly (Note 2(1)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year are as follows:

The Group The Company
rEE AAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT AREBET AR¥EER AREKBSER
At 1 January M1HA1A 30 30 27 27
Impairment loss recognised BB ERER 6 - 5 -
Impairment loss written back JRi{EE51EEE ) (5) = (5) =
Uncollectible amounts

written off AU B BEE R 5 ) = (2) =
At 31 December »m12A318 29 30 25 27
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31 Trade receivables (continued)

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:
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31 R (&)

(o) REHERIRERE I EWARTR
EmE R RESHE B TRESFIER
BEEBRNRUGRHRE DT T

The Group The Company
rEE AN
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million ~ RMB million RMB million
ARBEERLT AR¥KBET ARBEEBRT ARBEET
Neither past due AN HA R R ET
nor impaired ERIRAEE 2,141 1,963 1,854 1,692

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

32 Other receivables

As at 31 December 2011, other receivables of RMB4,988
million mainly includes the wealth management products
purchased by Xiamen Airlines from a state-owned commercial
bank. These products are repo bonds and bear annualised
interest rates from 5.00% to 5.82% with maturity dates from
92 days to 183 days from dates of purchase. The principal of
the outstanding wealth management products was RMB3,500
million as at 31 December 2011, of which RMB3,400 million
subsequently matured and received as of the date of the
issuance of the report. The total interest income on these
wealth management products was RMB128 million in 2011.

R HA Ko R FH IR R AR E A RO U R FR9 B e
YCEEIARA T RIEKCCHEN TP HFIA -

H it W R TE

R20119F 12 8318 @ EMEKRERERGRTEA
R 40 88 B EEBIEEMMEE —REHE
HXIRTEENEVER BLRBESNT
FEE500%%E582% ' B AEEER
92 KE183 K R2011F12A31H » %
HEEmRBIERIKAS AR 350018 © H
A R¥E 34,0018 702 KR4 B 5 I HA3E Uk
[B] - 2011 F LB ERNFSWABAR
#1288 TT ©

32
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33 Cash and cash equivalents 33 ReRREEEY
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) REeFBRLEEYWRIE
The Group The Company
REE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT ARKEET AR¥EERT ARBEETL

Deposits with banks and

other financial institution E2i7F & 5,108 7,445 2,762 4,807
Cash at bank and in hand  $R771F 7k IR & 4,755 2,959 3,440 2,529
Cash and cash equivalents &= B ERFT

in the statement of YRR E K

financial position e EEY 9,863 10,404 6,202 7,336

Southern Airlines Group Finance Company Limited
("SA Finance”) is a PRC authorised financial institution
controlled by CSAHC and is an associate of the Group. In
accordance with the financial agreement dated 22 May
1997, as revised subsequently on 31 December 2004,
15 November 2007 and 8 November 2010 between the
Company and SA Finance, all of the Group’s deposits
accepted by SA Finance would be simultaneously placed
with several designated major PRC banks by SA Finance.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s and the Company’s
deposits with SA Finance amounted to RMB2,493 million
and RMB2,441 million, respectively (2010: RMB1,111
million and RMB998 million, respectively) (Note 47(d)ii)).

B M SR Y%A R A (56 e
%) = — RIS B H A E A Bz
RS RS - BRI A B A B
Na] o AREAR R EE MY R 1997 F
5H22H% TR 2004F12 A31H »
2007 F 11 A 158X 2010F 11 A8HE
SRR HaE AV R AEE
W B #) BT A 15 5 E BN RS /B B 77 IR 44 R
IEEMEBBRRIRET °

A2011FE128318 » "REBRARNFE
M ENTFERBRED Bl A AR 24.93
BITRARE24.41 BT (20104F : D7
BAREN1TETRARKE98ET)
(P 5 47(d)i))
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33 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

33 RERREEFEY (H)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated by BHPRAMNBRAGFALCEEB RSN
from operating activities: A
2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
firsx ARBEET ARBEET
Profit before taxation BRI 6,930 8,089
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 412 « BifE Mk GHITE 21(a) 7,640 7,025
Other amortisation H S 11 122 111
Amortisation of deferred benefits and gains RIE IS Ry S 11 (73) (71)
Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment n%  BERRERERX 21() 584 212
Share of profits of associates FE(RERE N R ELE 24 (456) (56)
Share of profits of jointly controlled entities ElEaEARER 25 (125) 112)
(Gain/loss on sale of property, plant and HEME - BEREE 58
equipment, net and lease prepayments RREENH (ki) Bk 13 (145) 9
Gain on sale of a jointly controlled entity HEAL AR = (1,078)
Gain on deemed disposal of equity
interest in a subsidiary REHETF R AR KR = (17)
Interest income FISWA (179) (93)
Interest income on wealth management
products BEHEMMERA 32 (128) =
Interest expense FlETH 14 1,067 1,265
(Gain)/loss on derivative PTHET A (MS),/
financial instruments, net BX 38 (1) 30
Dividend income from other
investments in equity securities HIR AR R A 2627 (10) (13)
Exchange gain, net P 5 et o 5 (2,882) (1,673)
Increase in inventories FEEI (263) (107)
Increase in trade receivables AR R AN (155) (647)
Decrease in other receivables H ot EUGFOR D 283 14
Decrease in prepaid expenses BB REM
and other current assets MEEERD 4 130
(Decrease)/increase in net amounts JTEHFQH@‘%Q Ei)=kE
due to related companies ) /1810 (220) 74
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables JE BREEI/ (Rd) 1,041 (3,109)
Increase in sales in advance of carriage fEﬂ,E%ﬁi'ﬂD 1,695 1,408
Increase in accrued expenses RIRERAEM 13 1,199
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities HtbaEEm/ Cad) 554 (200)
Increase in deferred revenue B AIE N 737 438
Increase in provision for major overhauls UNEZZ 5 220
Decrease in provision for
early retirement benefits RERKENEERD (29) (30)
Increase in deferred benefits and gains BN 78 6
Cash generated from operating activities BEXBRERA 16,187 13,024
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34 Financial liabilities 34 SREE

The Group and the Company

AEMRAAT
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million

ARBEEBRT ARBOET

Foreign exchange forward option contracts  4MNERBFEIES 49 — 13
Further disclosures of the financial derivative instruments are set ERSRITE T A Z B MRS 10 &) °
out in Notes 51(c) and (f).
35 Bank and other loans 35 RTREMER
(@) At 31 December 2011, bank and other loans were (@ M2011F 128318 RITKEMER
repayable as follows: RS AR RIS -
The Group The Company
REH b /N
2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT AREBERT AR¥EER AREKBER

Within 1 year or on demand  14F R ZIH 18,789 9,324 14,459 8,429
After 1 year but within 2 years 144 |+ 28 LAR 9,085 10,533 7,501 9,179

After 2 years but
within 5 years 2FAE o SERA 10,687 11,432 7,401 9,443
After 5 years 5Lk 9,265 9,911 7,581 7,629
29,037 31,876 22,483 26,251

47,826 41,200 36,942 34,680
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35 Bank and other loans (continued) 35 RITREMER (E)
(b) At 31 December 2011, bank and other loans are analysed (b) H2011F12A8318  SRITREMER
as follows: AN
The Group The Company
REE KA T
2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREFET AREBEET AR¥EERT AREEHEET

Short-term bank loans EHRITE R 6,925 3,568 4,108 3,560
Long-term bank and 1 EFE AR ERY

other loans due within RHRIT M E
one year (classified as B (F1E

current liabilities) mEBE) 11,864 5,756 10,351 4,869
18,789 9,324 14,459 8,429
Long-term bank and 1 F1EEIHAEY
other loans due after RHIRIT M E
one year (classified as B (F1E
non-current liabilities) FEREEE) 29,037 31,876 22,483 26,251
47,826 41,200 36,942 34,680
Representing: (-
Bank loans RITER 47,823 41,197 36,942 34,680
Other loans HEMER 3 3 = =
47,826 41,200 36,942 34,680
() Asat 31 December 2011, the Group’s and the Company’s © M201MF12A31H @ AEBNAA AN
weighted average interest rates on short-term borrowings BRfEFRAI AN S 5 Rl 3.09% K
were 3.09% and 2.79% per annum, respectively (2010: 2.79%(2010%F : 55 5IA1.78%K.1.78%) °

1.78% and 1.78% per annum, respectively).
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35 RITREMER (&)

35 Bank and other loans (continued)

(d) Details of bank and other loans with original maturity over (d) BRINEARBBEIENRITREMERLE
one year are as follows: BT
The Group The Company
K5E LN
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEET AREBEET ARBEETR AREBET
Renminbi denominated loans ~ AAR¥ BB 2 &
Non-interest bearing loan from a
municipal government authority  JREMEAHE 2 & 885 3 3 = -
Fixed interest rate at 4.86% per 72011412 A318 -
annum as at 31 December 2011,  EEEFIZ54.86%
with maturities through 2013 22013 FEREIE 60 - = -
Floating interest rates 90%, 95%, #2011E 124318 * )78
100% of benchmark interest FF|%E90% + 95%
rate (stipulated by PBOC) as 100% KRB ARRITA
at 31 December 2011, with RERHETELER X
maturities through 2014 Z2014FER 58 683 832 - =
United States Dollars
denominated loans UETREN 2B
Fixed interest rates ranging from 7220114612 A318 -
3.00% to 4.69% per annum EEFFIEA3.00% 2
as at 31 December 2011, 4.69% * £2017%
with maturities through 2017 g 563 1,347 - 572
Floating interest rates ranging 20114612318 -
from 1-month LBOR +0.50%  F&IFIXA11E AR
10 2.20% per annum as at 31 SRATIRIZEHR E10.50%
December 2011, with £2.20% ' £2020%F
maturities through 2020 AR5 E 3,823 4677 3,823 4,676
Floating interest rates ranging 20115128318
from 3-month LBOR +0.50%  FEFEFXA3EARE
103.01% per annum as at 31 SRATIRIZEHR EN0.50%
December 2011, with £3.01% 220216
maturities through 2021 AR5 E 21,707 21,376 25,280 20,671
Floating interest rates ranging R2011E12A318
from 6-month LIBOR +0.30%  FE)EFIEA6MEA
t03.15% per annum as at 31 RRRITREREM
December 2011, with 0.30% £3.15% °
maturities through 2021 2021 FEAREIE 8,062 9,397 3,731 5,201
40,901 37,632 32,834 31,120
Less: loans due within one year &l : SERBA(E
classified as current liabilities &9 1 F RE| &R (11,864) (5,756) (10,351) (4,869)
29,037 31,876 22,483 26,251
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The remaining contractual maturities at the end of the (e) RIBAAZEINIEMIRE SR (BIERIESY
financial year of the Group’s and the Company’s bank and MEFENRENTE - MRZERA
other loans, which are based on contractual undiscounted FEFE - AIRA RS HARAIRITIEE
cash flows (including interest payments computed using FIR) RAEE A AFER KRR B
contractual rates, or if floating, based on rates current B NREBRARRRFREHARTE
at the end of the financial year) and the earliest date the RIERTT R H M B R FIsA S 43 Ef B 10
Group and the Company can be required to pay, are as T
follows:
The Group The Company
rEE VA UNC|
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEET AREBET AREEHER AREBETL
Contractual undiscounted
cash flows ENEMBENRER
Within 1 year 1 A5 H] 20,784 9,974 16,162 8,927
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ 1E5 £ * 2R 10,072 10,997 8,300 9,521
After 2 years but within 5 years 25k * 5ELAR 11,677 12,201 8,096 9,984
After 5 years S5EME 9,830 10,294 8,058 7,882
52,363 43,466 40,616 36,314
Statement of financial
position carrying amounts EESFEXREASLHE 47,826 41,200 36,942 34,680
The Group has significant bank and other loans balances ) MR2011E12A8318 "EEELES
as well as obligations under finance leases (Note 36) ANEYLASE TS 7R B SR 1T A0 B A B 50 K i
which are denominated in US dollars as at 31 December BMAESaEMTE36) - NER20114F
2011. The net exchange gain of RMB2,755 million B FE W e A A R 27551875 (2010
(2010: RMB1,746 million) recorded by the Group was F: ANRB1746187T) @ ZERWEE
mainly attributable to the exchange gain arising from B EERAE LY R RIT A HE A B3R
retranslation and settlement of bank and other loans FREEHEaENmERER - INE
balances and finance lease obligations denominated in [R\BE A8 B BT 5E 51(c) 7t
US dollars. The foreign currency risk is further discussed in
Note 51(c).
The analysis of the carrying amounts of bank and other (9) M2011F 128318 BT REMER
loans is as follows: RIERFEEEN NRTR
The Group The Company
KEE NG
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
Bzt AREEET ARERET AREEETR ARERET
Bank and other loans RITREMER
- Secured — A (i) 23,480 21,675 17,170 16,333
~Secured and guaranteed  —HARIER (i), (i 21 385 py) 385
- Unsecured ~ABRRERSDR 24,125 19,140 19,551 17,962
47,826 41,200 36,942 34,680
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The analysis of the carrying amounts of bank and other (9) M2011F 128318 RITREMEZK
loans is as follows (continued): MIREEEN TRAT © (&)
Notes: B3
(i) As at 31 December 2011, bank and other loans of the Group and (i) R2011F12 8318 « AEE KRR T AKRE
the Company totalling RMB23,653 million and RMB 17,391 million, FEAARK2815BTEARKE 2154318
respectively (2010: RMB22,060 million and RMB 16,718 million, TOEVFRME (2010 4F - ANSR B RR AN A R H) TR %
respectively) were secured by mortgages over certain of the Group's TE AR 2882318 TMA R 216.69 18
and the Company’s aircraft with aggregate carrying amounts of TO B E AARY 236,53 BT RA R
RMB29,815 million and RMB2 1,543 million, respectively (2010: the 173.91{ETTHIRIT R M EFK(2010F : AR
Group's and the Company'’s aircraft and advance payments with #220.60 B TR AR 167.18187T) °
aggregate carrying amounts of RMB28,823 million and RMB21,669
million, respectively).
As at 31 December 2011, a long-term loan due within one year of R2011F128318 - ZEEE —ZEUARE
the Group amounting to RMB48 million was secured by pledged 0.2 BLBTEREREANSTERARE
bank deposits of RMB72 million (2010: Nil). 0.48 BBy —F NI HIR R AAEFR (2010 4F -
ARKEZIT) »
(i) The following bank and other loans secured by certain aircraft (i) FABREG) A HE KA A AR R S L8R 1T R
mentioned in Note (i) are also guaranteed by: b B R B RE S2 LA T HEAR -
The Group The Company
AEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEER ARBEET ARMEBT ARBESET
Guarantors BERA
Export-Import Bank
of the United States EEE L ORTT - 21 - 21
CSAHC (Note 47(e)) s E (Miw47(e)) 221 364 221 364
221 385 221 385
As at 31 December 2011, loans to the Group from SA (hy M2011F128318 @ EMEFEEETA

finance amounted to RMB480 million (2010:RMB520
million) (Note 47(d)(i)).

SENERR/ARE48EITT(20104F ¢
5.2 f870) (FRE47(d) (i)
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36 Obligations under finance leases 36 RIEMHEAE
The Group and the Company have commitments under finance AEBNMARQGERELEEARENRE NS
lease agreements in respect of aircraft and related equipment. HEFRE RO BMEEHEHNRK10E12
The majority of these leases have terms of 10 to 12 years F - DRI 2012 FE 2023 FHRER - R
expiring during the years 2012 to 2023. As at 31 December 2011512 A31H  BIFELRENEET
2011, future payments under these finance leases are as RN 2 FIBBRADHTLOT
follows:
The Group
S 1]
2011 2010
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum  minimum minimum ~ minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments  payments payments  payments

BEHE SEHEE  Interest SEAE SEHE Interest
ARERE (REEE FIE [A7ERE (R88% ik
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
million million million million million million
AR% AR¥ ARH ARE ARE ARE
BETL BETL BETL BET BE&TL BET

Within 1 year 1EUR 1,784 2,216 432 1,654 2,015 361
After 1 year but within 2 years 1AL 2F AR 1,747 2,131 384 1,601 1916 315
After 2 years but within 5 years 26N SENRA 5,872 6,669 797 5,043 5,701 658
After 5 years S 6,434 6,936 502 6,132 6,289 157

15,837 17,952 2,115 14,430 15,921 1,491

Less: balance due within B SHEREI A ER)
one year classified as 1EREHEE
current liabilities (1,784) (1,654)

14,053 12,776
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36 Obligations under finance leases (continued) 36 MEMHERE (F)

The Company
b\
2011 2010
Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total
minimum  minimum minimum ~ minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments  payments payments  payments

BEHE SBEHEE  Interest SHEAE SEHE Interest
RERE (REEE FE [AFERE (R88% #E
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
million million million million million million
AR¥ AR¥ ARH ARE ARE ARE
BET BET BET BET BE&TL BET

Within 1 year 1ER 1,739 2,129 390 1,608 1,924 316
After 1 year but within 2 years 1EME - 2ELR 1,699 2,045 346 1,553 1825 )
After 2 years but within 5 years 260 E  SENMR 5,715 6,411 696 4,886 5,429 543
After 5 years SEPLE 5,828 6,301 473 5,438 5,534 96

14,981 16,886 1,905 13,485 14,712 1,227

Less: balance due within B SHEREI A ER)
one year classified as 1ERZ|BEE
current liabilities (1,739) (1,608)

13,242 11,877
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36 Obligations under finance leases (continued) 36 MEMEEAE (E)
Details of obligations under finance leases are as follows: MEHHRE S EFARET
The Group The Company
rEH RAF]
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARMEERLT ARKBEET ARBEERT ARBEBEET
United States Dollars NERTH
denominated obligations Bluz&E
Fixed interest rates ranging R2011E12 A
from 3.43% t0 6.01% 318 - BEESF
per annum as at = 53.43%
31 December 2011 £6.01% 5,956 6,067 5,100 5,122
Floating interest rates R2011412 A
ranging from 3-month 318 FEIFF
LIBOR + 0.55% to 3.00% ZR3EA R
per annum as at HRITRIZESF S
31 December 2011 510.55% £ 3.00% 5,730 4,796 5,730 4,796
Floating interest rates R2011412 A
ranging from 6-month 318 FEIFF
LIBOR + 0.03% t0 2.05% ZR6EA R
per annum as at RITRIZER 2N
31December 2011 0.03% £ 2.05% 3,592 3,567 3,592 3,567
Singapore Dollars DA T A
denominated obligations BluzaffE
Floating interest rate R2011E12 A
at 6-month SIBOR 318 FBEHE
+ 1.44% per annum 7% 6 {8 A ¥ 1 ER1T
as at 31 December 2011 EZEFENN1.44% 559 - 559 -
15,837 14,430 14,981 13,485

Charges over the assets concerned and relevant insurance

AEECEEREERRREAANER
i RETHBEAERER - K2011512 A

135

policies are provided to the lessors as collateral and security.
As at 31 December 2011, certain of the Group’s and the
Company'’s aircraft with carrying amounts of RMB23,247
million and RMB22,389 million (2010: RMB20,240 million and
RMB 19,296 million) secured finance lease obligations totalling
RMB15,837 million and RMB 14,981 million, respectively (2010:
RMB 14,430 million and RMB 13,485 million, respectively).

318 AEERARRDBIUEAEEAR
#5232.471870(20104F « AR#5202.40187T
MARKE223.89/E7L(20104F : AR#192.96
Bm)ME TRIEEAERNREENEGE
IR ZEEENEHREEDFIAARE
158.37 87T (20104 : AR 144.301=27T)
AR# 1498118 7L (20104 : AR ¥ 134.85
BL) »
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RMB million
ARBBERLT AREBEERL

The Group
rEE
2011 2010
RMB million

RMB million
ARMEERT AREKEBETL

The Company
KA

2011 2010

RMB million

Bills payable JENZE 50 104 - =
Accounts payable FETBRIR 2,797 1,702 2,194 1,188
2,847 1,806 2,194 1,188

The following is the ageing analysis of trade payables:

FER R BRI DTN T

The Group The Company
REE FINUNT|

2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

AREFET AREBEET AR¥EERT AREEHETT

Within 1 month 1{EA A 2,328 1,190 1,977 822

More than 1 month HBiE1EAE

but less than 3 months LR 3EA 315 337 96 197
More than 3 months BB 31E A

but less than 6 months B 6EA 152 240 105 165
More than 6 months iBiE6EA

but less than 1 year BOR1E 12 12 = =

More than 1 year him 1 40 27 16 4

2,847 1,806 2,194 1,188

38 Deferred revenue 38 EZLEWA
The Group The Company
AEEH AT

2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

ARBEERL ARBEETL ARBEERT AREKBEET

Current portion EHIER S 907 524 811 471

Non-current portion REIER D 1,178 824 1,074 752

2,085 1,348 1,885 1,223

EFE WA W R LA B R B A2 Rt
ETHEREER

Deferred revenue represents the unredeemed credits under the
frequent flyer mileage programs.
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(a) FEWF2RAKRHEAEEQRKEA

The Group The Company
REE AN

2011 2010 2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million ~ RMB million RMB million
Bt zE ARBEET ARKAET AR¥EER AREBBEER

CSAHC and its affiliates  EfERE K
HEE A 43 12 43 12
Associates NG| 12 16 8 13
Jointly controlled entities A& AH 88 110 88 110
Other related company B A A 24 = = =
Subsidiaries FAA] - - 141 37
47(c) 167 138 280 172

The amounts due from subsidiaries and other related
companies are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
terms of repayment. They are expected to be recovered
within one year.

(b) Amounts due to subsidiaries and other related
companies

U F 2 A K EL A AR 1 B R 2 K
- 2R REEFEMNRHR - AR
TEER NV FRBRE o

(b) ENFARRHEMEELTKIEA

The Group The Company
%8 K27

2011 2010 2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million ~ RMB million RMB million
Bzt AREEEBRL AR¥BET AR¥EER AR%BEET

CSAHC and its affiliates &R K
HEB A 68 139 69 138

A jointly controlled

entity of CSAHC HMEERNEENT 1 71 - 71
An associate =UNG] 13 27 13 27
Jointly controlled entities A& A 7] 39 80 36 79
Other related company ~ E B AR 1 = - =
Subsidiaries FA7] - - 1,261 1,138
47(c) 122 317 1,379 1,453

The amounts due to subsidiaries and related companies
are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. They are expected to be settled within one
year.

FE T2 B R A B A R SOR R AR 4R -
8 REET KR o FAREBERN 1 F
PEIE -
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40 Accrued expenses 40 TAREA
The Group The Company
rEE KA
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million  RMB million RMB million
ARMEERT ARKBET ARBEERT ARBBEET
Jet fuel costs it IDN 1,099 1,727 603 1,385
Air catering expenses mz=REER 183 150 264 263
Salaries and welfare TEREAH 2,272 1,970 1,597 1,566
Repairs and maintenance HEREE 2,446 1,959 1,990 1,702
Provision for major
overhauls (Note 42) RieE (et 42) 575 223 479 173
Provision for early retirement 12 2R IKEF
benefits (Note 43) 4 (£ 43) 47 52 46 51
Landing and navigation fees B R BB 1,807 2,295 1,030 1,462
Computer reservation services ~ EISFTEE 593 545 400 413
Interest expense FEXZ 160 123 107 104
Others HAth 298 286 269 269
9,480 9,330 6,785 7,388
41 Other liabilities 41 HthBE
The Group The Company
rEH INNE|
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million  RMB million RMB million
ARBEER ARKBEET AR¥EBEER ARBEET
CAAC Infrastructure RAZ R A A
Development Fund, airport RIEEZRED
construction surcharge and WISEERE R
airport tax payable RIS E 979 760 899 669
Payable for property, plant BEME - BEK
and equipment SRR 889 774 698 728
Advance payments received
for chartered flights 2 SEUEEN 95 73 83 72
Sales agent deposits SHERE € 308 282 251 241
Other taxes payable Hih R e 618 493 442 335
Others HAth 1,425 1,386 1,226 1,214
4,314 3,768 3,599 3,259
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42 Provision for major overhauls 42 KIE%4E
Details of provision for major overhauls in respect of aircraft KEUHEE THA R REE KBS EEFE L
held under operating leases are as follows: T
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010

43

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREFET ARBEET AR¥EERT AREEHET

At 1 January R1A1H 1,396 1,456 1,086 1,117
Additional provision made ANFAER 468 462 375 386
Provision utilised ARFF 111) (522) (89) (417)
At 31 December ®12 A31H 1,753 1,396 1,372 1,086

Less: current portion included & : E¥EETEIR
in accrued expenses (Note 40) ERAE H

28> (FfaE40) (575) (223) (479) (173)
1,178 1,173 893 913
Provision for early retirement benefits 43 REENKRBRER
Details of provision for early retirement benefits in respect of RPRAEIRAIEENEEFBOT ¢

obligations to early retired employees are as follows:

The Group The Company
rEHE AT]
2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREFET ARBEET AR¥EERT AREEHEET

At 1 January R1A1H 170 205 166 199
Provision for the year (Note 12) AN 245 (£ 12) 37 29 35 29
Financial cost (Note 14) BrrsE A (s 14) 8 8 8 8
Payments made during the year 747 (72) (75) (70) (73)
Effect of changes

in discount rates FREREBHTE (7) 3 (7) 3
At 31 December W12 A31H 136 170 132 166
Less: current portion B BARETER

included in accrued ERNEH

expenses (Note 40) &5 (MiEE40) (47) (52) (46) (51)

89 118 86 115

The Group has implemented an early retirement plan for rEERETEIEM—BRFRARGE -
certain employees. The benefits of the early retirement plan are REBRRGTENBARERIREZRKNBABHE
calculated based on factors including the remaining number of EERKBENFISRREFER&RE TRIER
years of service from the date of early retirement to the normal RARBNEFHBBESHEZTE BEBAEMT
retirement date and the salary amount on the date of early MBABRARR IR @ RIREER R
retirement of the employees. The present value of the future FIRRET L o

cash flows expected to be required to settle the obligations is
recognised as provision for early retirement benefits.
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44 Deferred benefits and gains 44 EEW IR
The Group The Company
=EE N
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBBEERL ARBEETL AR¥BEERT AREKBEET
Leases rebates (Note (i) FRE B0 (FTEE ) 640 723 640 723
Gains on sale and EEHELOR S

leaseback (Note (ii)) Wz (HI3E (i) 171 197 171 197
Government grants IEg =) 213 57 148 19
Others HAftb 34 38 27 29
1,058 1,015 986 968

Notes: iz :

(ii)

The Company was granted cash rebates by the lessors under certain lease
arrangements when it fulfilled certain requirements. The rebates were
deferred and amortised using the straight line method over the remaining
lease terms.

The Company entered into sale and leaseback transactions with certain
third parties under operating leases. The gains were deferred and

(ii)

REBEETHERS - HBAAGL TAKERE BN
B ZERHFREIEREN S - WREREE
RIFAEHAR B o

RAREE TREETERARR SR - 2R 5
RIEREETRE » EEN IR A FE SRR -

amortised over the lease terms of these aircraft.
45

(a) Share capital

Share capital and capital management

(@) B

45 RAREREE

The Group and the Company

FEERALT
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARBEET ARBBETL
Registered, issued and paid up capital: i - EETRERMRA
845,050,000 domestic state-owned shares with 845,050,000 k55 & AR ERF R
selling restrictions of RMB1.00 each (2010: BREBARE1.007T (20105 :
845,050,000 shares of RMB1.00 each) 845,050,000 kB AEARE 1.0070) 845 845
3,300,000,000 domestic state-owned shares of RMB1.00  3,300,000,000 RN E Bl RSk E E
each (2010: 3,300,000,000 of RMB1.00 each) AR 1007820107 : 3,300,000,000%
SHEEARE1007T) 3,300 3,300
Nil A shares with selling restrictions of RMB1.00 BERERMAAR Q0105 -
each (2010: 1,377,600,000 of RMB1.00 each) 1,377,600,000 kB R EEARE1.007) - 1,378
2,877,600,000 A shares of RMB1.00 each (2010 2,877,600,000 % AR EREEARE 1,007
1,500,000,000 shares of RMB1.00 each) (20104 : 1,500,000,000 %
SREBEARE1.007) 2878 1,500
2,794,917,000 H shares of RMB1.00 each (2010: 2,794,917,000 R R G REEARE 1.0
2,794,917,000 shares of RMB1.00 each) (2010% = 2,794,917,000 %
BRAEARE1.007) 2,79 2,795
9,818 9,818




(2 8 I A 5 o 4 U A )

(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(DA R Jy B 05r)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

45 Share capital and capital management
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Share capital (continued)

On 20 August 2009, the Company issued 721,150,000 A
shares to CSAHC. These A shares are subject to a lock-up
period to 20 August 2012.

On 29 October 2010, the Company issued 123,900,000
A shares to CSAHC and 1,377,600,000 A shares to
certain third party investors for net cash considerations of
RMB812 million and RMB9,026 million, respectively. The
A shares issued to CSAHC and certain third party investors
are subject to a lock-up period to 1 November 2013 and 1
November 2011, respectively.

On 1 November 2010, the Company issued 312,500,000
H shares to Nan Lung, for a net cash consideration of
RMB734 million.

All the domestic state-owned, H and A shares rank pari
passu in all material respects.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives in managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, and to generate sufficient profit to maintain
growth and provide returns to its shareholders, by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages the amount of capital in proportion
to risk and managing its debt portfolio in conjunction with
projected financing requirements. The Group monitors
capital on the basis of the debt to equity ratio, which
is calculated as net debt as a percentage of total equity
where net debt is represented by the aggregate of bank
and other loans, obligations under finance leases, trade
payables, sales in advance of carriage, amounts due to
related companies, accrued expenses and other liabilities
less cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits.

There was no change in the Group’s approach to capital
management during 2011 as compared with previous
years. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. The
Group’s debt to equity ratio is 201% at 31 December
2011 (2010: 211%).

o [ R 5 i 22 A 0 A R 2 )
SRR

S % e 35 P e
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45 REAREXRERE ()

(a)

(b)

B (4&)

R 200948 A20H © AR A FEMER
2£17721,150,000 X AR% 5B ARRZES
2201248 A 20 HHZEEHFTAAR -

R2010F10H29H » &AA RS BlAIFEM
£ F %17 123,900,000 AR A BX N A1 T 55
=% & E3£171,377,600,000 A% A BE
FHREHEL R AARES 12ETEA
R#90.26187T - ELREAMERMAIE
TE=ZAREELTHARESRIZE
201311 A1 8 K%2011E11 A1 A%
EHFTARIR ©

A2010% 11 A1 H » NARIAIFEREET
312,500,000 L H% - FIRESHEAAR
W7 3418 TT ©

FIEAREBIRE - HEM ABRESEKRTS
HmHFE 2RSS

ErER
AREEAEENEERESBBRE
AR E S8  BANEENE
BIREEENMBIEES B AEE
H BRI AR E R -

AEB AR SERE R EAKE - &
BHRERTKEERAEERE - A&H
NBERELEEREAEENSE
IR - BEREL R DB EFHEGR AR
SR - BEFBRARITERELEME
FBMEMHEERRE  BHEX BE
mE - ENEED  RREAREMEA
ENBIRERE MRS EEY REH
RITER

ERARTEE ML - 2011 EAREBEHER
BB ARARBELERL - KA REFA
AT EEINIBSR HIE AT » 722011 8
12A31H ' A5ENEERESEEXES
201% (20104 : 211%) °

141



142

China Southern Airlines Company Limited

Annual Report 2011

B 5 e A< W

Notes to the Financial Statements

46 Reserves 46 fEfE
The Group The Company
TEE KAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT ARBBET ARKEBEER AREKBER
Share premium IR A E
At 1 January R1A1H
(as previously reported) (AAERTZ5R) 13,433 4,676 13,433 4,676
Adjustment for the changes )
in accounting policy SETHOR B E AR 445 445 445 445
At 1 January (as adjusted) ®1 AR (BREE) 13,878 5,121 13,878 5,121
Capital injection into a F=HF—
subsidiary by a third party FRREEFZ 253 - - -
Issue of shares (Note 45) MR =gt (MizE45) = 8,757 = 8,757
At 31 December »m12A318 14,131 13,878 13,878 13,878
Fair value reserve NAEERE
At 1 January M1A1A 31 37 19 11
Change in fair value
of available-for-sale AftHESREE
equity securities HARBEED (10) (6) (9) 8
At 31 December R12A318 21 31 10 19
Statutory surplus EEEBARS
reserve (Note (a)) (B¥EE (a)
At 1 January R1A1HE 526 526 526 526
Appropriations to reserves RIVAERHATES 321 - 321 -
At 31 December »m12A318 847 526 847 526
Discretionary EEBHARS
surplus reserve
At 1 January and at 31 R1ATARK
December 12A31H 77 77 77 77
Other reserve Hithf#
At 1 January ®1A1H 153 151 146 144
Share of an associate’s ZHEEE AR
reserves movement fREEE 5 - - -
Government contributions B E AR A - 2 = 2
At 31 December W12 8318 158 153 146 146
Retained profits/ BE
(accumulated losses) (BEFHE)
At 1 January M1A1E
(as previously reported) (WAERTE %) 2,676 (3,119 (868) (5,775)
Adjustment for the changes
in accounting policy SEHCR B E AR (342) (339) (342) (339)
At 1 January (as adjusted) 1A 18 (EHAR) 2,334 (3,458) (1,210) (6,114)
Profit for the year REEFE 5,110 5,792 3,746 4,904
Appropriation to reserves REVEERBATES (321) = (321) =
At 31 December ®12A31H 7,123 2,334 2,215 (1,210)
Total CH 22,357 16,999 17,173 13,436

(2 R B 5 o B U )

(Prepared in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards)
(DL B Jy B4

(Expressed in Renminbi)
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46 Reserves (continued)

(a)

According to the PRC Company Law and the Articles of
Association of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries,
the Company and the relevant subsidiaries are required
to transfer 10% of their annual net profits after taxation,
as determined under the PRC accounting rules and
regulations, to a statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution
of a dividend to shareholders and when there are retained
profits at the end of the financial year.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to offset prior years'’
losses, if any, and may be converted into share capital
by the issue of new shares to shareholders in proportion
to their existing shareholding or by increasing the par
value of the shares currently held by them, provided that
the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Dividend distributions may be proposed at the discretion
of the Company’ board of directors, after making
up cumulative prior years’ losses and consideration
of profit appropriation to reserves. Pursuant to the
Articles of Association of the Company, the net profit
of the Company for the purpose of profit distribution is
deemed to be the lesser of (i) the net profit determined
in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and
regulations, and (ii) the net profit determined in
accordance with IFRSs. As at 31 December 2011, the
distributable reserves of the Company was RMB2,215
million (2010: Nil). After the end of the financial year, the
directors proposed a dividend of RMBO.2 per ordinary
share, amounting to RMB 1,964 million (2010:Nil). This
dividend has not been recognised as a liability as at 31
December 2011.

(a)

o [ R 5 i 22 A 0 A R 2 )
SRR
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46 f# it (M)

REBEPBERRDERARRMETF R
MARERRE ARG RARTFAF
AREMEFRREMTELRSHE
AT ERHIEFER 10% RBUEE &R
RNEE  AEARSERFREMRA
Z50% ° IREVEE BHATE AN KE
BBZA - BFERBIFAEQIER -

ETEEGBAEE A A UARBE AR EEE
B(NE)  INRRERFR L G117
A% < A% B8 2% 4% AN AR BR B 4 AR (0 BV E R 1T
it AR BERE 2 & DR
A AR 25% ©

HReFEf BEREANFENRESE
DT FEER SR KA REER
S EFTAEAEREDIR - BIEBEARD
AIMARER  RAESEME @ A2
AIAF MBI THIMIE 2 &P %E : (i)
BEFBECESERREBRETE
BERE ¢ (ii) 1B 35 B BR B A s 2 Bl T
BHEPFEFE o NAFIR 2011412 A 31
BRI EEAARE 2215 T
(20105 : &) - BEEEREEARRKRA
BITZEAN A AT B R IREEAE A -
FIEAREE0.27T(20105F « ) - AT A
R#19.64187T (20104 : ) - L2
WA 2011E12 A31 BERABE -
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47 Material related party transactions 47 HBBAENRXS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEEEEHMH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AREEFZEBEBHH - 2155 TR
Group, including amounts paid to the Company's FISHY NGB ARREERAETRS 5
directors and certain of the highest paid employees as B8 TaT :

disclosed in Note 15, is as follows:

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
Short-term employees benefits FEEIE TEA! 14,675 14,277
Post-employment benefits RINET] 1,091 1,009
Share appreciation rights IR ERIE (A 57 -
15,823 15,286
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Directors and supervisors (Note 15(a)) =% MES= (FfEE 15@a)) 5,938 5,794
Senior management SREEAE 9,885 9,492
15,823 15,286
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (Note 12). FRA B2 A BIE1E 8 TR | (FiiaE12) ©
(b) Contributions to post-employment benefit (b) ERFTEIMHR
plans
The Group participates in various defined contribution AEBAEEEZ2NTHETBRANE
retirement plans organised by municipal and provincial B I 7E &9 B BB R FUR KA B - A& E
governments for its staff. Details of the Group’s employee B B RIRGTEIGFE R MIEE 48 o

benefits plan are disclosed in Note 48.
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47 Material related party transactions (continued) 47 EREBAINXZ (&)

(c) Transactions with CSAHC and its affiliates (the () EEMmEERHEBEE AT REAEE
“CSAHC Group”), associates, jointly controlled WHEtE  SERHEMEBARZX
entities and other related party of the Group 2
The Group provided or received various operational REBFEESEBCEBERREME
services to or by the CSAHC Group, associates, jointly ErHEHBEBAR  AEEMNESE &2
controlled entities and other related party of the Group NE) R E A R A R IR SR
during the normal course of its business. T 2 BR75 -

Details of the significant transactions carried out by the AT AREBEITHEAR FHE

Group are as follows:

2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
BizE AREEER AREBET
Income received from the CSAHC Group WEEREEREBEATRA
Charter flight and pallet income BEBRIEA () 46 36
Cargo handling income EMREKRA (i) 15 14
Commission income HERERA (ii) 7 4
Income received from other related company WxZ| &1t B 1A T WA
Aircraft wet lease income R RN (iif) 242 =
Aircraft sales income HREEEE WA (i) 426 =
Expenses paid to the CSAHC Group X EREEREHEARER
Repairing charges ®EE (iv) 752 487
Handling charges RHFEE ) 87 79
Commission expenses HEREE (vi) 27 16
Cargo handling charges ENEETEE (i) 17 =
Lease charges for land and buildings T RERRENHES (vii) 140 109
Property management fee NMEEERERE (viil) 34 30
Expenses paid to jointly YHEEARRBEATER
controlled entities and an associate
Repairing charges ®EE (ix) 1,266 1,255
Flight simulation service charges RERITI R B (x) 228 198
Advertising expenses EEHIERERE GRS (xi) 29 34
Training expenses RITHIRE (xii) 142 63
Income received from a jointly WEEEARWA
controlled entity
Rental income HAEWA (x) 36 37
Issuance of A shares to CSAHC BRI EERTAR (xiii) = 825
Issuance of H shares to Nan Lung EIREERITHR (xiii) = 736
Disposal to the CSAHC Group HEZEMER
Consideration for disposal of
equity interest in MTU HEXRERTRERT
Maintenance Zhuhai Co., Ltd. MBS ER AR

("MTU") (TBEXF] ) MH(E (i) - 1,608
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47 Material related party transactions (continued)

(c) Transactions with CSAHC and its affiliates (the
"CSAHC Group”), associates, jointly controlled
entities and other related party of the Group
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

China Southern Airlines Group Passenger and Cargo
Agent Company Limited (“PCACL"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CSAHC, purchases cargo spaces and
charters flight from the Group. The balance mainly
represents receivable from PCACL in respect of
charter flight receivables. In addition, cargo handling
income/expenses are earned/payable by the Group in
respect of the cargo handling services with PCACL.

The Group provided certain website resources to SA
Finance for the sales of air insurance to passengers.

Hebei Airlines Company Limited (“Hebei Airlines”)
is a subsidiary of a non-controlling interest holder
of Xiamen Airlines. On 27 August 2010, Xiamen
Airlines and Hebei Airlines entered into an Aircraft
Wet Lease Agreement to wet lease three aircraft to
Heibei Airlines.

The agreement terminated in December 2011 when
Xiamen Airlines sold two aircraft to Hebei Airlines at
consideration of RMB426 million with a net loss of
RMB38 million.

MTU, a former jointly controlled entity of the
Company, was sold to CSAHC in February 2010,
at consideration of RMB 1,608 million with a gain
on disposal of RMB 1,078 million. MTU provides
comprehensive maintenance services to the Group.

The Group acquires aircraft, flight equipment and
other airline-related facilities through Southern
Airlines (Group) Import and Export Trading Company
Limited (“SAIETC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CSAHC and pays handling charges to SAIETC.

Commission is earned by certain subsidiaries of
CSAHC in connection with the air tickets sold
by them on behalf of the Group. Commission is
calculated based on the rates stipulated by the CAAC
and International Air Transportation Association.

The Group leases certain land and buildings in
the PRC from CSAHC. Amount represents rental
payments for land and buildings paid or payable to
CSAHC.

(2 R B 5 o B U )
(Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards)

(ANRWE R B4

(Expressed in Renminbi)

47 EHBEBENRS (&)

(o EmMmEEREBEEATRANEE
g%g‘é%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁf‘

)y PEEMERTEREGRAA
U@ ﬁﬁDEﬁh%lWié%
ANE] o ZAREFEMERR] B ER
%E'@%@ﬁ%ﬂ%@%mgﬂ
B - ZeBEEAEMERETE
RERBHEBRIA o Bitk 2 5h
EWEEEA T HREASEE N
XEREBEREEYRERS MG
A, T H e

(ii) $Elﬁﬁm%%hhﬂ%§ﬁu
HEMZ=RRGBRIKE

(i) SAdbz= AR AR (Hadbnze DE
Bz — R AR R AT A
20108 A 278 - FF‘%ﬁn%Eﬁi/Tit
M Ze R R — I8 MR A8 19753 LA [m))a]
b ARz R F = 2R TR -

ZIEWE2011F12 AR IE - B
EPIfn e HE AR e ﬁ%MAEM
42618 mﬁ’];ﬂﬁtlj%%/‘utﬂ
BEBFBRRIARE0.381ET

(iv) ZAAFR20105FE2 AAAEKE16.08
BITHEHERBRARTINRE E AR
EBEXFHETEMER BT
HAR#10.781BTT - EXF AN
EERBSEABEIR

(v) AEEBBAEMEEEZE FARFE
HEmEEEEOZE S ER A TS
B - TRITER M R E A ZE 48R
B WRZARSINREFES
A o

(vi) EHREEXLTRARBEAKELE
BEMPIAEEINZ2EE - &
SRERTERARZE R KER
z=BhineRiEcBeEtE -
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47 Material related party transactions (continued)

(c) Transactions with CSAHC and its affiliates (the
"CSAHC Group”), associates, jointly controlled
entities and other related party of the Group
(continued)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Guangzhou China Southern Airlines Property
Management Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of CSAHC,
provides property management services to the
Group.

Guangzhou Aircraft Maintenance Engineering
Company Limited (“GAMECQ"), a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, provides comprehensive
maintenance services to the Group.

Zhuhai Xiang Yi Aviation Technology Company
Limited (“Zhuhai Xiang Yi"”), a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, provides flight simulation
services to the Group. In addition, the Group leased
certain flight training facilities and buildings to
Zhuhai Xiang Yi under operating lease agreements.

Southern Airlines Culture and Media Co., Ltd., an
associate of the Group, provides advertising services
to the Group.

China Southern West Australian Flying College
Pty Limited. (“Flying College”), a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, provides training services to the
Group.

On 29 October 2010 and 1 November 2010, the
Company issued 123,900,000 A shares to CSAHC
and 312,500,000 H shares to Nan Lung, for cash
consideration of RMB825 million and RMB736
million, respectively.

In addition to the above, certain subsidiaries of CSAHC
also provided hotel and other services to the Group during
the year. The total amount paid or payable to CSAHC
Group was not material to the results of the Group for the

year.
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47 EHBEBENRS (&)

(0 EEMEEREBBEARREEE
gﬁg‘é%@a&EM@mz

(viii) FEMERENFRREMNEMDEE
BERARRARERERYEEE
ARTE ©

ot B

AEBENGE R EMNREEET
BRARDR([EMEE]) MAREE
RESABEIRE -

(ix)

X AEEMSLRRINENRMZE
MARAR ([FREMRE ) MAEH
RAEBERITIRIRSS o ULHh - A
SEEENBRELLMEHER
A TRITIIARR B B
HTIREHR -

EfEENEE AR T EEHMEE
XAE RN AR R R R A EE L
HES R -

ARRBWA LR AP B M IR
1720 ([RIT2E ) AASBRRHE
RITHIBRARTS

(xi)

(xii)

M 201010 A29H K% 2010511 A
18 ARE DRI mEMnEEET
123,900,000 & A B K2 [A) 7 BE 25 1T
312,500,000 i HA% » IREEHE D B
BARESSETLRARK7361E
=

(xiii)

B LA &SN EMEEE T T AR
R E AR A 5 B 1R OB 15 K H A AR
% Rk B NRENESRENA
SEAFEZEBELTEK -
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47 Material related party transactions (continued) 47 EREBAINXZ (&)

(c) Transactions with CSAHC and its affiliates (the (o) Eﬁﬁ&n% EREBEBEATIREE
"CSAHC Group”), associates, jointly controlled e s S e R EMmERE X
entities and other related party of the Group 2 (#)

(continued)
Details of amounts due from/to the CSAHC Group, E%Hﬁl/ﬂ’é%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%l&ﬁﬁw%’&ﬂ PN
associates, jointly controlled entities and other related EFERE S - 5% N EMER AR
party of the Group: 15
2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
FitzE ARBEET ARERET
Receivables: JEMRIE
The CSAHC Group BMEEREBB AR 43 12
Associates N 12 16
Jointly controlled entities AERAT 88 110
Other related company H At BaEE A R 24 =
39(a) 167 138
Payables: BRI
The CSAHC Group BfnEE 68 139
A jointly controlled entity of CSAHC EMEENSERT 1 71
An associate NG 13 27
Jointly controlled entities BERT 39 80
Other related company Hith A7) 1 =
39(b) 122 317
The amounts due from/to the CSAHC Group, associates, FEYFENEMEEREBE AR « AEEH
jointly controlled entities and other related party of the BB S - &2 REMER QSR ES &K
Group are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed - %E\&?ﬁlmﬁmgﬁﬁﬁ

terms of repayment.
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47 Material related party transactions (continued)

(d) Loans from and deposits placed with SA
Finance

(i)

(i)

Loans from SA Finance

At 31 December 2011, loans from SA Finance to the
Group amounted to RMB480 million (2010: RMB520
million).

The unsecured loans are repayable as follows:

o [ R 5 i 22 A 0 A R 2 )
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47 EHBEBENRS (&)

(d) EMPKEERREFERNREMEEN
FX
() FEEEZ
M2011412 8318 - NEEREMR
BB ERARKISETT
(20104 : AR¥521E7T) ©

AP ERRE R A ER

;s

2011 2010

Note RMB million RMB million

sk ARBEET ARKBER

Within 1 year 1R 102 320
After 1 year but within 2 years 1ED 2R 358 60
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F A ESFHA 20 140
35(h) 480 520

Interest expense paid on such loans amounted
to RMB27 million (2010: RMB27 million) and the
interest rates ranged from 4.86% to 6.32% per
annum during the year ended 31 December 2011
(2010: 4.86% t0 5.27% per annum).

Deposits placed with SA Finance

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s deposits with
SA Finance amounted to RMB2,493 million (2010:
RMB1,111 million). The applicable interest rates are
determined in accordance with the rates published
by the PBOC.

Interest income received on such deposits amounted
to RMB32 million (2010: RMB17 million) during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

AEBMEMTBEZAFEAAR
#0.2718 T (20104 : AR#0.27
Br)  #E2011F128318 1k
FEMNERFENE E5486%=E
6.32%(2010%F : 4.86%%5.27%) °

(i) TR 7750
M2011512A318 - REBFRRA
EMPEHEREARE 249318
JL(0104F : ARE11111E7T) °
HIEBF R TIRBHRE A RETA
M2 BAERFREE -

HE2011F12 8318 A&EBER
R4 FE [A) F A B A W ER A R 5 0.32
BIT(20104F : AR¥0.171870)8
BFRFIE °

(e) Guarantees from CSAHC
Certain bank loans of the Group amounting to RMB221
million (2010: RMB364 million) were guaranteed by
CSAHC.

(e) FMMEERMHAMNER
REBARKE221E7T(20105F 1 AR
%3648 MIRTTE R MM KRR H
PR

(f) Commitments to CSAHC (f) HEMEBENEAE
At 31 December 2011, the Group had operating lease R2011E12 8318 » AEEHEME
commitments to CSAHC in respect of lease payments EFANEE T AFEE RS HEAE
for land and buildings of RMB199 million (2010: RMB41 RARN1.99(87T(20105F : AR¥O0.41
million). f87T) °
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47 Material related party transactions (continued) 47 EREBAINXZ (&)
(9) MEMBEBLENRS

(g) Transactions with other state-controlled

entities

The Company is a state-controlled entity and operates
in an economic regime currently dominated by entities
directly or indirectly controlled by the PRC government
(“state-controlled entities”) through its government
authorities, agencies, affiliations and other organisations.

Other than those transactions with the CSAHC Group,
associates, jointly controlled entities and other related
party of the Group as disclosed in Notes 47(c), (d), (e) and
(f) above, the Group conducts transactions with other
state-controlled entities which include but are not limited
to the following:

—  Transportation services;

—  Leasing arrangements;

—  Purchase of equipment;

—  Purchase of ancillary materials and spare parts;
— Andillary and social services; and

—  Financial services arrangement.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of
the Group'’s business on terms comparable to those with
other entities that are not state-controlled. The Group
has established its buying, pricing strategy and approval
process for purchases and sales of products and services.
Such buying, pricing strategy and approval processes do
not depend on whether or not the counterparties are
state-controlled entities.

Having considered the potential for transactions to be
impacted by related party relationships, the Group’s
pricing strategy, buying and approval processes, and what
information would be necessary for an understanding of
the potential effect of the relationship on the financial
statements, the directors are of the opinion that the
following transactions with other state-controlled entities
require disclosure:

ARAR—REALE  WE—EhT
BT BB R BT - (A2 BB A
AR H MM SR B 2
(TR ) T S IR A B BB 5 R 17
B9 -

BR EXXPIEE47(0) ~ (d) ~ (o) F(F) HREEHY
HEfEEMAEENBE AT A Z
REIREMEBABETHRZIN - K
SEEAEBEALRETHNE TRER
B EBRETRR TIIEIA

- EHRE

- MHERH:

- FRERE

- BASBME TG
- HEEMNEEBRS X
- TERBTHE -

BURFURAEBHEERGBEPE
1T+ BATT DA £ 32 5 65 P38 R A fiR o A £
HibIEB B B RAE] AR Z IRFKAE
H o AKECHERERHEEERNR
BEUE 7 HREE - EEREMELLEN
ELRE  EERBMBLRAL T
RPUTRERBBLEATE -

ZRTBHBIBE ARENTER
B REBMEHLEAUIINEES
£ URERZBEEYYBHRREES
EMFENER  EFMRBATEEM
BBELENRHFEBIEHIE
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47 Material related party transactions (continued) 47 EREBAINXZ (&)
(g) Transactions with other state-controlled () MEMBEELENRKS (E)
entities (continued)

() The Group’s transactions with other state-controlled () KNEFEAMEEPE(EZEE

(i) The Group’s balances with other state-controlled () AEEHEEMEGPZE(EZEE
entities, including state-controlled banks in the PRC RIT) BIAEER
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT ARBEET
Trade payables-jet fuel FE B ER 1,267 465
Cash and deposits at bank e MIRTTER 5,702 7,899
Short-term bank loans and current fEEIE N —F R
portion of long-term bank loans  EIHAKRHIE 18,630 8,956
Long-term bank loans, REEZIBR—FA
less current portion EIERY B 28,144 31,152

entities, including state-controlled banks in the PRC RIT)ETHR S
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
AREEET AREBET
Jet fuel cost yAE) DN 25,497 21,345
Interest income F B HA 50 66
Interest expense MEZH 816 808
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48 Employee benefits plan

(a)

(b)

Retirement benefits

Employees of the Group participate in several defined
contribution retirement schemes organised separately
by the PRC municipal governments in regions where
the major operations of the Group are located. The
Group is required to contribute to these schemes at rates
ranging from 8% to 24% (2010: 8% to 25%) of salary
costs including certain allowances. A member of the
retirement schemes is entitled to pension benefits from
the Local Labour and Social Security Bureau upon his/her
retirement. The retirement benefit obligations of all retired
staff of the Group are assumed by these schemes.

In addition, the Group has established a supplementary
defined contribution retirement scheme for the benefit
of employees in accordance with relevant regulations
in the PRC. Employees of the Group participate in a
supplementary defined contribution retirement scheme
whereby the Group is required to make contributions not
exceeding one-twelfth of the prior year’s total salaries.

Housing benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to housing
funds organised by municipal and provincial governments
based on certain percentages of the salaries of employees.
The Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited to
the contributions payable in each year.

In addition to the housing funds, certain employees of the
Group are eligible to one of the following housing benefit
schemes:

(i)  Pursuant to a staff housing benefit scheme effective
on September 2002, the Group agreed to pay lump
sum housing allowances to certain employees who
have not received quarters from CSAHC or the
Group according to the relevant PRC housing reform
policy. An employee who leaves the Company prior
to the end of the vesting benefit period is required to
pay back a portion of the lump sum housing benefits
determined on a pro rata basis of the vesting benefit
period. The Group has the right to effect a charge
on the employee’s house and to enforce repayment
through the sale of the house in the event of default
in repayment. Any remaining shortfall is charged to
income statement.

(i) The Group also pays cash housing subsidies on a
monthly basis to eligible employees. The monthly
cash housing subsidies are charged to income
statement.

(2 R B 5 o B U )
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48 BEFAE

(a)

(b)

EBIREF

BIEPBRBEEERTE  AEEAHRE
B2 7 WA B E R ERE S
FENRETE - AEBEIBREETE - e
AME A2 BEH) 8% &= 24% (20104 : 8%
= 25%) M LL BIBARE RS TR - 2h03%
HEIR R B AT R KBS 1 & b &5 B Fl 4t
SIREZBPIBERARSE o Br EMURIKE
HIRE EI - ANE B WA R AN B 5%
%W%%ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ@%%%iﬁﬁ
i °

SN - REBEFBEBEMAE - ARERY
CEFSHE - HRAKBE2MEEF
ZEFEMBT AEESFRTEBEL
FEETTERENT _DZ—HEHE
B o

R
AEEFGARKETITIEN —E PR
B BB PSS ER T BR AT AN BT AR A Y
EERESR -  ARENETUNSFHZ
ERAEERMAFERR -

BRTEEABEERIN  AEENBHET
BEZEATEFR—EEEEMTE

() ARIE—IEE2002459 AEMmAIEESN
BETEREEANE @ AEBRES
B B S EBUR R B ) R LE R
EMmEESAERESERENET
SR —IXEEEHRR - LEBM
FMEEERE - 58 THEREFREE
ERATEER: 0 NS E A E Sk
RRREE R A 2RBRINE T
B A B R R B AR & MO RE A1 HA
BRI BI5F R E AT R mEEFR » &
EEARILEE TEEFRBRER
REEERERRERABLERME
EUBRBRIENEE - TREEN
HAFTAFIEE ©

(i) AEEEARNEERNE TR
EXMNEEMHER - EMAONEEHE
REMN B AERSRT AR ©
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48 EEFAFENEEMHRE (F)
() BREEEREE

48 Employee benefits plan (continued)

(c) Share Appreciation Rights Scheme

On 30 November 2011, the Company’s General Meeting
approved the “H Share Appreciation Rights Scheme of
China Southern Airlines Company Limited” and “Initial
Grant under the H Share Appreciation Rights Scheme
of China Southern Airlines Company Limited” (“the
Scheme”).

Under this Scheme, 24,660,000 units of SARs were
granted to 118 employees of the Group at the exercise
price of HK$3.92 per unit prior to at 31 December 2011.
No shares will be issued under the Scheme and each SAR is
notionally linked to one existing H Share of the Company.
Upon exercise of the SARs, a recipient will receive an
amount of cash equal to the difference between the
market share price of the relevant H Share and the exercise
price.

The SARs will have an exercise period of six years from
the date of grant. Upon the satisfaction of certain
performance conditions after the second, third and fourth
anniversary of the date of grant, each one third of the
SARs will become exercisable.

The fair value of the liability for SARs is measured using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The risk free rate,
expected dividend yield and expected volatility of the
share price are used as the inputs into the model. The
fair value of the liability for SARs was remeasured as at
31 December 2011 of RMB231,000 and a corresponding
staff costs of RMB231,000 was recognised during 2011.

MR20115E11 A308 AR RIREAE
FHEB T(PRBEAMERL R AR
H IR E s E T 2D BRI Az
BHOBERATH RARERERE SR T
B G K

RIEZETE - AEER2011F12A31H
AR F 1184 B 124,660,000 19 HZ=1E
B TRERASK3.92HBIT %t
ElmAERITRG - SHREEERERE—
AR HAR T HND - BRI T ATHERE
WERER - A BB RBHRRG TSR
BRI THEE R 8 WEUR £ Was -

WET AFERZZEEGRHRER
T2 BRENF - HEDTREEE RGN
BRT - W T AMERFIEEEERE
M=nZ—#NREBRTHERME
F ZEAFROAFEES -

RS EEEEAABENGESREA
Black-Scholes (b EVE T %) HifEH1E
B o ZRAF B ER2H B IEERK
FR ~ FBERD 4T Yook R K T8 HARS (B K 2D
Ko JA20115 128318 @ IRE#EERE
BENAREBEAARE231,000T @ 4
SEAFERANBRERERES TRA
A ARE 231,000 7T °
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49 Segmental reporting

(a) Business segments

The Group's network passenger and cargo operations
are managed as a single business unit. The Group’s chief
operating decision maker makes resource allocation
decisions based on route profitability, which considers
aircraft type and route economics. The objective in making
resource allocation decisions is to optimise consolidated
financial results. Therefore, based on the way the Group
manages the network passenger and cargo operations,
and the manner in which resource allocation decisions
are made, the Group has only one reportable operating
segment for financial reporting purposes, which is the
“airline business”.

Financial results from other operating segments are below
the quantitative threshold for determining reportable
operating segments and consist primarily of business
segments of ground services, air catering and other
miscellaneous services. These other operating segments
are combined and reported as “all other segments”. Inter-
segment sales are based on prices set on an arm’s length
basis.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's chief
operating decision maker monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment based
on financial results prepared under PRC GAAP. As such,
the amount of each material reconciling items from the
Group's reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities arising from different accounting policies are
set out in Note 49(c).
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AEENTENREXGRMEGSE
—EBEMERE AREHETBLER
RE AR BT IMER D BB IRR
FERVERE - W E BIRA A0 EL 5 KA AR
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BRFENEEXHEENERD R
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H A 48 S 0 B IS A BN HIE
WEXBD AN EEPIME - HttEBKE
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49 Segmental reporting (continued) 49 DEPER (&)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) EKEDEB(E)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments ARE B EBKLERREWRBE D EBERFE
as provided to the Group’s chief operating decision maker BZAKEE DRI SR - LURERE
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of REER FFEEXE - A5E2011
segment performance for the years ended 31 December F - 2010F N BHREERWELNT

2011 and 2010 is set out below.

Airline business All other segments Eliminations Unallocated* Total

MEgELY AfrER A H FORER* fit
201 2010 2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010 201 2010
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
million milion  million milion  million milion  million milion  million million
AR®  ARE  ARE ARE  AR¥®  AR®  ARE® ARE  ARE ARE
BB BET BETL BETL BB BET BETR BETL BER BET

Revenue from external ~ ¥19MEFH)
customers WA 92,274 77,3% 433 39 - - - - 92,707 77,788
Inter-segment sales PHRHE - - 899 861 (899) (861) - - - -

Reportable segment  #H% 245

revenue WA 92,274 77,39 1,332 1,255 (899) (861) - - 92,707 71,788
Reportable segment #2145

profit before taxation A1 6,105 6,742 43 81 - - 720 1,275 6,368 8,098
Reportable segment  H& 24

assets EE 122159 108,222 1,909 1,757 (325) (191) 5517 1441 129260 111,229

Addition to non- REFENH

current segment b1l

assetsduring theyear ~ JERFEE 23553 17,188 51 38 - - 37 5 B6M 17231
Reportable segment  H& 24

liabilities af 90,667 80,033 1,289 1,168 (335) (191) - - 91,621 81,010
Other segment EA

information &R
Interest income FISBA 174 91 5 2 - - - - 179 93
Interest expense MEZH 1,023 1222 44 e - - - - 1067 1,265
Depreciation and REREA

amortisation for BHER

the year 7,617 7,050 70 83 - - - - 7,687 7,133

Impairment losses BERERX
(including impacton ~ (BFEEE
property, plant and BERHE
equipmen, R
allowance for doubtful S EF%
debts and provision BEM

for inventories) 72) 72 20 1 - - - - - i 20
3 Unallocated assets primarily include investments in associates & ROEEEFZDRERBERTNRRE ERAE
and jointly controlled entities, available-for-sale securities, other = AMEHESMEE  EMREREBENERNAR
investments and the principal and interest receivables of wealth S RERFE - ROBLEKNREZEBDIERGEE
management products. Unallocated results primarily include the AT BIEEEARFE  BEVERFSBALR
share of results of associates and jointly controlled entities, the 2010 FHEE D RISEFESE AT ©

interest income on wealth management products and the gain on
disposal of a jointly controlled entity classified as held for sale in
2010.
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49 Segmental reporting (continued) 49 DEPER (&)
(b) Geographic information (b) HEERDHT
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million

ARBEEBRT ARBOET

Domestic B 75,807 63,850
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan AR A HE 1,958 1,589
International * B * 14,942 12,349
92,707 77,788
E Asian market accounted for approximately 56% (2010: 57 %) of 3 HZE2011F12A318 @ EBEHKAF M
the Group's total international traffic revenue for the year ended 31 MHHIE56% (20104 : 57%) ° 2 N EH =
December 2011. The remaining portion was mainly derived from TREBOMN  EEFBRMNAARAIUA ©
the Group'’s flights to/from Europe and North America regions and
Australia.
The major revenue earning assets of the Group are AEERBBWANEEEERKK - &
its aircraft fleet which is registered in the PRC and is &2 EpE R Rl - WAt RS HAMm
employed across its worldwide route network. The BABEREE - TELEARARERBL
chief operating decision maker considers that there is EEEMEERZEEEREANARE
no suitable basis for allocating such assets and related i@ EIT AL o Ft - WEREE
liabilities to geographical locations. Accordingly, MoBEERARE -
geographical segment assets and liabilities are not
disclosed.

(c) Reconciliations of reportable segment () RTIBESFHBERERNEE D IBU
revenue, profit, assets and liabilities arising A DBFE - »BEERDTBE
from different accounting policies BZEERGTX

2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
sk AREEBEBRL  ARKBETR

Revenue ON
Reportable segment revenue BED WA 93,606 78,649
Elimination of inter-segment revenues 7 EBE R A S (899) (861)

Reclassification of expired sales in

advance of carriage AREBREEANENE 5/(i) 309 664
Reclassification of business tax HERMES SR (ii) (2,621) (1,957)

Consolidated revenue SHKA 90,395 76,495
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49 Segmental reporting (continued)

(c) Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenue, profit, assets and liabilities arising

from different accounting policies (continued) B EZEHHXR(E)
2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
BizE AREHER AREBETL
Profit 7
Reportable segment profit before taxation W& HH A 6,148 6,823
Unallocated amounts APIEEE 720 1,275
Losses on lump sum housing benefits —RERFEEEITUER (iif) (26) (26)
Adjustments arising from business
combinations under common control 125 TEEAHHNRER (iv) - (1)
Capitalisation of exchange difference EIREHE LB
of specific loans B ) 87 17
Government grants EEEUN (vi) 1 1
Consolidated profit before taxation BHTRAIFE 6,930 8,089
2011 2010
Note RMB million RMB million
BizE AREEHER AREBETL
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BENHEE 124,068 109,979
Elimination of inter-segment balances DEFRE e/ TE(T BRI B (325) (191)
Unallocated amounts PVl 5,517 1,441
Losses on lump sum housing benefits —REAFERRRTIBA (iii 14 40
Capitalisation of exchange difference of EIR{ERE LB
specific loans BRI R (v) 215 128
Government grants EEEUN (vi) (37) (38)
Effect of the above adjustments on taxation N FRBEH BN S (40) (24)
Consolidated total assets AHBEE 129,412 111,335
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49 Segmental reporting (continued)

(c) Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenue, profit, assets and liabilities arising
from different accounting policies (continued)

(2 R B 5 o B U )
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49 7EEHR (F|)

(0 BAREHBERREROKRE D IR
A DB 2 BEERDTIHE
Bz EZRBHx (H)

2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
AREBERT AREBET
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities mEHHEE 91,956 81,201
Elimination of inter-segment balances 2 #FERIFEUFE{ eRRE I 8 (335) (191)
Effect of the above adjustments
on taxation LA AR SRS s 2 14 9
Consolidated total liabilities BptEAE 91,635 81,019
Notes: P 5E -

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, expired sales in advance of
carriage are recorded under non-operating income. Under IFRSs,
such income is recognised in revenue as other operating income.

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, business tax and surcharge is
separately disclosed rather than deducted from revenue under IFRSs.

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, losses on the lump sum housing
benefits are executed by CSAHC are charged to retained profits
as of 1 January 2001 pursuant to the relevant regulations. Under
IFRSs, losses on lump sum housing benefits are initially deferred and
charged to the income statement, over the vesting benefit periods
stipulated by the relevant contracts.

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, business combinations under
common control are accounted for by applying the pooling-of-
interest method. The assets and liabilities of acquired subsidiaries
are recorded at the subsidiaries’ historical amounts. Under IFRSs,
purchase accounting is adopted where the assets and liabilities of
the acquired subsidiaries are recorded at fair value.

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, exchange difference arising
on translation of specific loans and related interest denominated
in a foreign currency is capitalised as part of the cost of qualifying
assets. Under IFRSs, such exchange difference should be recognised
in income statement unless the exchange difference represents an
adjustment to interest.

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, special funds such as investment
grants allocated by the government, if clearly defined in official
documents as part of “capital reserve”, are credited to capital
reserve. Under IFRSs, government grants relating to purchase of
fixed assets are deducted from the cost of the related fixed assets.

() REFESER ARESEEREER
TERRAE FIMIA o 12 IR BB B 75 3R 5 %
8] - B HREFEEABALMEERA -

(i) RIEFESEER SEHREMNETES
51|35 T 122 B B % B 765 3 o 2R R e LA FR B
RFI3R

(i) RIFFESEER  ARFHEMEERS
A — R IEHE E R BIR A B ERR A 200141
B BRDERE - RS LA -
Bl — IR AR B B SRR W A FERR A T DR
Y EERARMRENFEBI PR S#
EERE IR R -

(iv) REFEGER  AEEER—ZHTH
CEAHPRENFRARINEEMRAME - &
IREREEANE - BEMBREET - &
AEIRIBBE RS E XA GHETTRIE -
HEMPRENEENABEAAERERE
AREGZFAREGEMNHEE &4
SEERENAABEERE

v) REFEGER  INEEFERA S RF
SHEREZE  BE TUERML  FEARTE
ERMCGIEEENRA o BRI SR
SEA - R TERTE B B AR INE SR
EEMERZBAO AT FUREREIN - EAft
BEtAE R -

(vi) REFESEER BRABRANKREBBS
FEERTERRBAREEAEA AR
B ARBMERABARTE - MiZKRE
PR A 15 S AR TE - BLIE B [E R B AR
BRI ATl B FE AR B B EE RO AS
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50 Supplementary information to the
consolidated cash flow statement

Non-cash transactions-acquisition of aircraft

During the year ended 31 December 2011, aircraft acquired
under finance leases amounted to RMB3,390 million (2010:
RMB3,056 million).

51 Financial risk management and fair values

The Group is exposed to liquidity, interest rate, currency, credit
risks and commodity jet fuel price risk in the normal course
business. The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Liquidity risk

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB24,928 million. For
the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded
a net cash inflow from operating activities of RMB12,557
million, a net cash outflow from investing activities of
RMB21,957 million and a net cash inflow from financing
activities of RMB8,859 million, which in total resulted in
a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of RMB541
million.

In 2012 and thereafter, the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from
operations to meet its debt obligations as they fall due,
and its ability to obtain adequate external financing to
meet its committed future capital expenditures. As at
31 December 2011, the Group had banking facilities
with several PRC banks for providing loan finance up to
approximately RMB 127,448 million (2010: RMB 146,702
million), of which approximately RMB36,414 million
(2010: RMB39, 173 million) was utilised. The directors
of the Company believe that sufficient financing will be
available to the Group when and where needed.

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed
review of the cash flow forecast of the Group for the
twelve months ending 31 December 2012. Based on such
forecast, the directors have determined that adequate
liquidity exists to finance the working capital, capital
expenditure requirements and dividend payment of the
Group during that period. In preparing the cash flow
forecast, the directors have considered historical cash
requirements of the Group as well as other key factors,
including the availability of the above-mentioned loan
finance which may impact the operations of the Group
during the next twelve-month period. The directors are of
the opinion that the assumptions and sensitivities which
are included in the cash flow forecast are reasonable.
However, as with all assumptions in regard to future
events, these are subject to inherent limitations and
uncertainties and some or all of these assumptions may
not be realised.
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50 EHRERERNBRER

51

FEERH - BE R
HZE2011F12A31BIEFE - ARt E M
ERAZR#STEHS AR 33.90/87L (2010
£ : AR#¥30.56f87T) °

MREREERAAEE

AEBEELEREBRLLBRETAZIRHE
E o X HNE - EERRBERER - A&
SEAZNLERAREAEERAEE LS
R B0 A TS R B IR BOR AN T

(a) RBEESER
R2011F12 8318 "EBRFRD
BEAARMK2492818T - HE20114F
12 A31 BIEFE - AEBHEGHNEER
SERABARKE12557 8T ®EE
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51 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s bank and other
loans, obligations under finance leases, trade payables and
amounts due to related companies as disclosed in Notes
35, 36, 37 and 39 respectively, are not materially different
from the amount determined based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the end of the financial year). During
the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had
forward foreign exchange contracts, of which the outflow
amounted to RMB65 million (2010: RMB467 million)
and inflow amounted to RMB53 million (2010: RMB406
million). All forward foreign contracts were fully settled
in2011. As at 31 December 2011, the Group has no
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts.

Interest rate risk

The interest rates and maturity information of the Group’s
bank and other loans and obligations under finance lease
are disclosed in Notes 35 and 36 respectively.

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group's profit after tax and retained
profits by approximately RMB245 million (2010: RMB220
million). Other components of consolidated equity would
not be affected (2010: Nil) by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit after tax and retained profits
that would arise assuming that the change of interest
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk at the beginning of the financial
year. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the end of the financial year, the
impact on the Group's profit after tax and retained profits
is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2010.
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51 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk
The Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving
Renminbi must take place either through the PBOC or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
exchange or at a swap centre.

The Group has significant exposure to foreign currency
risk as substantially all of the Group's obligations under
finance leases (Note 36), bank and other loans (Note
35) and operating lease commitments (Note 52(b)) are
denominated in foreign currencies, principally US dollars
and Singapore dollars. Depreciation or appreciation of the
Renminbi against foreign currencies affects the Group’s
results significantly because the Group's foreign currency
payments generally exceed its foreign currency receipts.
The Group is not able to hedge its foreign currency
exposure effectively other than by retaining its foreign
currency denominated earnings and receipts to the
extent permitted by the State Administration of Foreign
Exchange, or subject to certain restrictive conditions,
entering into forward foreign exchange contracts with
authorised banks.

The Group also has exposure to foreign currency risk
in respect of net cash inflow denominated in Japanese
Yen from ticket sales in overseas branch office after
payment of expenses. During the year, the Group’s two
outstanding forward option contracts were fully settled
(2010: Notional amount ranging from USD4 million to
USD8 million). The contracts are to buy USD1 million
and USD1.5 million respectively (or USD2 million and
USD3 million respectively if the spot exchange rate at
settlement date is below certain specified strike rates) by
selling Japanese Yen at certain specified rates on monthly
settlement dates until the maturity of the contracts in
2011. Both contracts have a knock-out clause where
the contracts early terminate upon the exchange rate of
Japanese Yen to US dollar reaching a certain knock-out
level. For the year ended 31 December 2011, a net gain
of approximately RMB13 million (2010: a gain of RMB31
million) arising from changes in the fair value of these
foreign exchange forward option contracts has been
recognised in income statement.

The exchange rate of Renminbi to US dollar is set by the
PBOC and had fluctuated within a narrow band prior to
21 July 2005. Since then, a managed floating exchange
rate regime based on market supply and demand with
reference to a basket of foreign currencies has been used
and the US dollar exchange rate has gradually declined
against the Renminbi.
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51 Financial risk management and fair values 51 HMBEBREERAAEE (&)
(continued)
(c) Foreign currency risk (continued) () IR (%)
The following table indicates the instantaneous change RBERY EEMEAEZTENER
in Group's profit after tax and retained profits that would T U TNAEAREBEERNTERNINE
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has ERAN e IEEREFHFHAEES
significant exposure at the beginning of the financial year 12 F)E R B ER R .
had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.
2011 2010
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Appreciation/  on profit after Appreciation/ on profit after
(depreciation) of tax and retained  (depreciation) of  tax and retained
Renminbi against profits  Renminbi against profits
foreign currency  HBEFIEM  foreign currency  HEBHARIER
AR IS BEAEN  ARBHIMNG BEAEN
FE/(RE)  #Em/(Rd)  AE/(RE)  E0/0RD)
RMB million RMB million
ARBEET AREBET
United States Dollars ET 2% 912 2% 798
(2%) (912) (2%) (798)
Singapore Dollars ¥R T 2% 8 = =
(2%) ®) - -

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and retained
profits measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the financial year for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the financial
year, including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.

ER2IMNMTERBAKEZERLES
DREERAEBENBR BRI ED  ERZ2T
MZME PR EXBE D ARER - HF

MR EanERIRTE -

FRENTRRCFAEBEREHAER
SEN IS ARG M BB BAZINE
RS T A  BRERERARERAY
REEBUINERFHER S B AR R R AR
/N JEMWGRIR » T N BIRBREBINER
MBBR/AEEE2REWAMELENZHE
A OMTEL 2010 FEID T ERE— 2R ©
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51 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Credit risk

(e)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and
cash equivalents and trade receivables.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited with PRC financial institutions, which
management believes are of high credit quality.

A significant portion of the Group’s air tickets are sold
by agents participating in the Billing and Settlement Plan
(“BSP"), a clearing scheme between airlines and sales
agents organised by International Air Transportation
Association. The use of the BSP reduces credit risk to the
Group. As at 31 December 2011, the balance due from
BSP agents amounted to RMB923 million (2010: RMB909
million). The credit risk exposure to BSP and the remaining
trade receivables balance are monitored by the Group
on an ongoing basis and the allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts is within management’s expectations.
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables is set
out in Note 31.

Jet fuel price risk

The Group's results of operations may be significantly
affected by fluctuations in fuel prices and the jet fuel
expenses are a significant cost for the Group. A reasonable
possible increase or decrease of 10% (2010: 10%) in jet
fuel price, with volume of fuel consumed and all other
variables held constant, would have increased/decreased
the fuel costs by approximately RMB3,268 million (2010:
RMB2,349 million). The sensitivity analysis indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s fuel cost that would
arise assuming that the change in fuel price had occurred
at the beginning of the financial year.
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51 Financial risk management and fair values 51 HMBEBREERAAEE (&)

(continued)
(f) Fair value f) AREE
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value () KA AgEBEFIEM2HTA

The following table presents the carrying value of AT RIE 25 7 MEHARBIERE

financial instruments measured at fair value at the ISR EERIFETR @I A

end of financial period across the three levels of BRIPAEEN=E2AEBER

the fair value hierarchy defined in IFRS 7, Financial AEISHAR A BEGFENSRE

Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each E MBEep TAATSE2ERY

financial instrument categorised in its entirety based AEEAREEEEEAERANS

on the lowest level of input that is significant to that HHRERANRSLE - BEZRT
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as FEE

follows:

—  Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured - B1R(ERER 2RER
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active MR ERSR T ANRE
markets for identical financial instruments (CRECHAR)FTEAREE

—  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted - 28 2RERMSREU
prices in active markets for similar financial THMITAEMNRE E2HEE
instruments, or using valuation techniques 2 EEs EEERAERT
in which all significant inputs are directly or SBHENBERN  SFEAR
indirectly based on observable market data BE

—  Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using - F3F(HEER): FAEE
valuation techniques in which any significant SEWIEER AR T i5EE
input is not based on observable market data WIEERTTERA R EE

The Group The Company
r5E NG
Level 1 Level2  Level3 Total  Level 1 Level2  Level3 Total
-8 %28 2=R & B-&  E-H #=R ait
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
million million million million million million million million
ARE  ARE  ARE  ARE AR AR AR® AR
BEL HETL AEBT ABT AT BET BET  BEL

201

Assets EE

Available-for-sale equity B[ H &

securities: SHEE
~ Listed —tm 64 - - 64 21 - - 21

2010

Assets EE

Available-for-sale equity B[4 H &

securities: SHEE
~ Listed —tm 80 - - 80 33 - - 33
Liabilities Bf
Derivative financial {TEERIA
instruments:
~Foreignexchange ~ —SNESIEAH)
forwardoption

contracts - 13 - 13 - 13 - 13
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51 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(f) Fair value (continued)

()

(ii)

(iir)

(iv)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
During the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010, there were no significant transfers between
instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

Fair value of available-for-sale securities is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the financial year
without any deduction for transaction costs.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is
estimated by using Black-Scholes option pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
of the forward exchange contracts. The major inputs
used in estimation process include implied volatility,
benchmark interest rates and foreign exchange spot
and forward rates, which can be obtained from
observable markets.

Non-current investments represent unlisted equity
securities of companies established in the PRC. There
is no quoted market price for such equity securities
and accordingly a reasonable estimate of the fair
value could not be measured reliably.

Amounts due from/to related companies are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. Given these terms, it is not meaningful to
disclose fair values of these balances.

All other financial instruments, including trade
and other receivables, prepaid expenses and other
current assets, trade and other payables, are carried
at amounts not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010.
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52 Commitments 52 AHEEE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAEIE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2011 M2011F 12 A31 8 » KREBERA QA
not provided for in the financial statements were as R B ESENT ¢
follows:
The Group The Company
S 3L NG
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

AR¥EBRT ARBAET  ARWAEEBR  AREKEER

Commitments in respect of R R AR TR AR
aircraft and flight equipment

— authorised and —BERERERA
contracted for 61,250 73,909 42,739 56,627
Other commitments H A
—authorised and —EREREFA
contracted for 1,534 757 1,358 354
—authorised but not —EEEERITN
contracted for 2,256 1,949 1,001 1,475
3,790 2,706 2,359 1,829
65,040 76,615 45,098 58,456
As at 31 December 2011, the Group placed orders R2011F12 A31 8  AEEH 1808 R &
for 180 aircraft and certain flight equipment, which ?TT&ﬁEuTﬁﬁﬁ RN o LR R RAT
are scheduled for delivery in 2012 to 2016. Deposits FEEAA 2012 & 2016 FHIR RS » AN
of RMB 14,477 million have been made towards the lﬁﬁkﬁﬁ,\ﬁﬁaﬂ%&ﬁ% BT AR
purchase of these aircraft and related equipment. As at 31 ¥ 1447718 € ° R2011412 8318 -
December 2011, the approximate total future payments, BB ELERERRITHRE - BEEGTRN
including estimated amounts for price escalation through HREFHERIEA - TR FERENT ¢
anticipated delivery dates for these aircraft and flight
equipment are as follows:
The Group The Company
AEE b NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

ARWEERT ARKBET ARMEER ARKBER

2011 2011 = 20,445 = 17,039
2012 2012 19,014 20,033 15,466 16,725
2013 2013 19,673 15,980 16,381 12,910
2014 2014 13,328 10,720 8,104 7,224
2015 2015 8,580 6,731 2,788 2,729
2016 and afterwards 2016 RUABEE 655 = = =

61,250 73,909 42,739 56,627
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52 Commitments (continued) 52 AGEEE(E)
(a) Capital commitments (continued) (a) BEARFRIE (F)
As at 31 December 2011, the Group and the Company MR2011FE 128318 XEBEBUT
has capital commitments as follows: BRI
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
ARMEERT ARBEBEET
Authorised and contracted for ERERFTY
Capital contributions to a subsidiary HFRRINRE AN
(Note 23) (BzE23) 120 -
Capital contributions for acquisition R L N EIRE
of interests in associates A% & EHE 119 =
Share of capital commitments of FEIEE &R AR
a jointly controlled entity BAEHE 27 14
266 14
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) FEMHEERE
As at 31 December 2011, the total future minimum lease RK2011F12 318 » AR R
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in 1 R AT SR A A A B AR FE ST At
respect of properties, aircraft and flight equipment are as R ERERNRELT
follows:
The Group The Company
S L NG
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEER ARKBEET AR¥EER ARKAER
Payments due TR
MHEEHR
Within 1 year 1R 4,369 4,068 3,613 3,283
After 1 year but within 5 years ~ 1E EE5FLR 13,283 13,713 10,883 10,546
After 5 years S5EAE 7,487 8,196 6,886 6,706

25,139 25,977 21,382 20,535
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53 Contingent liabilities

(a)

The Group leased certain properties and buildings from
CSAHC which are located in Guangzhou, Wuhan and
Haikou and other PRC cities. These properties and
buildings lack adequate documentation evidencing
CSAHC's rights thereto.

Pursuant to the indemnification agreement dated 22
May 1997 between the Group and CSAHC, CSAHC has
agreed to indemnify the Group against any loss or damage
arising from any challenge of the Group’s right to use the
properties and buildings.

The Company and its subsidiary, Xiamen Airlines, entered
into agreements with its pilot trainees and certain banks
whereby, the Company and Xiamen Airlines provided
guarantees on personal bank loans amounting to RMB395
million (2010:RMB250 million) that can be drawn by the
pilot trainees to finance their respective flight training
expenses. As at 31 December 2011, an aggregate of
personal bank loans of RMB293 million (2010:RMB151
million), under these guarantees, were drawn down
from the banks. During the year, the Group has made
repayments of RMB4 million (2010:RMB2 million) due to
the default of payments of certain pilot trainees.

The Company received a claim on 11 July 2011 from an
overseas entity (the “claimant”) against the Company for
the alleged breach of certain terms and conditions of an
aircraft sale agreement. The claimant has made a claim
against the Company for an indemnity of USD46 million
or for the refund of the down payments of USD12 million,
and the interest thereon which is calculated in accordance
with Clause 35A, United Kingdom Supreme Court Act
1981. The claim is still being investigated and the directors
are of the opinion that the claim is without merit and the
Company has involved its legal advisor to defend the claim
and filed a defense to the claimant declining all the claims
and made a counter claim for an indemnity of around
USD34 million caused by the claimant’s non-execution
of the aircraft sale agreement. The directors are of the
opinion that an outflow of resource embodying economic
benefits is not probable to occur .
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54

55

56

57

Non-adjusting events after the financial year
end
(@ On 28 February 2012, the Company entered into an
agreement with the Boeing Company to purchase 10
Boeing 777-300ER aircraft at a predetermined price,
which are scheduled for delivery from 2013 to 2016.

On 29 March 2012, the directors proposed a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31December 201 1. Further
details are disclosed in Note 19.

Comparative figures

As a result of the application of IAS24 (revised 2009), Related
party disclosures and Improvements to IFRSs (2010), certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current
year’s presentation and to provide comparative amounts in
respect of items disclosed in 2011. Further details of these
developments are disclosed in Note 3.

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

As at 31 December 2011, the directors of the Company
consider the immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of
the Group to be CSAHC, a state-owned enterprise established
in the PRC. CSAHC does not produce financial statements
available for public use.

Accounting judgements and estimates

The Groups' financial position and results of operations are
sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates
that underlie the preparation of the financial statements.
The Group bases the assumptions and estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that the Group
believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making
judgements about matters that are not readily apparent from
other sources. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates
its estimates. Actual results may differ from those estimates as
facts, circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
the financial statements. In addition to the assumptions and
estimates regarding provision for early retirement benefits and
fair value measurements of financial instruments disclosed in
Note 43 and Note 51(f) respectively, the Group believes the
following critical accounting policies also involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of
the financial statements.
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57 Accounting judgement and estimates
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
long-lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with IAS 36, Impairment
of Assets. The carrying amounts of long-lived assets
are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to the recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to the level of traffic revenue and the amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions for
projections of traffic revenue and amount of operating
costs.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation expense
to be recorded during any financial year. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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58 Possible impact of amendments, new standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments and five new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2011 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.
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Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

AR

B BA B

Amendments to IFRS 7, 1 July 2011
Financial instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

BIRR = ST AERIZE 7 98T 2011E7H81H

T TARE - BRETHEENER

Amendments to IAS 12,

Income taxes — Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets
BB S ERIE 125785

R FIR B BB IR BIEET

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements —
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

R ETERIE 1 SRIER] - AT EREKAIES)
A 7%,,%? = l/ﬁ?ﬁﬁmzﬁ//?l?/fnf

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

BRI R ELANE W - 2HTA

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

BIREA TSR ELERIE 105 - SO FHE

IFRS 11, Joint arrangements

BIRB IR EERIE 158 - RAZH

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

BRSBTS R RS 123K - H Ay B AR R

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

BRI EERIE 135 - A4 EHE

IAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)
Bl e SRR 275 - TR (2011)

IAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures

BB @ ERIE 285k - RHERELLFRE

Revised IAS 19, Employee benefits
B S ERIE 195% BFT) - ELEF/

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group'’s
results of operations and financial position.

1 January 2012

201261 A1H

1 July 2012

2012 7H1H

1 January 2013
20131 A1H

1 January 2013
20131 H1H

1 January 2013
20131 H1H

1 January 2013
20131 A1 H

1 January 2013
20131 H1H

1 January 2013
20131 H1H

1 January 2013
20131 A1H

1 January 2013
20131 H1H

RNEE EFERT (4 B R A LSRR RS
FIEIR M RS EREENTE - @Lti
H ETJ g Z’S%. uu%%ﬁﬁﬁi ’T -I—EH”&{
" EHAEE E’Ji‘“éf%%&ﬁﬂ%#&%FCEE
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
59 Subsidiaries 59 F/ T
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries INTARERNAAIEE BERBBEREEEY
which principally affect the results, assets or liabilities of the L= R /N =
Group.

Proportion of

Place of ownership
establishment/ interest held
operation Registered by the Company
Name of company R,/ capital A7 Principal activity
NGRS g3 &R BEHERE IEEK
Shantou Airlines Company Limited (a) PRC RMB280,000,000 Airline
EEMZE AR AR (a) H AR 280,000,000 70 60%  MZiEh)
Chongging Airlines Company Limited (a) PRC RMB1,200,000,000 Airline
BEMEEREMELA () H AR 1,200,000,000 75 60%  MziE
Zhuhai Airlines Company Limited (a) PRC RMB250,000,000 Airline
HEMmERRAR (a) H AR 250,000,000 75 60%  MZiE
Xiamen Airlines (a) PRC RMB3,000,000,000 Airline
EFIMZE (a) F AR 3,000,000,000 7T 51%  MZEEs
Guizhou Airlines (a) PRC RMB 180,000,000 Airline
BMMZ= (a) F AR 180,000,000 7T 60%  MZ=iER
Nan Lung International Freight Limited Hong Kong HKD3,270,000 Freight services
EEREERRAR B 7 3,270,000 75 51% EERK
Guangzhou Baiyun International Logistic PRC RMB50,000,000 Logistics operations
Company Limited (a)
BMEEREMRAER AR (a) th AR 50,000,0007T 61%  YIRRE
China Southern Airlines Group Air Catering ~ PRC RMB 10,200,000 Air catering
Company Limited (a)
HEEMERNTERRERAR (a) Y AE# 10,200,000 7T 100% MZEREE
Guangzhou Nanland Air Catering PRC RMB 120,000,000 Air catering
Company Limited (b)
EMNmEEmZERmBRAF (b) g AR 120,000,000 7T 55% @ MEERE
Xinjiang Civil Aviation Property PRC RMB251,332,832 Property management
Management Limited (a)
HERMEXERERELAT () i ANR#251,332,8327C 51.84%  MEEE
Beijing Southern Airlines Ground Services PRC RMB 18,000,000 Provision of airport
Company Limited (a) ground services
ItrFEmtE RS ER AR @) F AE#18,000,0007T 100%  fRESHERS
(@  These subsidiaries are PRC limited liability companies. () BEFRRRTHNBREEAF -
(b)  This subsidiary is Sino-foreign equity joint venture company established in (b) FTFRARREFBEKIAFINGENBRAF] ©
the PRC.
(c)  Certain Group's subsidiaries are PRC joint ventures which have limited lives © AEEETFFARRBEFRBIEZNANAEEEAL

pursuant to the PRC law. & HCEFHZ BRG] o



o [ R 5 i 22 A 0 A R 2 ) 1 73

SR EEERE

(3 U P A ) 2
(Prepared in accordance with International E‘j‘%iﬁ% W IIIEE
Financial Reporting Standards) : :
e Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Renminbi)
60 Associates and jointly controlled entities 60 HEATRREE LT

The particulars of the Group’s principal associates and jointly LATR AR 20114612 A31 BASE 2 = EH &

controlled entities as of 31 December 2011 are as follows: NAIREERRZFFE -

Proportion of ownership interest held by

FiERgRlE
Proportion of
Place of Group's voting rights
establishment/ effective held by
operation interest The Subsidiaries  the Group
Name of company B,/ AKEH  Company MAAR AEEEEH  Principal activity
ARBE B ERER BALNRAEE FLAREE REE TEEK
GAMECO (a) PRC Provision of aircraft repair and
maintenance services
BI4HE (a) H 50% 50% = 50%  REREAEGSREERE
SA Finance PRC Provision of financial services
by H 33.98% 21.09% 12.89% 33.98%  fefte Rk
Sichuan Airlines PRC Airline
Corporation Limited
R R AR AR I 39% 39% - 39%  MEEH
Southern Airlines Culture PRC Provision of
and Media Co., Ltd. advertising services
hEEREEXL H 40% 40% = 40% RERSRS
BERHBERAF
Zhuhai Xiang Yi (a) PRC Provision of flight
simulation services
BN (a) H 51% 51% - 50%  RERITIIER
Guangzhou China Southern ~ PRC Sales of duty free goods
Zhongmian Dutyfree in flight
Store Co., Limited (a)
B et H 50% 50% - 50% HERHERHES
EBRAH (a)
Flying College (a) Australia Pilot training services
RITEWR (@) BAFIE 48.12% 48.12% - 50%  HREERITEIEIRE
(@)  These are jointly controlled entities. (@ BEBERARREERR -
(b)  Certain Group'’s jointly controlled entities are PRC joint ventures which (b) AEBETEEQREZREFBUEZFEUSERAL
have limited lives pursuant to the PRC law. & HISEFHBER -
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Supplementary Information (LA RS 4D)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

Reconciliation statements of differences in AEERFRENFHNGEHRRERH
financial statements prepared under different OB
GAAPs

(1) The effect of the differences between PRC GAAP and IFRSs on (1) PR ERMBEETEREENZEARE
net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is BEUEEAT A FMENZESWIT ¢
analysed as follows:

The Group
REH
2011 2010
RMB miillion RMB million
AREBERT AREKBET

Amounts under PRC GAAP hEEFEA TS 5,075 5,805
Adjustments: R
Losses on lump sum housing benefits —RMUERFEEHEEIEL () (26) (26)
Adjustments arising from business A —12HI T3
combinations under common control BRI (b) - (1)
Capitalisation of exchange difference BIEEHE R Ba
of specific loans K& AL (0 87 17
Government grants B A (d) 1 1
Effect of the above adjustments
on taxation LA ESRE ST SR o & (21) (4)
Effect of the above adjustments VA b SREE S D BARR
on minority interests 30 (6) =
Total =0 35 (13)

Amounts under IFRSs RO SRS ER TSR 5,110 5,792
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

Reconciliation statements of differences in ZAEERFREAFERRNTBHRRERH
financial statements prepared under different iR (&)
GAAPs (cont'd)

(2) The effect of the differences between PRC GAAP and IFRSs (2) FEHESFTENNBETBREER ZERNE

on equity attributable to equity holders of the Company is BUBEREA THX%V*B’]WE DT ¢
analysed as follows:

The Group
REH
2011 2010
RMB million RMB million
AREBERT AREKBET

Amounts under PRC GAAP hEEEA TS 32,078 26,755
Adjustments: ?%%é
Losses on lump sum housing benefits IRMERFEERAKIER () 14 40
Capitalisation of exchange difference ??IE{&UKE)DLTEET&E’U
of specific loans B (0 215 128
Accumulated loss attributed to non- BAGIE =2 oy e
controlling interests of a subsidiary B Rt AR (e) (23) (23)
Government grants BEFREE A (d) (37) (38)
Effect of the above adjustments on taxation A iR £ (54) (33)
Effect of the above adjustments on VA 38 #e s D BIRR R
minority interests ERrE (18) (12)

Total a&f 97 62

Amounts under IFRSs BRI BREEN TR 32,175 26,817

Notes: it -

(@ Inaccordance with the PRC GAAP, losses on the lump sum housing (@ MRETFEGFER  ARATAHEMEEREN—K
benefits are executed by CSAHC are charged to retained profits as of 1 MHEE AL fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂma)\zom ¢1 RA1BRDE
January 2001 pursuant to the relevant regulations. Under IFRSs, losses on FE o 1R B PR B A S 2R —RMEEEE
lump sum housing benefits are initially deferred and charged to the income BE SRR V46 TE R ET%LALLIE%EEAI_J)EHEEE’J
statement, over the vesting benefit periods stipulated by the relevant FEEX NS B E AR MR o
contracts.

(b)  In accordance with the PRC GAAP, business combinations under common (b) WBEFHFER  NEEER—IZEHTHOEES
control are accounted for by applying the pooling-of-interest method. HRRENTFARNEEMA S - RRBRERmER
The assets and liabilities of acquired subsidiaries are recorded at the £ - BIRMBHREELT - NARIRBEEEY
subsidiaries’ historical amounts. Under IFRSs, purchase accounting is MPHESHETRE  HEHPRISNEENAR
adopted where the assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are LAKEEREE B AIGZ T R alE bl &
recorded at fair value. E - BASREEENAREENE -

(© Inaccordance with the PRC GAAP, exchange difference arising on (0 REFBEGFER - INEEPIEREE RS HE
translation of specific loans and related interest denominated in a foreign HERTE BETUERLE  stATEERNEIGED
currency is capitalised as part of the cost of qualifying assets. Under IFRSs, BEMKA o RIBBERMBSHRELER] - BRTERF
such exchange difference should be recognised in income statement unless BB AAENINEEREENEN 2585 0] T LA
the exchange difference represents an adjustment to interest. BRI - EAbIgEt A S BB o

(d)  In accordance with the PRC GAAP, special funds such as investment grants (d) REFESFER - BNBARNRERBHEEIERE
allocated by the government, if clearly defined in official documents as HPERREEEEERERAAEEREN - AAF]
part of “capital reserve”, are credited to capital reserve. Under IFRSs, HEZABRATE o MiRIRER MRS ERMR
government grants relating to purchase of fixed assets are deducted from TE - EERE B [E 7F B 2 AR A A BUT 65 B FE R RUAE B A

the cost of the related fixed assets. EERIPK A ©
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Supplementary Information

Reconciliation statements of differences in
financial statements prepared under different
GAAPs (cont'd)

Notes: (cont'd)

(e)  For both PRC GAAP and IFRSs, from 1 January 2010, any losses incurred by
a subsidiary will be allocated between the controlling and non-controlling
interests in proportion to their interests in that entity, even if this results in
a deficit balance within consolidated equity being attributed to the non-
controlling interests. Under PRC GAAP, this new accounting policy is being
applied retrospectively with previous periods figures restated. Under IFRSs,
this new accounting policy is being applied prospectively and therefore
previous periods have not been restated.

The financial statements prepared under PRC GAAP were audited by KPMG
Huazhen, a firm of certified public accountants registered in the People’s Republic
of China.
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Five Year Summary

The following consolidated financial information is extracted from THINEHTEE RTS8 A S BRI 1%5 3k
the consolidated financial statements of the Group, prepared under R R A IS ERE o
International Financial Reporting Standards.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT SUMMARY BOHFERBE

Year ended 31 December

HZE+-HA=t—HIFE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEERT ARBEERL AREEERT AREBET ARKBET

Operating revenue B 90,395 76,495 54,802 55,288 54,401
Operating expenses EIEREY (87,063) (70,689) (55,355) (61,771) (52,960)
Other net income H A58 1,021 476 1,989 833 436
Operating profit/(loss) e (E1R) 4,353 6,282 1,436 (5,650) 1,877
Interest income FEBA 179 93 68 103 73
Interest expense FEXH (1,067) (1,265) (1,497) (1,987) (2,291)
Share of associates’ results JE(REE & N B4R 456 56 69 (12) 57
Share of jointly controlled

entities’ results FIEEERAIEE 125 112 214 170 123
Gain on sale of a jointly HERERELE

controlled entity classified RNARE WS -

as held for sale, net JFEE = 1,078 = = =
Gain/(loss) on derivative PTHET AlzS

financial instruments, net (E518) - F%8 1 (30) 45 (124) 90
Exchange gain, net B e - FER 2,755 1,746 93 2,592 2,832
Gain on deemed disposal of BRLEFAH

a subsidiary s - 17 - = =
Interest income on wealth

management products BB A B A 128 - - - -
Gain on sale of other

investments in equity & H b iR

securities REWE - - - = 107
Gain on sale of a jointly HESZ AR

controlled entity & & Wzs - - - 143 -
Gain on sale of equity HEFLHE

interest in subsidiaries i - - - 37 7
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRIFE,/(B18) 6,930 8,089 428 (4,728) 2,875
Income tax (expense)/benefit Fris®i (BA), Wt (840) (1,677) 9 61) (846)
Profit/(loss) for the year AERE/(EB) 6,090 6,412 524 (4,789) 2,029
Attributable to: AR AL :

Equity shareholders of

the Company RAEIRE 5,110 5,792 327 (4,826) 1,836

Non-controlling interests R 980 620 197 37 193
Profit/(loss) for the year AERE/(BB) 6,090 6,412 524 (4,789) 2,029
Earnings/(loss) per share SRFE/(E18)

Basic and diluted (RMB) BERREE

(AR¥TT) 0.52 0.70 0.05 (0.74) 0.28
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Five Year Summary

Consolidated Balance Sheet summary EHEEEERRBE
At 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+—H

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARMEERT ARBEEL AREBERL AREBET ARKBER

Non-current assets FERBEE 109,927 95,476 85,199 73,903 73,328
Net current liabilities FREAaE 24,928 16,466 28,441 32,290 33,921
Non-current liabilities and ERBAR

deferred items NiEEIE 47,222 48,694 43,390 32,025 24,985
Total equity attributable ARAIRR

to equity shareholders el

of the Company 32,175 26,817 10,457 7,130 11,975

Non-controlling interests IRt 5,602 3,499 2,911 2,458 2,447
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The Board of Directors, Supervisory Committee and Senior Management

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Si Xian Min, aged 55, graduated with an Executive Master of
Business Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University. He
began his career in 1975. Mr. Si served as the director of the political
division of China Southern Airlines Henan Branch; as the party
secretary and vice president of Guizhou Airlines Company Limited; as
the Vice Party Secretary and secretary to the disciplinary committee
of the Company; and as the Party Secretary of CSAHC Northern
Division. He has been the President of the Company from October
2004 to January 2009. Since 31 December 2004, Mr. Si has been the
director of the Company. Since January 2009, Mr. Si has been the
President and Deputy Party Secretary of CSAHC and the Chairman of
the Board.

Tan Wan Geng, aged 48, is an economist graduated from
Zhongshan University, majoring in economic geography, with
qualification of post graduate degree. Mr. Tan began his career in
civil aviation in 1990 and has served as the head of the infrastructure
department and director of human resources department of the
Beijing Aircraft Maintenance and Engineering Corporation, the
Deputy Director General of Human Resources Division (Personnel
and Education Division) of the Civil Aviation Administration of China
(CAAC), and has been the Director General and Party Secretary of
Civil Aviation Administration of China Northeastern Region. He has
been the Party Secretary and Vice President of the Company from
February 2006 to February 2007; the member of the Party of CSAHC
and the Party Secretary of the Company from February 2007 to
January 2009; the member of the Party of CSAHC and the President
of the Company from January 2009 to May 2011. Since May 2011,
Mr. Tan has been the Party Secretary of CSAHC and the President of
the Company. Mr. Tan has been a Director of the Company since 15
June 2006.

Wang Quan Hua, aged 58, graduated with a university degree
from the Party School of the Central Committee of CPC majoring in
economic management. Mr. Wang began his career in 1972. Mr.
Wang served as the Director of the Planning and Operation Division
of CSAHC; the General Manager of Strategy and Development
Department of CSAHC; the Assistant to the President and the
Director of the Strategy and Development Department and the Vice
President of Southern Airlines (Group) Company. Mr. Wang has
served as the Executive Vice President of CSAHC since September
2002. Since 13 May 2003, Mr. Wang has been a director of the
Company. Currently, Mr. Wang is also a director of companies
namely, Nan Lung, Solar Insurance Group Company Limited, China
National Aviation Corp (HK) Ltd., TravelSky Technology Limited
and Asia Travel Investment Company Limited. Mr. Wang is also the
Chairman of Guangzhou Southern Airline Construction Company
Limited.

Exg
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Yuan Xin An, 55, received university education in Aeronautical
Machinery from Air Force Engineer University and is a senior
engineer. Mr. Yuan began his career in December 1976 and served
as the Vice President of Engineering Department of CSAHC; the
Vice President of Guangzhou Aircraft Maintenance Engineering
Co., Ltd.; the Chief Engineer and the President of Engineering
Department of China Southern Airlines Company Limited; the
Executive Vice President of China Southern Airlines Company Limited
from April 2002 to June 2007. Mr. Yuan has served as the Executive
Vice President of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since
September 2007; also the Chief Legal Adviser of CSAHC from July
2008. Since 30 November 2011, Mr. Yuan has become a director
of the Company. Mr. Yuan Xin An is also the Chairman of Southern
Airlines (Group) Import and Export Trading Company Limited, China
Southern Airlines Group Construction and Development Company
Limited, MTU Maintenance Zhuhai Co., Ltd., Dalian Acacia Town
Villa Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Air Catering Co., Ltd, and a director of
China Aircraft Services Limited.

Zhang Zi Fang, aged 54, graduated with an Executive Master of
Business Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University
and is a senior expert of political science. Mr. Zhang began his career
in 1976. He served as the deputy commissar and subsequently the
commissar of the pilot corps of China Northern Airlines Company;
as the party secretary of the Jilin Branch of China Northern Airlines
Company and the General Manager of Dalian Branch of CSAHC
Northern Airlines. Mr. Zhang was the Director of Political Works
Department of CSAHC and was the Vice Party Secretary and
Secretary of the Disciplinary Committee of the Company from
February 2005 to December 2007. He has been the Executive
Vice President and the Vice Party Secretary of the Company from
December 2007 to February 2009. He has been the Party Secretary
and Executive Vice President of the Company since February 2009.
Mr. Zhang has been a director of the Company since 30 June 2009.
He is also the Vice Chairman of SACM.

Xu Jie Bo, aged 47, graduated with a bachelor degree from Tianjin
University majoring in infrastructure and engineering management,
and was subsequently awarded with a master degree in Business
Administration from Hong Kong Baptist University and an Executive
Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua
University and is a qualified senior accountant. Mr. Xu began his
career in 1986. He served as the deputy director and director of the
financial department of Central and Southern China Civil Aviation
Administration; as the Chief Accountant and the General Manager
of the Financial Department of the Company. He has been a director
and the Chief Financial Officer (Chief Accountant) of the Company
since April 2001 and a director, the Executive Vice President and
the Chief Financial Officer (Chief Accountant) of the Company
since August 2003. Mr. Xu is also the chairman of Guizhou Airlines
Company Limited; the vice chairman of Xiamen Airlines Company
Limited and the vice chairman of Sichuan Airlines Corporation
Limited.
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Chen Zhen You, aged 60, graduated with an MBA degree from
Murdoch University in Australia. Mr. Chen started his career in 1969.
He worked as the vice director of the Office of International Affairs
of Guangzhou Civil Aviation Administration; as the general manager
of the Department of Foreign Affairs of the Company; and as the
Director of General Administration Office and the Director of the
Planning and Investment Department of CSAHC. He has been the
Chairman of the Labour Union of the Company since February 2005.
Mr. Chen has been a director of the Company since 15 June 2006.
He is also the chairman of Zhuhai Airlines.

Gong Hua Zhang, aged 66, a senior accountant at professor level.
With over 40 years of accounting experience, Mr. Gong had served
as a Deputy Chief Accountant, a director of the Financial division
of China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau, a director of Financial Bureau
of China National Petroleum Corporation and a Chief Accountant
of China National Petroleum Corporation. He was a director of
PetroChina Company Limited from October 1999 to May 2008, the
Chairman of the Board of PetroChina Finance Company Limited
from May 1999 to September 2009 and a Director of China Cheung
Kong Electric Power Co., Ltd. from September 2002 to June 2010.
Mr. Gong has been an independent non-executive director of the
Company since 28 June 2007 and vice president of Accounting
Society of China, member of the Accounting Standards Committee
of the Ministry of Finance and member of China Valuation
Standards Committee. He is also an independent director of China
Shenhua Energy Company Limited, an external director of China
Dongfang Electricity Group Company Limited, an independent
director of Nanyang Commercial Bank (China) Company Limited,
an independent director of China Railway Group Limited and an
external director of COFCO Corporation.

Wei Jin Cai, aged 62, graduated from the Party School of the
Central Committee of CPC majoring in economics and management.
Mr. Wei has many years of experiences in civil aviation. He conducted
an in-depth study on the operation and management of civil aviation
and is influential in the civil aviation industry. Mr. Wei served as the
deputy party secretary of the Party Committee of the headquarters
of Civil Aviation Administration of China before he was appointed
as the party secretary of Civil Aviation Management Institute of
China from March 1993 to November 2008 and the president
of Civil Aviation Management Institute of China from November
2008 to August 2010. Mr. Wei has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 29 December 2010. He
currently also serves as an independent director of Shandong Airlines
Company Limited and Xiamen International Airport Co., Ltd. and an
independent non-executive director of ASR Holdings Limited.
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Ning Xiang Dong, aged 47, graduated from the Quantitative
Economics Faculty of the School of Economics and Management of
Tsinghua University with a doctor degree. Mr. Ning started his career
in 1990 and served as the assistant, lecturer and associate professor
at Tsinghua University and the executive vice director of the National
Center for Economic Research (NCER) at Tsinghua University. He
was also a visiting scholar at Harvard Business School, University of
lllinois, University of New South Wales, University of Sydney and
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He currently serves as a professor
and a doctorate-tutor of the School of Economics and Management
of Tsinghua University, and the executive director of Centre for
Corporate Governance at Tsinghua University. Mr. Ning has been
an independent non-executive director of the Company since 29
December 2010. He is concurrently also serves as an independent
director of four listed companies, namely, Hong Yuan Securities Co.,
Ltd., Goer Tek Inc., Aerospace Hi-Tech Holding Group Co., Ltd. and
Sichuan ChangHong Electric Company Limited.

Liu Chang Le, aged 60, was conferred an honorary doctoral degree
in literature by the City University of Hong Kong and is a founder of
Phoenix Satellite Television. Mr. Liu has been the chairman and chief
executive officer of Phoenix Satellite Television Company Limited
since 1996 and the chairman and chief executive officer of Phoenix
Satellite Television Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange since 2000. Mr. Liu gained widespread recognition both
locally and overseas for his enthusiasm for and achievements in
the media industry. Mr. Liu is the recipient of numerous titles and
awards, among which include “Wiseman of the Media Industry,
“the Most Innovative Chinese Business Leaders in the Asia Pacific
Region”, “the Most Entrepreneurial Chinese Business Leaders, and
has been awarded the “Robert Mundell Successful World CEO
Award, the “Man of Year for Asia Brand Innovation Award”, the
“Person of the Year” award of the Chinese Business Leaders Annual
Meeting. Since 2005, Mr. Liu has been the Chairman of the iEMMYs
Festival, which is run by the International Academy of Television
Arts & Sciences, for five consecutive years. In November 2008, Mr.
Liu received the International Emmy® Directorate Award. Mr. Liu
was appointed as honorary chairman of “World Chinese-language
Media Co-operation Alliance” in 2009 and appointed as special
consultant to the 8th Council of the Buddhist Association of China
in 2010. Mr. Liu is also a member of the Tenth and the Eleventh
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, and currently serves as the Vice Chairman of the
Subcommittee on Education, Science, Culture, Health and Sport, of
the Eleventh National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Mr. Liu has been appointed a Justice of the
Peace by the government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. In July 2010, Mr. Liu was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star by
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Liu has become
an independent non-executive director of the Company since 30
November 2011.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Pan Fu, aged 49, graduated with a master degree from Chongging
University majoring in power systems and automation, and also
a senior engineer. Mr. Pan started his career in 1986, and served
successively as the Deputy Chief Engineer and the Deputy Head of
the Planning Department of Power Laboratory of Yunnan Provincial
Electric Power Bureau, the Deputy Director of the Planning &
Development Department of Yunnan Electric Power Group Co.,
Ltd., the Deputy Director and Director of Kunming Power Plant, the
Deputy Chief Engineer and Chief Engineer of Yunnan Electric Power
Corporation, the Deputy Director and Director of the Department
of Security Supervision of China Southern Power Grid Company
Ltd., the Director of the China Southern Power Grid Technology
and Research Center; the General Manager, the Deputy Secretary
of The Party of the Guizhou Power Grid Corporation from January
2005 to November 2007; the Director of the Planning Development
Department of China Southern Power Grid Company Ltd. from
November 2007 to November 2010. He served as the Party Member
and the Party Discipline Inspection Team leader of CSAHC since
November 2010 and served as the supervisor of the Company and
the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee since 29 December
2010. He is also the Chairman of PCACL.

Li Jia Shi, aged 51, graduated from Guangdong Institute for
Nationalities majoring in economics and mathematics and obtained
an Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from
Tsinghua University, EMBA major and is an expert of political science.
Mr. Li started his career in 1976. He served as the Deputy Head of
the Organization Division of the Party Committee of the Company,
Party Secretary and vice general manager of Guangzhou Nanland Air
Catering Company Limited; the Head of the Organization Division
of the Party Committee of the Company. He served as the deputy
secretary of the disciplinary committee and the director of the
disciplinary committee office of the Company from December 2003
to December 2007. Mr. Li has served as the Secretary and Director of
the Disciplinary Committee of the Company since December 2007,
and the Party Discipline Inspection Team Vice Leader of CSAHC and
the Secretary of the disciplinary committee of the Company since
February 2012. Mr. Li has become a supervisor of the Company
since 30 June 2009. He currently is also the chairman of Southern
Airlines Ka Yuen (Guangzhou) Aviation Supply Company Limited and
Guangzhou Nanland Air Catering Company Limited.
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Zhang Wei, aged 46, graduated with a master degree from Tianjin
University majoring in investment skills and economics and a senior
accountant with university qualification. Ms. Zhang started her
career in 1988 and served as the General Manager Assistant and
Vice General Manager of the Finance Department of the Company;
the Vice Director of the Supervisory Bureau and the Director of the
Audit Division of CSAHC; and the General Manager of SA Finance.
Ms. Zhang had then been the Vice Director of the Supervisory Bureau
and the Director of the Audit Division of CSAHC from October 2007
to October 2008. Since October 2008, she has been the Director of
the Audit Division of CSAHC. Ms. Zhang has been a supervisor of the
Company since June 2008. Ms. Zhang is currently also the Chairman
of Supervisory Committee of SACM, SA Finance, Southern Airlines
(Group) Import and Export Trading Company Limited and China
Southern Airlines Group Construction and Development Company
Limited and a director of Guangzhou Southern Airline Construction
Company Limited.

Yang Yi Hua, aged 52, Ms Yang, graduated with university
education, is an accountant and a Certified Internal Auditor. Ms.
Yang was the Manager of the Financial Office of the Company’s
Financial Division, and Deputy General Manager of the Company’s
Audit Department. Ms. Yang has been the General Manager of the
Company’s Audit Department since May 2002 and a supervisor
of the Company since June 2004. Ms Yang currently is also the
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of Xiamen Airlines, Guizhou
Airlines, Guangzhou Baiyun International Logistic Company Limited
("Baiyun Logistic”), Beijing China Southern Airlines Ground Service
Company Limited and Nan Lung International Freight Limited and a
supervisor of Chongging Airlines and SA Finance.

Liang Zhong Gao, aged 56, graduated from Nanjing Institute of
Politics, majoring in economics and management and an expert of
political science. Mr. Liang started his aviation career since 1998
and served as Deputy General Manager of the Guangzhou Sales
Office of the Company, Deputy Party Secretary and Secretary of the
Disciplinary Committee of the Passenger Traffic Department of the
Company, Party Secretary of the Passenger Traffic Department of
the Company and General Manager of the Aviation Service Quality
Control Department of the Company. Mr. Liang has been the
Director of the Disciplinary Supervision Department of the Company
since February 2007 and the supervisor of the Company since June
2007.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ren Ji Dong, aged 47, graduated from Nanjing Institute of Aviation,
majoring in aircraft engine design and the School of Economics
and Management of Tsinghua University with a master degree in
Business Administration (EMBA), and he is a senior engineer. Mr.
Ren started his career since 1986 and served as the Deputy Director
of Urumgi Civil Aviation Administration, the Vice President of
Xinjiang Airlines, the Party Secretary and the Vice President of the
Xinjiang Branch of the Company, the Executive Vice President of
the Company from March 2005 to January 2007, and the President
of the Xinjiang Branch of the Company from January 2007 to April
2009. He has served as the Executive Vice President of the Company
since May 2009.

He Zong Kai, aged 61, graduated from Beijing Foreign Language
Institute majoring in French, and he is a senior economist. Mr. He
served as the Deputy Manager of the Operation Department of
the Company, Manager of Passenger Transportation Department,
Head of Seats Arrangement Department, Vice General Manager of
the Marketing Department and General Manager of the Ground
Services Department, President of Hubei Branch. Mr. He has been
an Executive Vice President of the Company since March 2005.
Currently, Mr. He is also the Chairman of Chongging Airlines.

Liu Qian, aged 48, graduated from China Civil Aviation Flying
College with majoring in aircraft piloting. Mr. Liu served the CAAC
as an assistant researcher of the piloting skills supervision division
of the piloting standards department, an assistant researcher of
the operation supervision division, an assistant researcher and the
Deputy Head of the Piloting Standards Division, and the Deputy
Chief Pilot and Chief Pilot of the Company. He has been the
Executive Vice President of the Company since August 2007. Mr.
Liu served as the Chairman of Zhuhai Xiang Yi Aviation Technology
Company Limited, a jointly-controlled entity of the Company.
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Dong Su Guang, aged 58, graduated from Northwestern
Polytechnical University majoring in aircraft design. Mr. Dong started
his career since 1970 and used to be a Vice President of Guangzhou
Aircraft Maintaining and Engineering Co., Ltd. ("GAMECO", a
jointly-controlled entity of the Company), as well as Chief Engineer
and the General Manager of Engineering Department of the
Company. He has been the Executive Vice President of the Company
since December 2007. Mr. Dong is also the Chairman of Shantou
Airlines, GAMECO and Shenyang Northern Aircraft Maintenance
Engineering Co., Ltd.

Chen Gang, aged 46, graduated from Zhongnan Finance and
Economics University majoring in Industrial Enterprise Management
and the School of Economics and Management of Tsinghua
University with a master degree in Business Administration (EMBA).
He began his career in 1987 and the Vice President of Henan Branch
of the Company, the President of Hubei Branch of the Company, and
the Director of Commercial Steering Committee of the Company.
He has been the Executive Vice President of the Company since
August 2009. Currently, Mr. Chen is also the Chairman of CSN — ETC
E-commerce Limited and Baiyun Logistics.

Zhang Zheng Rong, aged 50, graduated from China Civil Aviation
Flying College majoring in aircraft piloting and the School of
Economics and Management of Tsinghua University with a master
degree in Business Administration (EMBA). Mr. Zhang used to serve
as the Deputy General Manager of the Flight Operations Division and
the Captain of the First Squadron as well as the General Manager of
the Aviation Safety Monitoring Division, and the General Manager of
the Guangzhou Flight Operations Division of the Company. He has
been the Chief Pilot of the Company since August 2007. Mr. Zhang
is also a director of Aviation Data Communication Corporation.

Hu Chen Jie, aged 43, graduated from Beijing University
Aeronautics and Astronautics majoring in information management.
Mr. Hu used to be a software engineer in the Computer Center
of CAAC, a senior software engineer in Wei Hong International
Technology Company (Singapore), Deputy Director of the Computer
Center of the Company, a senior project manager of SITA INC. (US)
and the General Manager of CSN-ETC e-Commerce Limited. He has
been the Chief Information Officer of the Company since June 2007.
Mr. Hu is also a director of Guangzhou Aircraft Hang Yi Information
Technology Co., Ltd. and Chairman of THITC.
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Su Liang, aged 50, graduated from the University of Cranfield,
United Kingdom with a master degree in Air Transport Management
Engineering and the School of Economics and Management of
Tsinghua University with a master degree in Business Administration
(EMBA). Mr. Su was in charge of the flight operations, planning
and international cargo project of the Company. From July 2000
to November 2007, Mr. Su was the Company Secretary of the
Company. He has been the Chief Economist of the Company since
December 2007. Mr. Su is also the Chairman of China Southern
West Australian Flying College Pty Ltd and the Director of Sichuan
Airlines Corporation Limited.

Chen Wei Hua, aged 46, graduated from the school of law of
Peking University and the School of Economics and Management of
Tsinghua University with a master degree in Business Administration
(EMBA). He is a qualified solicitor in the PRC and a qualified
corporate legal counsellor. Mr. Chen joined the aviation industry
in 1988. He then served as Vice Director and Director of the Legal
Affairs Office of the Company. Mr. Chen has been the Chief Legal
Adviser to the Company and the Director of the Legal Department
of the Company since January 2004. Currently, Mr. Chen is also the
Director of Xiamen Airlines.

Xie Bing, aged 39, graduated from Nanjing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics, majoring in civil aviation
management. He subsequently received a master degree of
business administration, a master degree of international finance
and a master degree in Business Administration (EMBA) from Jinan
University, the University of Birmingham, Britain and School of
Economics and Management of Tsinghua University, respectively.
Mr. Xie is a senior economist. Mr. Xie used to work in the Planning
and Development Department, Company Secretary Office of the
Company and Office of CSAHC. He has been the Company Secretary
since November 2007.

Save as disclosed above, none of the above Directors or Supervisors
or senior management of the Company has any relationship with any
Directors, Supervisors, senior management, substantial shareholders
of the Company.
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T
Glossary

In this Annual Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

Capacity Measurements

“available seat kilometres”
or “ASKs"

“available tonne kilometres”
or "ATKs”

Traffic Measurements

“revenue passenger
kilometres” or “RPKs"

“cargo tonne kilometres”

“revenue tonne kilometres”
or “RTKs"”

Yield Measurements

“passenger yield”

“cargo yield”

“average yield”

“tonne”

Load Factors

“passenger load factor”

"“overall load factor”

Utilisation

“utilisation rates”

the number of seats made available
for sale multiplied by the kilometres
flown

the tonnes of capacity available for
the transportation of revenue load
(passengers and cargo) multiplied by
the kilometres flown

the number of passengers carried
multiplied by the kilometres flown

the load in tonnes multiplied by the
kilometres flown

the load (passengers and cargo) in
tonnes multiplied by the kilometres
flown

revenue from passenger operations
divided by RPKs

revenue from cargo operations
divided by cargo tonne kilometres

revenue from airline operations
(passenger and cargo) divided by
RTKs

a metric ton, equivalent to 2,204.6
pounds

RPKs expressed as a percentage of
ASKs

RTKs expressed as a percentage of
ATKs

the actual number of flight and taxi
hours per aircraft per operating day
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